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PUBLIC SERWICE 

Re: Case No. 2010-0048.5 

Dear MI-. Derouen: 

Enclosed for filing please find three bankers boxes containing an original and ten (10) copies of 
the FEWPB’s Response to the Commission’s Order dated December 17, 2010 in the above 
referenced matter. 

I appreciate your assistance. If you have any questions or require additional information, please 
contact me at (502) 352-4541 or hprice@fewpb.com. 

Sincerely, 

/-I& .A \7,, LA 

Hance Price 
Staff Attorney 

HP/mw 
end. 
Cc: Thomas Marshall, Esq. 

Donald Prather, Esq. 
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In the Matter of: 

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

THE PROPOSED ADJUSTMENT OF THE 
WHOLESALE WATER SERVICE RATES OF 
THE FRANKFORT ELECTRIC AND WATER 
PLANT BOARD ) 

CASE NO 201 0-00485 

FEWPB’S RESPONSE TO ORDER OF DECEMBER 17,2010 

1. Provide the direct testimony, in written verified form, of each witness that the 

Plant Board intends to call at the scheduled hearing in this matter. 

Witness(es): Jim Smith, Paul Herbert 

Response: Attached 

2. a. Provide the three most recent independent auditor’s reports that are available 

for the Plant Board’s water operations. 

b. If the independent auditor’s report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010 is 

not available, state the anticipated date that it will be available. 

Witness(es): Shannon Taylor 

Response: Attached 

3. a. State the 12-month test period upon which the Plant Board bases its proposed 

rate adjustment. 

b. Explain why this test period was chosen. 

Witness(es): Shannon Taylor, Paul Herbert 

Response: Attached 

4. Provide the general ledgers for the Plant Board’s water operations for the 

proposed test period and the most recently concluded fiscal year. These general ledgers 
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shall include all check registers and spreadsheets used to record and track financial 

transactions. 

Witness(es): Shannon Taylor 

Response: Attached 

5. For each outstanding revenue bond issuance related to the Plant Board’s water 

operations, provide: 

a. The bond ordinance or resolution authorizing the issuance of revenue bonds; 

b. An amortization schedule; 

c. A detailed explanation of why the debt was incurred; and 

d. A calculation of the annual debt service payment, including all required 

payments, to debt service reserve accounts or funds, for each of the next three years. 

Witness(es): Shannon Taylor, Herbbie Bannister, David Billings 

Response: Attached 

6. List all persons on the Plant Board’s payroll during the proposed test period. For 

each employee, state his or her job duties, total wages paid during the fiscal year, current 

salary or wage rate, and the percentage of work hours spent performing duties for each city 

division (e.g., water, sewer, police department, public works) during the fiscal year. If the 

Plant Board’s records do not permit the allocation of an employee’s work hours among city 

divisions, provide an estimate for each employee and explain how the Plant Board derived 

the estimate. 

Witness(es): Shannon Taylor 

Response: Attached 

7. For each employee listed in Item 6, describe how the Plant Board allocated his or 

her payroll and payroll overhead charges to each city division for the proposed test period. 
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This response shall include a detailed explanation of all allocation procedures. Payroll 

overhead charges include payroll taxes, health insurance premiums, pension costs, and any 

other employee benefit cost. 

Witness(es): Shannon Taylor 

Response: Attached 

8. a. List all joint or shared costs that the Plant Board incurred during the proposed 

test period. For each cost, list the vendor, total expense amount, amounts allocated per 

division, and the basis for allocation. 

b. Describe the procedures to allocate joint and shared costs among the Plant 

Board’s divisions for the proposed test period. 

c. Provide all internal memoranda, policy statements, correspondence, and 

documents related to the allocation of joint and shared costs. 

Witness(es): Shannon Taylor 

Response: Attached 

9. Provide a detailed depreciation schedule for the water division. 

Witness(es): Shannon Taylor 

Response: Attached 

10. Provide an adjusted trial balance and audit adjustments for the proposed test 

period and the most recently completed fiscal year. The trial balance shall be traced and 

referenced directly to the general ledgers requested in Item 4. 

Witness(es): Shannon Taylor 

Response: Attached 
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1 '1. Provide the "Enterprise Funds Uniform Financial Information report: that the 

Water Total Miles of 
Main Size Line 

48" 0.60 

Plant Board submitted to the Kentucky Department of Local Government for the fiscal years 

Miles of Lines Used by the Plant Board to 
Serve its wholesale Customers 

0.60 

ending June 30,2009 and June 30,201 0. 

42" 
36" 
30" 
24" 
20" 
16" 
14" 
12" 
10" 

Witnesstes): Shannon Taylor 

0.10 0.10 
1.05 1.05 
0.65 0.64 
7.74 7.74 
9.09 9.03 
10.55 10.54 
2.88 2.84 

36.85 31.07 
1.21 1.18 

Response: Attached 

8" 
6" 

'12. a. Identify all person or entities to which the Plant Board provides wholesale 

59.23 39.98 
'1 30.68 60.46 

water sewice. 

b. For each customer listed above, provide its monthly water usage and the 

amount that the Plant Board charged it for service for each of the previous 24 months. 

Witnesstes): David Billings, Herbbie Bannister, Shannon Taylor 

Response: Attached 

13. a. For all water mains in the Plant Board's system, complete the table below. 

Add larger main sizes if necessary. 
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b. Identify the person or entity who paid for the water main(s) that the Plant Board 

uses to deliver water to the Plant Board’s wholesale customer(s). 

Witness(es): David Billings, Herbbie Bannister 

Response: Attached 

14. a. State the maximum capacity of the Plant Board’s water treatment plant. 

b. For each of the customers listed in response to Item 12(a), state: 

(1) The amount of the Plant Board’s total water treatment plant capacity 

currently reserved for that customer; and 

(2) The minimum and maximum quantity of water (in gallons) that the 

customer may purchase in a month under the terms of its present water purchase contract 

with the Plant Board. 

c. Describe the changes, if any, that the Plant Board expects within the next three 

years in the level of water treatment capacity reserved for each of the customers listed in 

Item 12(a) and state the reason(s) for the Plant Board’s expectations. 

Witness(es): Herbbie Bannister, David Billings 

Response: Attached 

15. a. Identify the owner of the master meter(s) through which the Plant Board 

provides water to the customers listed in Item 12(a). 

b. State, for each customer listed in Item 12(a), the number of master meters that 

the Plant Board uses to provide water service to that customer. 

c. Identify the party who is responsible for maintaining these master meters. 

Witness (e s) : He rb b i e Ban n is t e r , David B i I I in g s 

Response: Attached 
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16. Provide a system map showing all the Plant Board’s facilities that are used to 

serve the customers listed in Item 12(a). This map shall, at a minimum, show all master 

meters, pumping stations, storage tanks, water transmission mains, and water distribution 

mains used to serve the customers listed in Item 12(a). The size of all mains shall be clearly 

indicated on this map. 

Witness (es) : He rb b i e Ban n ist e r, David B i I I i n gs 

Response: Attached 

17. State the portion, if any, of the Plant Board’s water main(s) that serves the 

customers listed in Item 12(a) that are gravity-fed. 

Witness(es): Herbbie Bannister, David Billings 

Response: Attached 

18. a. List the Plant Board’s water sales (in gallons) for each month of the previous 

36 months for each of its wholesale customers and for its retail customers. 

b. List the total amount billed by the Plant Board for water service for each month 

of the previous 36 months to each of its wholesale customers and to its retail customers. 

Witness(es): Shannon Taylor 

Response: Attached 

19. Provide the Plant Board’s current rate schedule for its retail customers and for 

each of its wholesale customers. 

Witness(es): Shannon Taylor 

Response: Attached 

20. Complete the table below: 
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The Plant Board 
Plant Use 
Line Loss (Unaccounted for) 
Sales to Retail 
Sales to Each Wholesale Customer 
ELKHORN WATER DlST (acct# 31429) 
FARMDALE WATER DlST (acct# 28221) 
FARMDALE WATER DlST (acct# 28222) 
FARMDALE WATER DISTRICT (acct# 28378) 
FARMDALE WATER DISTRICT (acct# 33036) 
NORTH SHELBY WATER C (acct# 28808) 
PEAKSMILL WATER DlST (acct# 28600) 
PEAKSMILL WATER DIST (acct# 30329) 
SOUTH ANDERSON WATER DIST (acct# 
31379) 
US 60 WATER DISTRICT (acct# 32489) 
US 60 WATER DISTRICT (acct# 32715) 
GEORGETOWN PUMP STATION (acct# 
26680) 

Total Produced and Purchased 

Total Sold 

Period Fiscal Year 
(7/1/2008- Ending 

64,220,850 56,228,179 

'70,580,829 
61,107,521 
112,656,422 

43,758,378 
393,636 

81,988,500 
2,006,029 

25,430,679 
128,186,989 
39,017,715 

202,735,680 

164,539,908 

78 , 943 , 600 
45,4 23 , 800 
98,088,800 
58,415,000 

904,200 
165,439 , 600 

872,800 

22,005,000 
139,925,100 

29,164,000 

133,539,000 

83 , 704,200 

2.963.914.735 I 2,682,482,800 

2,429,627,400 I 2,206,935,200 

Witness(es): Herbbie Bannister, David Billings, Shannon Taylor 

Response: Attached 

21. a. State whether the Plant Board provides unmetered water service to any 

entities (e.g., municipal buildings, fire departments, fire protection service). 

b. If unmetered service is provided, estimate the percentage of the total 

unmetered amount for each entity or type of service. 

Witness(es): Herbbie Bannister, David Billings 

Response: Attached 
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22. Provide a copy of the cost-of-service study upon which the proposed rate is 

based. 

Witness(es): Paul Herbert 

Response: Attached 

23. a. Identify the person who prepared the cost-of-service study upon which the 

proposed rate is based. 

b. Provide the preparer’s curriculum vitae. 

c. List all cases before the Commission in which the preparer has submitted a 

cost-of -se rvice study. 

d. List all utilities (municipal or public) for which the preparer has prepared a cost- 

of-service study. For each utility, identify the type of utility service (e.g., water or sewer) for 

which the report was prepared. 

Witness(es): Paul Herbert 

Response: Attached 

24. If the proposed rate is not based upon a cost-of-service study, describe how the 

Plant Board determined the proposed wholesale rate and state who participated in the 

determination. 

Witness(es): Not Applicable 

Response: Not Applicable 

25. a. State whether the proposed rate increase includes an adjustment for rate case 

expenses incurred in this proceeding. 

b. If the rate increase does not include an adjustment for rate case expenses, 

state whether the Plant Board will seek an adjustment to recover expenses incurred in 

litigating this proceeding. 



c. If the Plant Board will seek an adjustment to recover expenses incurred in 

litigating this proceeding, provide all actual and estimated rate case expenses. 

Witness(es): Paul Herbert, Shannon Taylor, Jim Smith 

Response: Attached 

26. Identify the section(s) of KRS Chapter 96 under which the Plant Board Municipal 

Utilities was formed and currently operates. 

Witness(es): Jim Smith 

Response: Attached 

27. Provide the minutes of each meeting of the Plant Board since January I, 2009 in 

which a proposed rate adjustment to the Plant Board’s wholesale customers was discussed. 

Witness(es): Jim Smith 

Response: Attached 

28. Provide a copy of all correspondence, electronic mail messages, or other written 

communications between the Plant Board and its wholesale customers since January 1, 

201 0 regarding revisions to the Plant Board’s wholesale rate. 

Witness(es): Jim Smith 

Response: Attached 

29. Provide all contracts for water service between the Plant Board and the entities 

listed in Item ‘12(a) that have not been filed with the Commission. 

Witness(es): Jim Smith, Herbbie Bannister 

Response: Attached 

30. a. State the annual effect of the proposed rate adjustment on the Plant Board’s 

revenues from wholesale water service to each of its wholesale water service customers. 
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b. Show all calculations made and state all assumptions used to derive the 

response to Item 30(a). 

Witness(es): Shannon Taylor, Paul Herbert 

Response: Attached 

31. a. Identify and explain pro forma adjustments to water operations. 

b. Provide the calculations for all pro forma adjustments to water operations. 

Witness(es): Shannon Taylor, Paul Herbert 

Response: Attached 

32. a. Identify and explain pro forma adjustments to shared expenses that include the 

water operations. 

b. Provide the calculations for all pro forma adjustments to shared expenses that 

include the water operations. 

Witness(es): Shannon Taylor, Paul Herbert 

Response: Attached 
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CERTIFICATION 

I, Hance Price, certify that I am the attorney supervising the preparation of these Responses on 

behalf of the Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board and that the Responses and attachments 

thereto are true and accurate to the best of my knowledge, information and belief formed after 

reasonable inquiry. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

N 4 n  ie h - c c .  
Hance Price 
317 West Second Street 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 

Attorney for Frankfort Electric and 
Water Plant Board 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
'7 ?2 

day of 3 6 -  \ A M Y  . 2011 a copy 
/ /  

I ,  Hance Price, certify that on the 

of this Response to the Commission's Order of December 17, 2010 was served by 

mail to Honorable Thomas A. Marshall, Attorney at Law, 212 Washington Street, P.O. 

Box 223, Frankfort, KY 40602, and by mail to Honorable Donald T. Prather, Mathis, 

Riggs & Prather, P.S.C. Attorneys at Law, 500 Main Street, Suite 5, Shelbyville, KY 

40065 and by hand delivery of an original and ten copies to Jeff Derouen, Executive 

Director, Kentucky Public Service Commission, 21 1 Sower Boulevard, P.O. Box 61 5, 

Frankfort, KY 40602-061 5. 

Hance Price 
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NSE TO PSC 

PSC CAS NO. 20 10-0048!? 



ITEM 1: 

Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Response to PSC Order Dated: 12/17/2010 

Case No. 2010-00485 

Provide the direct testimony, in written verified form, of each 
witness that the Plant Board intends to call at the scheduled 
hearing in this matter. 

Response: Ex. 1 -James W. Smith, General Manager 

Ex. 2 - Paul Herbert, Gannett Fleming - Exhibit No. PRH - 1 
referenced on page 4, line 112 of Mr. Herbert’s testimony is 
the cost of service study produced in response to Item 22. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In the Matter of: 

CASE NO. 201 0-00485 
APPLICATION OF THE FRANKFORT ) 
ELECTRIC AND WATER PLANT BOARD ) 
FOR AN ADJUSTMENT OF WHOLESALE RATES ) 

TESTIMONY OF JAMES W. SMITH GENERAL MANAGER 
OF FRANKFORT ELECTRIC AND WATER PLANT BOARD 

Q 1  Please state your name. 

A. James W. Smith 

Q 2  Where are you employed? 

A. I am employed as General Manager of the Frankfort Electric and Water Plant 

Board. My address is 317 W. Second Street, Frankfort, KY 40601. I have been 

employed as General Manager of the Plant Board since July, 201 0 and have 

approximately 30 years’ experience as a general manager. Prior to my 

employment with FEWPB, I was the General Manager of Middleborough Gas & 

Electric Department of Middleborough, Massachusetts and Utility Director of 

College Park Municipal Utilities near Atlanta, Georgia. 

Explain briefly the operation of the FEWPB. 

The Board is an independent, municipally owned utility. There are three divisions- 

electric, cable/telecommunications and water. Each division is operated as a 

separate unit and the rates for each unit are based on its revenues and expenses. 

Q 3  

A. 



3? 

34 

35 

36 

37 

38 

39 

40 

41 

42 

43 

44 

45 

46 

47 

48 

49 

50 

51 

52 

53 

54 

55 

Q 4  

increase for the wholesale water customers was necessary? 

As part of your duties were you responsible for the determination that a rate 

A. Yes. In an effort to determine whether the rates were generating sufficient 

revenue and whether the customer classes were paying the appropriate share of 

the revenue requirements, in February, 201 0 the Plant Board had already 

authorized Gannett Fleming to conduct a cost-of-service study for the purpose of 

determining whether a rate adjustment was necessary and whether a modification 

of the rate design was appropriate. I reviewed the findings and agreed a 

modification was appropriate. In September, 201 0 the cost-of-service study was 

presented to the Board indicating that a rate increase was necessary. 

What did the cost-of-service study indicate that the rate for the wholesale Q 5  

customers should be? 

A. The wholesale rate according to the cost-of-service study should be $2.000 per 

1,000 gallons. The present rate is $1.704 per 1,000 gallons. 

How many wholesale water customers does the Plant Board have and who are Q 6  

they? 

A. The Plant Board has seven (7) wholesale water customers: The City of 

Georgetown Municipal Water System, Elkhorn Water District, Peaks Mill Water 

District, Farmdale Water District, North Shelby Water District, U.S. 60 Water 

District and South Anderson Water District. 
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57 

58 

59 

60 

61 

62 

63 

64 

65 

66 

67 

68 

69 

70 

71 

72 

73 

74 

75 

76 

Q 7  Has notice been given to the water districts affected by this rate increase? 

Yes. On September 29, 201 0 letters were sent to all of the water districts affected 

by the rate increase notifying them of a public hearing which was to be held on 

October 19, 201 0. On October 19, 201 0, a public hearing was held. On 

November 16, 2010, the Board authorized the proposed rate increase. On 

November 18,201 0, the proposed rates were submitted to the Public Service 

Commission and notice of the filing of those proposed rates was given to each of 

the water districts. 

What rate is the Plant Board proposing for the water districts? 

A. 

Q 8  

A. $2.000 per 1,000 gallons. 

Q 9  

increased rate needed by the Plant Board? 

In general terms, why is the additional revenue reflected in the water districts’ 

A. Several factors have prompted the need for a rate increase. Notably, the results of 

the cost of service allocation are consistent with the cost of providing service to each 

customer class. Using class cost of service as the guideline, the proposed rate 

design continues the move of each class to its relative cost of service. 

Q 10 

customers? 

Are the costs discussed directly related to providing service to the wholesale 

A. Yes. The cost of service allocation distributes costs to the customer classifications 

in proportion to each classification’s use of the facilities, commodities and 

services. 
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78 

79 

80 

81 

82 

83 

84 

85 

86 

87 

8P 

89 

90 

91 

92 

93 

94 

9.5 

96 

97 

98 

99 

Q 11 

revenues used to offset expenses for the other divisions of the Plant Board, that is, the electric 

department and the cable department? 

Based upon your knowledge of the operations of the Plant Board, are water 

A. No. 

Q 12 Are water rates ever increased to offset losses in the other divisions? 

No. The rates of the water division are based solely upon the revenues and 

expenses of the water department and have no relationship whatsoever to the 

revenues and expenses of either the electric or the cable division. 

Based on your familiarity with the financial condition of the water department, is 

A. 

Q 13 

this rate increase necessary? 

A. Yes. The cost of service allocation demonstrates that the rate increase is 

necessary. 

What steps did you take to communicate with the water districts? 

I regard FPB’s water district customers as our business partners. While I have 

been General Manager of FPB for just 7 months, I have attempted to speak with 

our customers in order to understand their concerns. For example, on December 

7, 2010 I met with Intervenors’ counsel to discuss this matter. Moreover, I have 

instructed my Staff to work with Intervenors’ counsel and answer as many 

questions as possible informally. 

However, I would not expect many points of contention. The cost study in this 

matter was prepared in accordance with the methodology established in FPB’s last 

rate case (Case No. 2008-00250). That is, the study was prepared the same way 

and the $2.000 per 1,000 gallon rate was derived in the same fashion. There are 

Q 14 

A. 
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101 

102 

103 

104 

10.5 

106 

107 

108 Q 15 

109 A. 

110 

111 

112 

113 

114 

115 

116 

117 

118 

119 

120 

121 

122 

no differences between this cost study and the one submitted in Case No. 2008- 

00250. 

As good business partners, I expect the Intervenors to identify how the 

calculations, allocations, or methodology differ from that used in the previous 

cases such that any legitimate objections may be resolved prior to a hearing. 

However, to date, this has not been done and as such FPB asks that it be 

awarded the $2.000 per 1,000 gallons rate since it was derived using sound cost 

of service principles. 

Does this conclude your testimony? 

Yes. 
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124 

125 

126 

127 
128 
129 
130 
131 
132 
133 
134 
135 
136 
137 
138 
139 
140 

The Affiant, James W. Smith, after being duly sworn, states that the foregoing answers 

are true and accurate to the best of his abilities. 

FURTHER THE AFFIANT SAITH NOT. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me 
o f , - r A n U n w  

W 

My commission expires: 
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43 
44 
4.5 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 
51 
52 
s3 Q. 

54 A. 

5.5 

56 Q. 

57 A. 

sx Q. 

59 

60 A. 

61 

62 

63 

64 

6.5 Q. 

66 

67 A. 

68 

BEFORE THE KENTUCKY PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

RE: FRANKFORT ELECTRIC AND WAPER PL.ANT BOARD 

CASE NO. 2010-00485 

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF PAUL R. HERBERT 

Please state your name and address. 

My name is Paul R. Herbert. My business address is 207 Senate Avenue, 

Camp Hill, Pennsylvania. 

By whom are you employed? 

I am employed by Gannett Fleming, Inc. 

Please describe your position with Gannett Fleming, Inc. and briefly state 

your general duties and responsibilities. 

I am President of the Valuation and Rate Division. My duties and 

responsibilities include the preparation of accounting and financial data for 

revenue requirement and cash working capital claims, the allocation of cost of 

service to customer classifications, and the design of customer rates in 

support of public utility rate filings. 

Have you presented testimony in rate proceedings before a regulatory 

agency? 

Yes. I have testified before the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, the 

New Jersey Board of Public Utilities, the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, 



69 

70 

71 

72 

7 3 

74 

75 

76 

77 

78 

79 

80 

81 

82 

83 

84 

85 

86 

87 

88 

89 

90 

91 

92 

Q. 

A" 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

the Public Service Commissiot of West Virginia, the Kentucky Public Service 

Commission, the Iowa State Jtilities Board, the Virginia State Corporation 

Commission, the Tennessee Regulatory Authority, the California Public 

Utilities Commission, New Mexico Public Regulation, the Illinois Commerce 

Commission, the Arizona Corporation Commission, the Delaware Public 

Service Commission, the State of Connecticut Department of Public Utility 

Control, and the Missouri Public Service Commission concerning revenue 

requirements, cost of service allocation, rate design and cash working capital 

claims. A list of the cases in which I have testified is provided at the end of 

my direct testimony. 

What is your educational background? 

I have a Bachelor of Science Degree in Finance from the Pennsylvania State 

University, University Park, Pennsylvania. 

Woiild you please describe your professional affiliations? 

I am a member of the American Water Works Association and served as a 

member of the Management Committee for the Pennsylvania Section. I am 

also a member of the Pennsylvania Municipal Authorities Association. In 

1998, I became a member of the National Association of Water Companies 

as well as a member of its Rates and Revenue Committee. 

Briefly describe your work experience. 

I joined the Valuation Division of Gannett Fleming Corddry and Carpenter, 

Inc., predecessor to Gannett Fleming, Inc., in September 1977, as a Junior 

Rate Analyst. Since then, I advanced through several positions and was 

assigned the position of Manager of Rate Studies on July 1, 1990. On June 



9 3 

94 

9.5 

96 

97 

9 s  

99 

100 Q. 

101 

102 A. 

103 

104 

1 os 

106 

107 

10s Q. 

109 A. 

110 

111 

112 

11.3 

114 Q. 

115 A. 

116 

1, 1994, I was promoted to Vice President of the Valuation and Rate Division 

and on July 1 , 2007, I was promoted to my current position as President. 

While attending Penn State, I was employed during the summers of 

1972, 1973 and 1974 by the United Telephone System - Eastern Group in its 

accounting department. Upon graduation from college in 1975, I was 

employed by Herbert Associates, Inc., Consulting Engineers (now Herbert 

Rowland and Grubic, Inc.), as a field office manager until September 1977. 

Have you previously prepared a cost of service study for a case before the 

Commission? 

Yes, I have. I have prepared cost of service studies for Kentucky American 

Water Company in Case Nos. 2000-120, 2007-00143 and 201 0-00036, 

Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board, Case No. 2008-00250 and 

Northern Kentucky Water District in Case No. 2010-00094 . I have also 

incliided a list of cost of service studies that I have prepared for other utilities, 

located at the end of my direct testimony. 

What is the purpose of your testimony in this proceeding? 

The purpose of my testimony is to explain Frankfort Electric and Water Plant 

Board’s (FEWPB) cost of service allocation study for the regulated 

wholesale water utility operations and proposed regulated wholesale rate 

design set forth in Exhibit No. PKH-1. 

COST OF SERVICE ALLOCATION 

Briefly describe the purpose of your cost allocation study. 

The purpose of the study was to allocate the total water cost of service, 

which is the total revenue requirement, to the several customer classifica- 
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11s 

119 

120 

121 

122 

123 

124 

12s 

126 

127 

12s Q. 

129 A. 

130 

131 

132 

133 

134 

1.3s 

136 

137 Q. 

1.3s A. 

1.39 

140 

tions. In the study, the total costs were allocated to the residential, 

commercial, public authorities, sales for resale non-water producers and 

sales for resale water producers, private fire protection and public fire 

protection classifications in accordance with general I y accepted principles 

and procedures. The cost of service allocation results in indications of the 

relative cost responsibilities of each class of customers. The allocated cost 

of service is one of several criteria appropriate for consideration in designing 

customer rates to produce the required revenues. The results of my 

allocation of the pro forma cost of service as of June 30, 2009, and 

proposed customer rates to produce the pro forma revenue requirement as 

of that date are presented in the study. 

Please describe the method of cost allocation that was used in your study. 

The base-extra capacity method, as described in 2000 and prior Water 

Rates Manuals published by the American Water Works Association 

(AWWA), was used to allocate the pro forma costs. Base-extra capacity is a 

recognized method for allocating the cost of providing water service to 

customer classifications in proportion to the classifications' use of the 

commodity, facilities, and services. It is generally accepted as a sound 

method for allocating the cost of water service and was used by the 

Company in the Company's previous studies. 

Please describe the procedure followed in the cost allocation study. 

Each identified classification of cost in the pro forma cost of service was 

allocated to the customer classifications through the use of appropriate 

factors. These allocations are presented in Schedule B on pages 8 through 

- 5 -  
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147 

148 

149 
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151 

152 

153 

154 

1.55 

156 

157 

158 

159 

160 

161 

162 

16.3 

11. The items of cost, which include operation and maintenance expenses, 

taxes, debt service and capital projects, are identified in column 1 of 

Schedule B. The cost of each item, shown in column 3, is allocated to the 

several customer classifications based on allocation factors referenced in 

column 2. The development of the allocation factors is presented in 

Schedule C. I will use some of the larger cost items to illustrate the princi- 

ples and considerations used in the cost allocation methodology. Purchased 

electric power and treatment chemicals are examples of costs that tend to 

vary with the amount of water consumed and are thus considered base 

costs. They are allocated to the several customer classifications in direct 

proportion to the average daily consumption of those classifications through 

the use of Factor 1. The development of Factor 1 is shown in Schedule C 

on page 12. 

Other source of supply, water treatment and transmission costs are 

associated with meeting usage requirements in excess of the average, 

generally to meet maximum day requirements. Costs of this nature were 

allocated to customer classifications partially as base costs, proportional to 

average daily consumption, partially as maximum day extra capacity costs, 

in proportion to maximum day extra capacity, and, in the case of certain 

pumping stations and transmission mains, partially as fire protection costs, 

through the use of Factors 2 and 3. The development of the allocation 

factors, referenced as Factors 2 and 3, is shown in Schedule C, on pages 12 

through 15. 

- 6 -  
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181 

152 

1 s i  

184 

1 s5 

186 

1 S7 

Costs associated with storage facilities and the capital costs of 

distribution mains were allocated partly on the basis of average consumption 

and partly on the basis of maximum hour extra demand, including the 

demand for fire protection service, because these facilities are designed to 

meet maximum hour and fire demand requirements. The development of 

the factors, referenced as Factors 4 and 5, used for these allocations is 

shown in Schedule C,  on pages 16 through 19. 

Factor 4, used to allocate distribution mains, is based on the same 

volumes used in Factors 1 through 3. Factor 5, Allocation of Storage 

Facilities, uses the same basic methodology as Factor 4, although the fire 

demand weighting is based on the storage capacity for fire service as 

compared to the total storage capacity. 

Fire demand costs were allocated to public and private fire protection 

service in proportion to the relative potential demands on the system by 

public fire hydrants and private service lines as presented in Schedule C on 

page 32. 

Costs associated with pumping facilities and the operation and 

maintenance of mains were allocated on combined bases of maximum day 

and maximum hour extra capacity because these facilities serve both 

functions. For these costs, the relative weightings of Factor 3 (maximum day 

and fire) and Factor 4 (maximum hour) were based on the footage of 

transmission and distribution mains. For cost allocation purposes, mains 

larger than IO-inch were classified as serving a transmission function and 

mains IO-inch and smaller were classified as serving a distribution function. 

- 7 -  
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195 

196 

197 

198 

199 

200 
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202 

203 

204 

20.5 

206 

207 

20s 

209 

210 

The development of this weighted factor, referenced as Factor 6, is 

presented on page 20. 

Costs associated with meters were allocated to customer 

classifications in proportion to the capacity requirements of the sizes and 

quantities of meters serving each classification. The development of the 

factor for meters, referenced as Factor 8, is presented on page 21. Factor 9, 

Allocation of Services, was developed in a similar manner as Factor 8, 

except that the relative unit cost per foot by service size was used in order to 

weight the number of services by classification. Costs associated with public 

fire hydrants were assigned directly to the public fire protection class (Factor 

7), and costs associated with sales for resale non-water producers were 

assigned directly to the sales for resale non-water producers class (Factor 

11). 

Costs for customer accounting, billing and collecting were allocated 

on the basis of the number of customers for each classification, and costs 

for meter reading were allocated on the basis of metered customers. The 

development of these factors, referenced as Factor 12 and Factor 13, is 

presented on page 26. 

Administrative and general costs were allocated on the basis of 

allocated direct costs, excluding those costs such as purchased power and 

chemicals and waste disposal which require little administrative and general 

expense. The development of factors for this allocation, referenced as 

Factor 14, is presented on page 27. 

- 8 -  
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212 

213  
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216 

217 

218 

219  

220  Q. 

22 1 

222 A. 

22.3 

224  Q. 

225 

226 

227 A. 

2 2 s  

229 

230  

2.3 1 

2-32 

The original cost less depreciation of utility plant in service was 

allocated on the basis of the function of the facilities for the purpose of 

developing Factor 17. Factor 17 was used to allocate items such as taxes, 

debt service and capital projects. The development of Factor 17 is 

presented on pages 29 through 30. 

Factors 10, 14, 15 and 18, are composite allocation factors. These 

factors are based on the result of allocating other costs and are computed 

internally in the cost allocation program. Refer to Schedule C for a 

description of the bases for each composite allocation factor. 

What was the source of the total cost of service data set forth in column 3 of 

Schedule B? 

The pro forma costs of service were furnished by the FEWPB, and are set 

forth in various FEWPB exhibits. 

Refer to Schedule B, pages 13 and 17, and explain the source of the system 

maximum day and maximum hour ratios used in the development of factors 

referenced as Factors 2, 3 and 4. 

The ratios were based on a review of historic FEWPB data. The maximum 

day ratio of 1.80 times the average day approximates the ratio of maximum 

daily send-out experienced by the FEWPB in the last nine years. The 

maximum hour ratio of 2.5 times the average hour was estimated based on 

the relationship of system maximum hour ratios compared to system 

maximum day ratios for other similar systems. 

-9- 
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236 A. 
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240 Q. 

241 A. 

242 

243 

244 

24 5 

246 Q. 

247  

2 4 s  A. 

249 

250 

25  1 

252 

25.3 

2 54 

255 Q. 

256 

What factors were considered in estimating the maximum day extra capacity 

and maximum hour extra capacity demands used for the customer 

classifications in the development of Factors 2, 3 and 4? 

The estimated demands were based on judgment which considered field 

studies of actual customer class demands conducted for other utilities, field 

studies of similar service areas, and generally-accepted customer class 

maximum day and maximum hour demand ratios. 

Have you summarized the results of your cost allocation study? 

Yes. The results are summarized in columns 1, 2 and 3 of Schedule A on 

page 6. Column 2 sets forth the total allocated pro forma cost of service as 

of June 30, 2009, for each customer classification identified in column 1. 

Column 3 presents each customer classification's cost responsibility as a 

percent of the total cost. 

Have you compared these cost responsibilities with the proportionate 

revenue under existing rates for each customer classification? 

Yes. A comparison of the allocated cost responsibilities and the percentage 

revenue under existing rates can be made by comparing columns 3 and 5 of 

Schedule A. A similar comparison of the percentage cost responsibilities 

(relative cost of service) and the percentage of pro forma revenues (relative 

revenues) under proposed rates can be made by comparing columns 3 and 

7 of Schedule A , 

CUSTOMER RATE DESIGN 

What are the appropriate factors to be considered in the design of the rate 

structure? 

- 1 0 -  
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265 Q. 

266 A. 

267 

268 Q. 

269 A. 

270 

27 1 

272 Q. 

273 

274 A. 

275 

276 Q. 

277 

278 A. 

279 Q. 

280 

In preparing a rate structure, one should consider the allocated costs of 

service, the impact of radical changes from the present rate structure, the 

understandability and ease of application of the rate structure, community 

and social influences, and the value of service. General guidelines should 

be developed with management to determine the extent to which each of 

these criteria is to be incorporated in the rate structure to be designed, 

inasmuch as the pricing of a commodity or service is a function of 

management. 

Did management discuss rate design guidelines with you? 

Yes, they did. The guidelines were to increase rates to move toward the 

cost of service for each customer classification. 

Does the proposed rate design follow these guidelines? 

Yes, it does. The revenues under proposed rates reflect increases by class 

moving toward the cost of service, without creating radical changes in the 

rate structure. 

Have you prepared comparisons of present and proposed rates for each 

classification? 

Yes. Schedule D on page 33 of the cost allocation study presents 

comparisons of the present and proposed rates. 

What rate does your study indicate should be charged to the wholesale 

customers? 

$2.000 per 1000 gallons for purchases. 

Does this rate take into account facilities used to serve the wholesale 

customer class? 

- 1 1  - 



281 A. 

282 Q. 

283 

284 

285 A. 

286 Q. 

287 A. 

288 Q. 

289 A. 

Yes. 

Based upon your experience, is the method used in preparing the cost-of- 

sewice study for the FEWPB a generally-accepted method in the utility 

i n d us t r y ? 

Yes. 

Is it your opinion that the rate produced by this study is reasonable? 

Yes. 

Does this conclude your direct testimony? 

Yes, it does. 

290 

291 

292 
293 
294 
295 
296 
297 
298 
299 
300 
301 
3 02 
303 

The Affiant, ?QLLI fl- . ,&N bPWY after being duly sworn, states that 

the foregoing answers are true and accurate to the best of his abilities. 

FURJHER THE AFFIANT SAITH NOT. 

” 
Paul R. Herbert 

Subscribed and sworn to before me by ~ ~ L L I  t .  & iT/ud- this 

24 ’‘ day of Jt? (‘,umbtv I 2-010 . 

4-13 . a O l Z _  
My commission expires: 

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA 
Notarial Seal 

Jill E Gilbert, Notary Public 
East Pennsboro Twp , Cumberland County 1 My Commission Expires Sept. 13, 2012 

Member, Pennsylvania Association of Notaries 
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K i m  Field, C.P.A. 
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lndepcndcnt Auditor's Report 

Cliairiiian 
Members of tlie Electric and Water Plant Board 
Frankfort, Kentucky 

Wc have audited the coni arative statement of net assets of the Electric aiid Water Plant Board 01. the City 01' 
Frankfort, Kentucky. as o r J u n e  30, 2009 and 2008 and tlie related comparative statenients of revenues. expenses 
and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the reslynsihility 
ol'nianagemcnt. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on tliese financial statements based on our aut i t \ .  

We conductcd our audits i n  accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform tlie audits to obtain reasonable assurance ahout wlietlirr the 
financial statements are free of  material misstatements. An audit includes esamining. on a test basis, evidcncc 
supporiing tlic amounts aiid disclosures in  tlie linancial statements. An audit also includes assessing tlic accouiiting 
principles uscd and signilicaiit estimates made by management. as well as evaluating tlie ovcrall financial staicnicnts 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

I n  o u r  opinion, tlie financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the liriancial position 
ol' the lilectric and Water Plant Board of tlie City of Frankfort, Kcntuck as of June 30, 7009 and 1008 and thc 
cliangcs in  its linanciai position and its cash flows for t l ie years tlicn endei'in conformity wit11 accounting principles 
gcricrally accepted i n  tlie [Jnited States ot' America. 

Managenient's Discussion and Analysis i s  riot a i q u i r e d  part of the linancial stateinents but is supplciiicntal 
in formation rec uired by accounting principles generally accepted in  tlie United States of America. We liavc applied 
cerLain limited procedures, which consisted principally ut' inquiries of manaqenient regarding inct l iods of 
iiieasureiiieiit and presentation of the supplenicntal information I.lowever, we d id  not audit tlic iiifiwiiiatioii ;ind 
cxpi'ess no opinion on it. 

C)ur audits wcre conducted for tlie purpose of forinin0 an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a \\hole. 
tipplemental in  forination on pages 17 through 58 is presented for purposes of- additional analysis aiid is not a 
"ed part o f  tlic basic financial stateinents. Such intorination has been subjected to [lie atiditiiig procedurcs 

applied in the audits of  the basic financial stateiiieiits and, in  our opinion. is fairly statcd in  all inaterial icspects i n  
relation to tlic basic rinancial statcments taken as a whole. 

Ianuary 12. 20 IO 

- ~ _ _ _ - - -  ____I__ ~ - - - , - - . - - -  --- 
202 West Main Street, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 I P.O. Box 698, Frankfort, Keizfucky 40602-0698 

(502) 227-7395 I Fax (502) 227-8005 I www.ctmcpa.coni 



FRANKFORT ELECTRIC & WATER PLANT BOARD 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

INTRODUCTION 

The following discussion and analysis of the Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board’s financial performance provides an overview 
of the Board’s financial activities for the fiscal years ended June 30,2009 and 2008. 

This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the Board’s financial statements and accompanying notes, which 
follow this section 

The Board was established under Kentucky Revised Statues ( U S  96-176) as a combined Electric and Water System to operate, 
maintain, improve, and expand the respective facilities and began operations in 1943. In 1954 the Board created Community 
Television and appointed a separate Cable Board to provide Cable TV service to Frankfort and the surrounding area. In 1988, the 
Board took direct control of the Cable TV operation in order to provide additional services over a fiber optic network, as a public 
project (the Full Service Network). All three operations are combined together and presented on pages 7 to 9 of the Audit Report. 
Cable Telecommunications operations are separated from the Electric and Water operations on the audit report under “Supplemental 
Information” on pages 17 to 28. The Board has completed the upgrade of the cable system to fiber optics and is now able to provide a 
Full Service Network (FSN) with few exceptions, throughout the Cable Service Area. The Full Service Network includes Digital TV, 
HDTV, DVR, Broadband Service, Point to Point Fiber service, Security Service, and Local and Long Distance Telephone Service. 

The Full Service Network upgrade is being financed by a Master Credit Agreement with a credit line of $29.5 million dollars. 
Security for this financing is the Cable Plant exclusively and repayment will be from Cable revenues only. The Board began repaying 
fimds borrowed under the Master Credit Agreement in Fiscal Year 2005-06 in accordance with the agreement. The Electric and Water 
facilities and finances are specifically excluded as security in the Master Credit Agreement. In Fiscal Year 2007, the Board decided to 
refinance the five FSN notes to extend maturities in order to reduce principal payments and increase short-term cash flow. This was in 
response to increasing interest rates and pension expenses. These changes will enable the Cable Department to maintain the required 
minimum reserve as established by the Board while still funding the Capital Additions necessary to maintain and improve the Cable 
System. In addition to changing the maturities, the amendments on the FSN notes included an interest rate floor of 4.00% and a 
ceiling of 6.25%. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The assets of the Board exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $54,899,618 (equity). Of this amount, 
$48,947,308 is invested in Capital Assets, $1,439,849 is restricted for Debt Retirement, $414,078 is restricted for Retirement Plans, 
and $4,098,383 is unrestricted. 

The Board’s equity (net assets) increased $676,027 during the current fiscal year. The major changes from the prior year included: 
Sales to customers increased $736,981, Capital Contributions decreased $2,220,822, Electric Power Cost Expense decreased 
$829,602, and Interest Expense decreased $456,964. 

Revenues 
Gross income from sales, and other sources, was $69,386,996 for FY09. This represents a decrease of $1,488,478, or 2.10% from 
FY08. The major decreases were attributable to Electric Revenue $859,398 and Capital Contributions $2,220,822. The major 
increases were attributable to Basic Cable Revenue $458,908, Digital Basic Revenue $1 98,323, HSDS Revenue $674,222, and Dark 
Fiber Revenue $284,3 19. All three divisions of FPB performed work on the state US 421 road project in FY08 with only a minimal 
amount of work remaining in FY09 resulting in a significant reduction in Capital Contributions. 

ExDenses 
Total expenses were $68,710,969 for FY09. This represents an increase of $631,722, or .9% fromFY08. The major increases were 
attributable to Station Expenses $435,843 and Water Distribution Expenses $202,423. 

Operating Expenses generally refer to the ordinary and necessary business expenses incurred in the day-to-day operation of the Utility. 
Broad categories of these expenses are classified as “Operations and Maintenance”, “Engineering”, “Support Services”, “Office”, 
“Administrative”, “General”, and “Employee Benefits”. They include such things as system maintenance, fleet maintenance, office 
supplies, customer service, fiinge benefits, billing and accounting. These are current period expenses, which are not otherwise 
capitalized as part of a construction project having a service life greater than one year. The term Operating Expense does not include 
Interest Expense, which relates to financing decisions. 
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FPB’s Financial Statements are comprised of two components: 
0 Financial Statements; and 
0 “Notes” to the Financial Statements. 

Included as part of the Financial Statements are three different types (and names) of statements and their respective Notes. 

The Three Financial Statement Types: 

1. The “Balance Sheet” presents information on FPB’s assets and liabilities, with 
the difference between the two reported as Equity (which is also known in the Accounting profession as “Net 
Assets”). Over time, increases and decreases in Equity may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 
condition of FPB is improving or deteriorating. 

2. The %tatement of Revenues. Expenses. and Changes in Net Assets’’ presents 
information showing how FPB’s Equity changed between FYO8 and FY09. 
reported as the underlying events occur, regardless of the timing of cash flows ” This means that FPB’s revenues 
and its expenses are reported in the Financial Statements for some items that will result in cash flows (positive or 
negative) in some future year, but not this one. For example, take Accounts Payable and Accounts Receivable. 
Customers owed FPB money as of June 30,2009. This was reported as income in FY09 but the cash won’t be 
realized until the next fiscal year. On a similar note, FPB owed money to KU as of June 30,2009. This was 
reported as expense in FY09 but the cash won’t be expended until the next fiscal year. This is called the “accrual” 
basis if accounting and is further explained in Note A 

In contrast, most of us personally use the “cash” basis of accounting for our tax and returns and own personal 
finances. We include and deduct the money as we actua1Iy receive or disburse it. 

The “Statement of Cash Flows” presents the cash flow changes occurring during the FY09 and FY08 in “highly 
liquid” cash and investments, including certain restricted cash accounts or cash-like assets. “Highly liquid” means it 
is, or can quickly be, turned into useable cash. 

Results of FPB’s “operations are 

3. 

Notes to the Financial Statements: 

The “Notes to the Financial Statements” provide additional information that is essential for a full and complete understanding 
of the infomiation provided in the Financia1 Statements. The Notes to these Financial Statements can be found on pages 10 
to 16 of this report. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Assets 
FPB’s Total Assets decreased $1,802,297 from FY08. The major changes in Assets, as reported on the Audit, were in “Cash”, 
“Investments”, “Inventory”, “Billed User Fees” and “Property, Plant, and Equipment” net of Accumulated Depreciation. Reduced 
sales in Electric and Water explains the decrease in Unbilled User Fees. The downturn in the economy resulted in a near halt in 
contract development and reduced inventory needs. Property, Plant, and Equipment increased due to continued investment in our 
systems. 

Liabilities 
FPB’s Total Liabilities decreased $2,478,324 from FY08. The Audit Report indicates that the major change was in “Bonds Payable”. 
The decrease in Bonds Payable is due to no additional borrowing, increased principal payments on the FSN notes, and the continued 
repayment of the existing Water Bonds. The $I .85 million water BAN was renewed in FY07 for a term of 18 months, with the 
Board’s intention being to roll this BAN into another bond issue in the future. 

Net Assets 
As noted earlier, FPB’s assets exceeded its liabilities by $54,899,618 at the end ofFYO9. This represents an increase from FYO8 of 
$676,027, and as previously mentioned, increases or decreases in equity may, over time, serve as a useful indicator of FPB’s fmancial 
position. The disclaimer comes from the fact that being “land rich and cash poor” is not beneficial if the company needs liquidity for 
cash flow. On the other hand, if you have sufficient cash flow, “investing” in your electric, water, and cable systems (maintaining, 
expanding, replacing, upgrading, etc.) or land, is a good and prudent business practice. 
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A portion of FPB’s net Assets, $48,947,308, or 89%, reflect it’s investment in “Capital Assets”, such as transmission and distribution 
facilities, less any related debt used to acquire such assets that remained outstanding as of the end of FY09. FPB uses these Capital 
Assets to provided services to its owners/customers; consequently, these assets are not available for spending. Resources needed to 
repay the outstanding debt shown on the Balance Sheet must come from other sources, such as sales of water and cable services, since, 
obviously, the Capital Assets themselves cannot be used to pay such “long-term” liabilities. 

The “unrestricted” portion of FPB’s net assets is $4,098,383, or 8% of total Net Assets. This portion may be used to meet FPB’s 
ongoing obligations to creditors and ownerslcustomers. 

An additional portion of FPB’s Equity, $1,853,927, or 3%, represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they 
are used. $1,439,849 is reserved for debt repayment and $414,078 is reserved for retirement benefits for those few employees whom 
opted out of the CERS retirement plan. 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

FPB’s investments in capital assets as of June 30,2009 amounted to $85,514,990 (net of accumulated depreciation). This includes 
investment in transmission and distribution related infiastructure, as well as general items such as office equipment, vehicles, etc. 
Major capital assets events during the current fiscal year included: 

Electric 
*SCADA addition and two breaker replacements at East Main Substation 
*Rebuild of a large portion of transmission circuit #4 
*Reconductor and strengthen circuit between Reservoir and Benson Valley substations 
*Overall general distribution system improvements 

Water 
*Engineering for the Chemical Feed / OSG project at the Water Treatment Plant 
*Overall distribution upgrades and improvements 

Cable 
*Completion of digital simulcast in preparation for all-digital transition 
*DCTs for premium channel conversion and for Digital CableHDDVR 
*Completion of Fiber-to-the-Home project in the Lewis Ferry area 

General 
*Began construction of Maintenance Barn at WTP 
*Began remodel at Service Center 
*Outsource programmers to develop new Customer Service and Billing System 
*Backhoe L,oader - Water Department 
“Komatsu Trackhoe - Water Department 
*JCB Excavator - Water Department 
“Fleet replacement. (1 piclap & 1 crane truck in the Water Dept, 1 piclcup in the Cable Dept) 

LONG-TERM DEBT 

As of 6130109, FPB had long term bonded water debt outstanding of $8,885,000. This is debt backed by the electric and water 
revenues of FPB (revenue bonds). No changes occurred in this bonded debt other than the regularly scheduled principal payment of 
$580,000. 

As of 6/30/09, FPB had a long term bond outstanding for the Consolidated acquisition of $657,844. This is debt backed by the cable 
system. No changes occurred in this bonded debt other than the regularly scheduled principal payments totaling $236,778. 

As of 6130109, FPB had long term. notes outstanding with Farmers Bank of $25,174,838. This is debt backed by the cable system. 
FPB made regularly scheduled principal payments totaling $1,787,651. The Board refinanced three of the five FSN notes in FY09 in 
order to extend the maturity from 2016 to 2022 and to establish a new floor of 4.00% and a new ceiling of 6.25%. All five notes have 
now been refinanced. 

As of 6/30/09, FPB had a long term bond anticipation note (BAN) outstanding for the Water Department of $1,850,000. This is debt 
backed by the electric and water revenues of FPB. The Board currently makes interest paynients only on this BAN. The original 
BAN matured in February 2007 but, the Board decided to refinance this BAN for another 18 months with the intention of rolling this 
debt into a fiiture bond issue for the Water Department. 
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BUDGET 

Every year, the Board approves a 5-year budget far all operations of FPB. Revenues and Expenses are based on a five-year historical 
calculation (with some exceptions primarily in Cable) and current inflationary trends. There are major impacts to the Electric and 
Water operations due mainly to weather conditions, which cannot be accurately anticipated. The use of a 5-year historical period 
tends to result in an “average” year in growth, inflation, and prevailing weather conditions. It is a rare occurrence when “average” and 
actual coincide. Additionally, expenditures are divided between capital and expense items. When workflow calls for more 
expenditure on capital items than what was budgeted, expenses will typically be lower and net income will be higher but with no 
impact on reserves. The opposite is also true. 

Decreased sales resulted in lower than budgeted Electric Operating Revenues of $2,836,439. Capital Contributions came in at 
$3 16,335, or 83.2%, lower than the FY09 budget. Power Costs were $2,114,582 lower than budgeted but, Fuel Adjustments were still 
significantly higher than anticipated (.go% actual vs. .60% budget). Overall, the Electric Department had a net loss $1,389,949 
unfavorable to what was budgeted. 

Decreased sales resulted in lower than budgeted Water Operating Revenues of $370,825. The Water Distribution Department worked 
more time on maintenance projects than what was budgeted resulting in more charges to expense and lower charges to capital. 
Overall, the Water Department had net income $297,992 unfavorable to what was budgeted. 

For the most part, weather conditions have little impact on the Cable operations. Cable Operating Revenues were $56,443 lower than 
budgeted. Basic Service Revenue was $20,805 favorable to budget due to an unbudgeted rate increase of $1.30 for station fees on 
seven channels that we previously broadcast at zero cost. This was offset by decreased customer counts. Local Phone Revenue was 
unfavorable to budget $183,499 due to slower growth than anticipated. HSDS Revenue was $144,566 favorable to budget due to 
higher than anticipated customers taking faster speeds of modem service. Total Cable expenses were $121,761 less than budgeted, 
primarily due to a miscalculation on Digital Station Expense and delaying the purchase of a soft switch in the Telephony Department. 
Total expenses that were allocated to the Cable department were favorable $632,574 as a result of lower spending in computer 
expenses, administrative expenses, and FSN interest expense. Overall, the Cable Department had net income $781,068 favorable to 
what was budgeted. 

THE FUTURE 

Electric 
Due to the rising costs of materials and pension expenses, reduced SEPA credit, general inflation, and maintaining minimum reserves 
as established by the Board, coupled with a combined 11.7% rate increase from Kentucky Utilities, the Board implemented a 14% 
electric rate increase on July 1,2009. This rate increase occurred 6 months later than what was budgeted in the prior five-year plan 
but the rate is 12.75% higher than expected due to the unforeseen rate increase from KU. There are no further rate increases 
anticipated in the five-year plan. 

The primary goals of the Electric Department for FYI0 are to continue strengthening the transmissionldistiibution system for load- 
growth capacity, improved power quality and reliability. During FY 10, the Electric Department will continue to perfomi upgrades of 
transmission/distribution lines and facilities, specifically breaker replacements and evaluations of new meter technologies. The 
Department will continue to improve and expand the existing distribution substations to include increased SCADA functionality. This 
will give our system greater flexibility and redundancy. In FYlO, voltage conversions from 8.3kV to 13.2 kV will continue to 
improve voltage quality and load capacity. We will continue the aggressive tree trimming and spray programs to reduce tree related 
outages. The Electric Department does not forecast the addition of any employees over the next five years. 

Due to the rising costs of materials and pension expenses, general inflation, increased interest, principal, and debt service payments €or 
a new borrowing, and maintaining minimum reserves as established by the Board, the Board anticipates the need for regular rate 
adjustments every two years. The first rate increase is scheduled for April 2010. A rate increase is also planned for all customers in 
Jan 2012. With both of these rate increases, the county rate increase is anticipated to be at a lower figure in an effort to balance city 
and county water rates. The Water department will undergo a cost of service study in FY 10 for FY09 and the plan is to conduct these 
studies every two years in order to maintain rates necessary for the operations of the department while trying to minimize the need for 
large increases at any one time. The April 10 increase is 3 months later than what was budgeted in the prior five-year plan but 9.5% 
higher while the January 12 increase timing was not changed but the rate is expected to be 2.5% higher. We will continue to draw on 
our 1.0% loan fiom the KIA for the construction of our new Chemical Feed Facility with the bulk of the borrowing (approximately 
$6.4m) occuning in FY 10 and completion of the project in FYI 1. The Reservoir Replacement Project will require additional 
borrowing beginning in FY 1 1, The Board does not anticipate any problems with implementing rate increases or borrowing. 



The Water department will be focusing on beginning construction of the new Reservoir, finishing construction of the Chemical Feed 
Facility, and pursuing secondary water connection in order to address emergency andor drought conditions. The Water Department 
does not anticipate any personnel changes over the next five years. 

Cable Telecommunications 
The Cable Telecommunications Department expects to complete several prqjects over the next fiscal year. Those projects include: 
the rollout and completion of the “all-digital” cable television conversion, the continuation of the node division project, the 
engineering of phase one of a fiber-to-the-home extension in rural Franklin County, begin the construction of a new Headend facility 
on the east side of the Kentucky River and to comply with Federal, State, and Company regulations. 

New service offerings this fiscal year include the addition of digital and high definition programming to the cable lineup at the time in 
which the “all-digital” conversion is completed. The completion of the premium channel migration to digital receivers is expected to 
be completed with the conversion of HBO in early 2010. New broadband speeds of 20 megabit will be introduced on a limited basis 
to those areas in the community where the node division prqject has been completed. This new speed should be available to 6,000 
customers by the end of the fiscal year. 

Rate increases are planned for expanded cable programming to keep pace with the rising programming expenses. A $2 rate increase 
will also be implemented for DVR service. The FCC Network Access fee for local telephone will increase in fiscal year 2010 by $1. 
Broadband rates will not change in the 2010 fiscal year. 

Administrative and General 
Expenses for the Board’s Self-Insurance plan have remained relatively stable over the last four fiscal years. In FY 10, the Board has 
increased the budget for Self-Insurance by $53,500, with a 3% increase each year thereafter, understanding that one illness and/or 
accident could result in significant increases. In order to provide somewhat of a “cushion” for fluctuating claims, the Board has 
decided to f k d  the Self-Insurance fimd at the full budgeted amount each fiscal year, even if actual claims come in lower than 
anticipated. This is an attempt to keep unexpected high claims from taking a devastating toll on the Board’s reserves. 

The Board has experienced large increases in the employer contribution rate to KERS for employee pension. The rate went from 
13.50% in FYO9 to 16.16% in FY10, a 2.66% increase Based on actuarial studies, rates are still expected to climb to 20.66% in five 
years. The increase is right on target with what was calculated last year. This increase has been incorporated in the Board’s current 
five-year plan. 

Overall 
The Board has decided to move in the direction of becoming a “greener” company. As a result, $1 18,000 has been earmarked for 
green projects in FY 10. FPB will incorporate this directive into our constant mission of providing superior, reliable services to the 
community at the most reasonable prices possible. 
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Assets 
Cash & Cash Equivalents 
Investments 
Accrued Interest Receivable 
Receivables 
Billed user fees 
Unbilled user fees 
Advertising 
Other 

Inventory 
Prepaid Expenses 
Property, Plant, and Equipment 

Cable Acquisition Cost 
Unamortized Bond Discount 
Insurance Escrow Account 
Retirement Plan Assets: 

L.ess: Accumulated Depreciation 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments 

Total Assets 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Liabilities 

Accounts and Other Payables 
Accrued Expenses 
Customer Deposits 
Unearned Revenues 
Bonds Payable Due in One Year 
Long Term Debt 
Bonds & Bond Anticipation Note Payable 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 
Invested in capital assets 
Restricted for debt retirement, contracts, & capital additions 
Restricted for retirement plans 
Unrestricted 
Total Net Assets 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 

Electric & Water Plant Board of The City of Frankfort, Kentucky 
Comparative Statement of Net Assets 

June 30,2009 and 2008 

2008 - 2009 
$ 2,769,628 $ 

4,259,411 
6,278 

7,110,062 
1,054,300 

142,122 
285,032 

4,838,034 
602,117 

167,374,593 
(81,859,603) 

35 1,000 
167,155 
311,304 

86,512 

4,530,267 
3,882,489 

1 1,943 

7,326,728 
1,201,800 

171,984 
229,358 

4,986,454 
592,682 

161,352,080 
(75,964,762) 

491,400 
183,201 
224,294 

33,867 
327,548 374,005 

$ 107,825,493 $ 109,627,790 

$ 12,320,387 $ 12,409,063 
1,106,628 1,002,761 
2,267,268 2,162,677 

663,910 657,587 
4,473,7 14 3,137,763 

32,093,968 36,034,348 
52,925,875 55,404,199 

48,947,308 46,2 15,207 
1,439,849 1,316,121 

414,078 407,891 
4,098,383 6,284,372 

54,899,618 54,223,591 

$ 107,825,493 $ 109,627,790 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financia1 statements. 
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Operating Revenues 
User Fees 

Electric 
Water 
Cable 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 
Electric 
Water 
Cable 

Total Operating Expenses 

Net Income From Operations 

Non-Operating Revenues(Expenses) 
Net Merchandise Sale 
Rental Revenue 
Interest Revenue 
Other Non-Operating Revenue 
Interest Expense 
Retirement Plan Net Loss 

Total Nan-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Income (Loss) Before Contributions 

Capital Contributions 

Change in Net Assets 

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 

Net Assets - End of Year 

Electric & Water Plant Board of The City of Frankfort, Kentucky 
Comparative Stateinent of Revenues, Expenses, and 

Changes in Net Assets 
For The Years Ended June 30,2009 and 2008 

2009 2008 

$ 40,201,361 $ 41,060,752 
7,645,773 7,632,125 

20,154,458 18,57 1,734 

68,001,592 67,264,611 

41,835,702 42,232,269 
7,24 1,538 6,913,611 

17,798,941 16,641,565 

66,876,181 65,787,445 

1,125,411 1,477,166 

8,109 35,900 
9,737 9,951 

92,547 189,805 
563,255 439,408 

(1,834,788) (2,291,752) 
6,187 9,408 

(1,154,953) (1,607,280) 

(29,542) (130,114) 

705,569 2,926,39 1 

676,027 2,196,277 

54,223,59 1 5 1,427,3 14 

$ 54,899,618 $ 54,223,591 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Cash Received from Users and Customers 
Cash Received from Other Non-Operating Revenues 
Cash Payments for Employee Services and Benefits 
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services 
Cash Payments for Other Non-Operating Expenses 

Electric & Water Plant Board of The City of Frankfort, Kentucky 
Comparative Statements of Cash Flows 

For The Years Ended June 30,2009 and 2008 

2009 2008 

$ 68,456,525 $ 67,935,528 
1,379,217 3,601,455 

(13,513,480) (4,154,440) 
(46,946,677) (55,858,827) 
(1,828,601) (2,282,343 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities - 7,546,984 I 9,241,372 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Purchases of property, plant & equipment 
Purchases of securities 

(6,233,082) (7,519,822) 
(330,465) (676,120) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities (6,563,547) (8,195,942) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Increase in Bond/Note Indebtedness (2,604,421) (2,273,024) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (2,604,421) (2,273,024) 

Net increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,620,984) (1,227,594) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 4,788,428 6,016,022 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 3,167,444 $ 4,788,428 

Reconciliation of Operating Income ( Loss)) to Net Cash Used by Operating Activities 
Operating Income (Loss) $ 676,027 $ 2,796,277 
Adjustment to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to 

Net Cash Provided (Used) in Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 6,105,402 5,9 18,407 
Amortization 156,446 156,446 

(1ncrease)Decrease in inventory 148,420 (476,586) 
(1ncrease)Decrease in prepaid expenses (9,435) 18,366 
Increase/(Decrease) in accounts and other payables (88,676) 125,165 
Increase/(Decrease) in accrued expenses 103,867 32,380 
Increase/(Decrease) in customer deposits 104,591 150,564 
Increase/(Decrease) in unearned revenues 6,323 60,610 

(Increase)Decrease in receivables 344,019 459,743 

Net Cash Provided (Used)) by Operating Activities $ 7,546,984 $ 9,24 1,3 72 

Non-Cash Capital & Financing Activities 
In 2009 and 2008, capital contributions consisted of $705,569 and $2,926,341 respectively. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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Electric & Water Plant Board Of The City of Frankfort, Kentucky 
Notes To The Financial Statements 

June 30,2009 

Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board was formed in April, 1943 through the acquisition by the City of Frankfort, of the entire 
capital stock of the Tri-City Utilities Company. The company was dissolved immediately after the acquisition of the ca ita1 stock. 
The roperties and the operation of the combined electric and water system purchased were laced under the control of tte Electric 
and &ater Plant Board, which consists of five members appointed by the Mayor and approvedgy the City Commissioners. Since 1946 
the Electric and Water Plant Board operates as an independent entity under the provisions of the Kentucky Revised Statutes 96.172 
through 96.188. The Electric and Water Plant Board produces its own water supply and purchases electricity from the Kentucky 
Utilities Company. On January 1, 1988, the Electnc and Water Plant Board acqulred the assets and interests of Community Cable 
Services, Inc. Previously, the cable system was operated as an independent subsidiary of the Electric and Water Plant Board, and 
controlled b a se arate Board of Directors. On January 1, 1989, the Electric and Water Plant Board assumed the ownership of the 
North Woodlfard &ate1 District facilities in consideration for the assumption of its obligations and liabilities. The Kentucky Public 
Service Commission approved the ac uisition on October 6, 1988. The Electric and Water Plant Board bills and collects sewer 
charges for the City of Frankfort and ~$001 tax for the local city and county school boards. 

The financial statements of the Electric & Water Plant Board of the Crty of Franlcfort have been prepared in conformity with enerally 
accepted accounting principles (GAM) as a lied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (8ASB) is 
the accepted standard-settin body for esta$%shing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles The significant 
accounting principles and pokies utilized by the Board are described below: 

The Reportinn Entity 

The Electric and Water Plant Board is not considered a component unit of the City of Frankfort. The Electric and Water Plant Board 
operates under the provisions of the Kentucky Revised Statutes mentioned above. Additionally, the City of Frankfort does not 
exercise financial, budgetary, accounting or administrative controls over the Electric and Water Plant Board. Therefore, the financial 
statements of the Electric and Water Plant Board are not included in the financial statements of the City of Frankfort. 

On July 1,2002, the Board adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 "Basic Finuncial 
Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis -for Stute and Local Goveriments " Statement 34 established standards for 
external funancial reporting for all state and local governmental entities which includes a statement of net assets, a statement of 
activities and changes in net assets, and a statement of cash flows. It requires the classification of net assets into three components - 
invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; aiid unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows: 

e Invested in ca ita1 assets, net ojrelated debt - This component of net assets consists of capital assets, including restricted capital 
assets, net ofaccumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other 
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent 
related debt proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds are not included in the calculation of 
invested in capital assets, net of related debt Rather, that portion of the debt is included in the same net assets component as the 
unspent proceeds. 

Restricted - This component of net assets consists of constraints placed on net asset use through external constraints imposed by 
creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints 
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted net assets - The Component of net assets consist of net assets that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or 
"invested in capital assets, net of related debt" 

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting rinciples requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and discPosure of contmgent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

On July 1, 2002, the Board also ado ted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 33, Accounting 
and Finuncial Reporting for Nonexc$ange Transactions This statement requires that capital contributions to the Board be presented 
as a change in net assets. 

The adoption of Statement No. 34 and Statement No 33 affected the classification of net assets in accordance with the statements and 
the presentation of capital contributions as a change in net assets. The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2002 were 
restated to reflect the adoption of Statement No 34 and Statement No. 33. 

Fund Accounting 

The Electric and Water Plant Board is accounted for as an enterprise fund. Enterprise fimds are used to account for operations (A) that 
are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs 
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges, or (B) where the governing body has decided that eriodic determination of revenues earned, expenses 
mcuned, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public potcy, management control, accountability, or other 
purposes. 

a 
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Electric & Water Plant Board Of The Ci of Frankfort, Kentucky 

June 30,2009 
Notes To !? he Financial Statements 

Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Property, Plant, Equipment, and Long-Term Liabilities 

The accountin treatment applied to property, plant, e uipment and long-term liabilities associated with a fund are determined by its 

means that all assets and liabilities associated with their activity are included on tieir balance sheets. A11 property, plant and 
equipment are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Depreciation is provided in 
the enterprise fund in amounts sufficient to relate the cost of the depreciable assets to operations over their estimated service lives on 
the straight-line basis. The service lives by type of assets are as follows: 

measurement focus. Enterprise funds are accounted P or on a cost of services or “Ca ita1 Maintenance” measurement focus. This 

Structure and Improvements 
Electric Distribution Systems 
Water Distribution Systems 
Cable Distribution System 
Furniture and Equipment 

30 years 
30 years 
50 years 
10 years 

4- 10 years 

Basis of Accounting 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. 
Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made. 

Enterprise h d s  are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues and the related assets are recognized when earned 
rather than when received. Expenses and the related liabilities are recognized when the obligation is incurred rather than when paid. 

Electric and water fees are recorded as revenues when the customers are billed Telecommunications fees are billed one month in 
advance, and therefore are recorded as unearned revenues when billed. 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The Electric and Water Plant Board follows these procedures in establishing budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 

1. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for all funds 
2. A statement of revenues, ex enses and changes in retained earnings - budget and actual - is presented for analytical 

purposes in the supplementafinformation section of this report, and is not intended to be a financial statement presented 
in conformity with general1 accepted accounting nnci les. 

3. The Board of Directors of tze Electric and Water $ant foard approves the budget of the Electric and Water Plant Board. 
4. Unused appropriations of the annual budget lapse at the end of the years. 
5. The budgeted amounts shown in the financial statements are the final authorized amounts as revised during the year. 

Revenue Requirements 

The Electric and Water Plant Board is regulated by Kentucky Revised Statute 96.182 concerning the application of revenues earned by 
the Board. The provisions of Kentucky Revised Statute 96.1 82 are as follows: 

Subject to the provisions of outstanding bonds and contracts, the Board shall apply all funds derived 
payment of operating expenses, (2) to the payment of band interest and retirement, (3) to sinking 
maintenance of a fund to meet depreciation and the improvements and extension of the plant in an amount e 
the undepreciated book value of its property, (5) to the maintenance of a cash working fund equal to 
the payment of other obligations incurred in the operations and maintenance of the plant and the furnishings of service. 

Purpose of Various Internal Funds 

Operating Funds 

Chapter 96 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes provides that all revenues of the system shall be placed in t h i s . h d  as collected. 
Distributions to other funds are made upon approval of the Electnc and Water Plant Board in accordance with the 
requirements of each h d .  

This fund was created for the purpose of paying expenses of operating and maintaining the combined water works, electric 
power, cable, and fill1 service network systems. The amount necessary to meet these expenses is transferred to this fund as 
needed from the Revenue Fund accounts. Approval of expenditures from this fund is made by the Board upon presentation 
of request for reimbursement to this fund. 

(1) Water and Electric Revenue Fund 

(2) Operations and Maintenance Fund 

Restricted Funds 

(1) Electric and Water Revenue Bonds and Interest Sinking Fund 
This fund was established in accordance with Kentucky Revised Statute 96.182. 
accumulated over a ten year period to equal the average annual interest and principal requirements for such then outstanding. 

It provides that a reserve is to be 
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Electric & Water Plant Board Of The City of Frankfort, Kentucky 
Notes To The Financial Statements 

June 30,2009 

Note A - Summar of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
Cash, Cash Eauivagnts and Investments 
The Electric and Water Plant Board maintains a cash account for each of the internal funds described in Note A above. Additionally, 
some of these internal funds hold investments which are stated at cost. For the purpose of these financial statements, the Board 
considers all highly liquid investment vehicles with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Statutes 
require that financial instihitions pledge a proved securities to secure those funds on deposit in an amount e ual to the amount of 

and investments were covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held in the pledging institution’s trust department 111 the 
Board’s name. 
The following is a chart categorizing the investments in order to give an indication of the level of risk assumed b the Board at June 
30, 2009 and 2008. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are {eld by the Board’s 
custodial agent in the Board’s name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by 
the counterparty’s trust de artment or agent in the Board’s name. Category 3 includes unmsured and unregistered mvestments for 
which the securities are he& by the counterparty or by its department or agent, but not in the Board’s name. 

those funds. At the end of the fiscal year, i!ie carrying amount of the Board’s deposjts and investments. were $7, a 29,039. All deposits 

2009 Category - 
1 2 3 - Carrying Amomt Market Value -~ 

U.S. Government Securities $ 4,152,000 $ $ $ 4,152,000 $ 4,165,344 

107,412 107,4 12 Certificates of Deposit 107,412 - - -~ 

$ 4,259,412 $ $ $ 4,259,412 $ 4,272,756 

2008 Category 
1 2 3 Carryino Amotmt Market Value - ~ - - -  

U.S. Government Securities $ 3,780,081 $ $ $ 3,780,081 $ 3,780,081 

Certificates of Deposit 102,408 102,408 102,408 

$ 3,882,489 $ $ $ 3,882,489 3,882,489 --- 
The Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board Revised Retirement Plan records as cash and cash equivalents all highly liquid 
investmcnt vehicles with an ori inal maturity of three months or less. Marketable securities are camed at cost including remiums and 
discounts on cor orate bonds. +he premiums and discounts are not material in relation to the investment taken as a whoye. Therefore, 
premiunis and &counts have not been amortized. All securities are held in trust by Farmers Bard? & Capital Trust. Company, 
Frankfort, Kentucky. Under the terms of the retlrement plan, the trustee has the power to hold, mvest, reinvest, purchase insurance on 
the lives of members, control, and disburse funds as at that time shall be set forth in the Trust Agreement. 

The following is a chart cate orizing the Retirement Plan’s investment in order to give an indication of level of risk assumed by the 
Plan at June 30,2009 and 2088. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by 
the Plan’s custodial agent in the Plan’s name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are 
held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent in the Plan’s name. Shown in this category are investments with Farmers Bank & 
Capital Trust Co. which were acquired b the merger of C o v u n i t y  Service’s plan into the Plant Board plan. Category 3 includes 
uninsured and unregistered investments fy or which the securities are held by the counterparty or by its mist department or agent, but 
not in the Plan’s Nabe. 

U.S. Government Securities 
Corporate Bonds 
Mutual Funds 

U.S. Government Securities 
Corporate Bonds 
Mutual Funds 

2009 Category 
1 2 3 Carrying Amount Market Value 

$ 98,340 $ $ $ 98,340 $ 107,828 
150,020 150,020 1 2 1,013 

- 79,188 77,981 __-- 79,188 

$ 327,548 $ $ $ 327,548 $ 306,822 

2008 Category 

1 2 3 Cawing. Amount Market Value 

$ 148,225 $ $ $ 148,225 $ 152,496 
150,020 150,020 136,273 
75,760 75,760 74,554 

$ 374,005 $ $ $ 374,005 $ 363,323 
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Electric & Water Plant Board Of The City of Frankfort, Kentucky 
Notes To The Financial Statements 

June 30,2009 

Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Inventory 

Materials and supplies inventory are stated at lower of cost or market using average cost to detemiine unit cost on all items with the 
exception of chemicals. 

Accumulated Compensated Absences 

It is the Board's policy to permit em loyees to accumulate limited amounts of earned but unused vacation pay which will be paid to 
employees upon separation fkom the Eoard's service. In enterprise funds, the cost of vacation pay is accrued in the period in which it 
is earned. 

Pension Plans 

The Board became a member of the County Employees' Retirement System (CERS) on July 1, 1988. Eligible em loyees were 
enrolled in CERS on that date. Both em loyer and the employee contribute to this plan. The total estimated cost oI)entering the 
system as of July 1, 1988 was $2,989,32!. The original plan for entering the system required annual ayments for 24 years firom 
funds available in the Electric and Water Plant Board Retirement Plan and the Board made the annuarpayments and aid off the 
balance. owed in 2007. The retirees currently bein paid benefits by the previously funded Electric and Water Plant BoarKRetirement 
Plan will continue to receive their monthly benefits from this retirement plan. The Board does not make any payments from the 
operating accounts. 

Restrictions of Net Assets 

2009 2008 

1) Revenue Bond Sinking Reserve $ 1,439,849 $ 1,136,12 1 
2) Retirement Plan Assets 414,078 407,89 1 

Total Restricted Net Assets $ 1,853,927 $ 1,544,O 12 

Proiects and Funding 

Schedules of the bond principal and interest maturities of these bond issues are presented as supplemental information to this report. 

General Obligation Bonded Debt Service 

The Board maintains a bond interest redem tion reserve fund for the retirement of bonded indebtedness. The transfer and reserve 
requirements of these fimds have been descnied previously. 

Comparative 

Comparative data for the prior year has been presented in the accompanying financial statements in order to provide an understanding 
of changes in the Board's financial position and operations. 

Allowance for Uncollectible Amounts 

The Board records an allowance for doubtful accounts in the fmancial statements. The allowance for doubtful accounts at June 30, 
2009 and 2008 was $16,100 and $23,100, respectively. 
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Electric & Water Plant Board Of The City of Frankfort, Kentucky 
Notes To The Financial Statements 

June 30,2009 
Note B - Property, Plant and Equipment 

The following is a summary of the property, plant and equipment as of June 30,2009 and 2008: 
Property, Plant & Equipment 

Description ,_ June 30,2008 Additions Retirements June 30,2009 

Water Distribution System 
Water Treatment Plant 
Electric Distribution System 
Structures & Improvements 
Transportation Equipment 
Office Furniture & Equipment 
Tools, Shop, Garage & Store Equipment 
Laboratory Equipment 
Power Operated Equipment 
Communication Equipment 
Miscellaneous Equipment 
Cable Division Assets 
Land & Land R.ights 
Computer Equipment 

Total Property, Plant & Equipment 

Accumluated Depreciation: 

Water Distribution System 
Water Treatment Plant 
Electric Distribution System 
Structures & Improvements 
Transportation Equipment 
Office Furniture & Equipment 
Tools, Shop, Garage & Store Equipment 
Laboratory Equipment 
Power Operated Equipment 
Communication Equipment 
Miscellaneous Equipment 
Cable Division Assets 
Land & Land Rights 
Computer Equipment 

--.- Description ~ . - -  

36,752,831 
11,551,407 
52,635,604 

2,423,03 5 
4,146,936 
6,773,307 

419,794 
52,192 

2,O 1 0,567 
347,292 
705,310 

4 1,792,240 
585,848 

1,155,717 
$ 16 1,352,080 

June 30,2008 
$ 11,355,364 

5,370,138 
27,419,670 

1,457,064 
2,975,901 
S,242,14 1 

388,622 
51,628 

1,755,185 
238,073 
648,117 

18,878,258 

--- 

184.60 1 

890,648 
636,934 

1,039,028 
140,728 
19,542 

6 22 

217,212 

36,7 19 
2,520,3 58 

(12,743) 

(56,492) 

37,64 3,479 
12,188,341 
53,674,632 
2,563,763 
4,153,735 
6,773,929 

41 9,794 
52,192 

2,17 1,287 
347,292 
742,029 

44,3 12,598 
585,848 

1,745,67 1 - ---- - 589,954 
$ 6,091,745 $ (69,235) $ 167,374,590 

Additions -. 
$ 718,169 

237,284 
1,335,335 

115,858 
263,123 
376,700 

7,918 
4 84 

126,9 52 
2 1,000 
39,960 

2,560,9 70 

Retirements June 30,2009 
$ - $ 12,073,533 

5,607,422 
(9.5) 28,754,910 

1,572,922 
3,05 3,7 1 1 
5,618,841 

396,540 
52,112 

1,882,137 
25 9,073 

(433 44) 683,733 
2 1,43 9,228 

( 1 85,3 13) 

280,840 46 $44 1 
$ 6,084,593 $ (189,752) 81,859,603 
- - ~  

Total Accumulated Depreciation $ 7 5,964,762 
-~ 

Note C - Bonds Payable 
The aimual requirements to retire bonded debt as of June 30,2009 and 2008 are as follows: 

- m - --. 2009 
.____- 

2010 $ 4,473,714 2009 $ 3,137,763 
2x1 28w337 2010 5,@239 
2012 2,814,575 201 1 3,8547607 
2013 2,715,000 2012 3,854,202 
2014 2755,000 2013 3,736,374 

?fiereafter 2l,ao;?so6 7llfmfk 16Wm 
TO24 $ 36567,682 Total $ 39,lQlll 
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Electric & Water Plant Board Of The City of Frankfort, K.entuclcy 
Notes To The Financial Statements 

June 30,2009 

Note 6: - Bonds Payable (Continued): 

Payments on Long-Term Debt for the fiscal year ended June 30,2009 and 2008 are as follows: 

2009 2008 

Debt June 30.2008 

Cmlidated Note Variable Interest Rate 
1999 Bond Issue Variable Jnterest Mes 
FSNNote 1 Variable Interest Rates 
FSNNote 2 Variable Interest Rates 
FSNNote 3 Variable Interest Rates 
FSNNote4 Variable Interest Rates 
FSNNote 5 Variable Interest Rates 
Water BANVariable Interest Rate 

$ 894,622 
9,465,000 
3,830,000 
6,929,824 
5,290,890 
6,769,966 
4,141,809 

-. 1,850,000 

$ 39,172,111 

Additions & P a - *  June 30,2009 

$ (236,787) $ 657,835 
(5807QQO) 8,885,000 
(258,(w 3,572,000 
(398,704) 6,53 1,120 
(417,374) 4,873,5 16 
(389,500) 6,380,466 
(324,064) 3,817,745 

1,850,000 

$ - $  (2,604,429) $ 36,567,682 
~”~~ 

From July 1, 1998 to June 30, 2007 the Plant Board entered into bond anticipation notes with Farmers Bank and Capital Tnist 
Company. The purpose of these notes was to enable the Plant Board to work on capital additions for the Full Service Network. The 
balance of the bond anticipation notes at June 30, 2009 totaled $25,174,838 and at June 30,2008, the notes totaled $26,962,491. This 
amount is included in long-term debt. 

In 2006, the Plant Board entered into a bond antici ation note with the Republic Bank.for a water project in the amount of $1,850,000 
All funds were drawn and used in the project and $e Plant Board is currently making interest-only payments on the debt. 

Note D - Insurance Escrow Account 

The insurance escrow account is a liability set up to account for the possibility of future insurance claims. 

Note E - Frankfort Plant Board Municipal Projects Corporation 

In October of 1999, the Board of Directors of the Electric and Water.Plant Board formed the Frankfort Plant Board Municipal Projects 
Corporation with the purpose of authonzig and ap roving the initial financing of the costs of the new improvements to and 
expansions of the Municipal Cable Television of the Pyant Board. The initial financing amounted to $4,130,000 by means of a lease 
between the Corporation, as lessor, and the Plant Board, as lessee. The Corporation will, provide the lease for the cable system, as 
improved and expended, to the Plant Board, and authorize the assignment of the Corporation’s rights and interests under the lease to 
the Fanners Bank & Capital Trust Company. 

This authorization is accomplished by means of an instrument of assignment from the Corporation to the bank as assignee in 
consideration of the bank’s advance of assignment roceeds sufficient to pay the costs of improving and financing the system. All 

Note F - Retirement Plans 

All employees are covered under the County Employee’s Retirement System (CERS), a cost sharing, multiple-em loyer, public 
employers retirement s stem established under the rovisions of Kentucky Revised Statute Section 61.645. Funding For the plan is 
provided through payrol withholdings of 5.00% a n l a  Board contribution of 13.50% of the employee’s total compensation subject to 
contribution. 

The Board’s total payroll for the year was $1 0,414,853. The contribution requirement for CERS for the year ended June 30,2009 was 
$1,948,288 which consisted of $1,406,005 from the Board and $520,744 from the employees. Benefits under both plans will vary 
based on fiial compensation, years of service, and other factors as fully described in the plan documents. 

The “pension benefit obligation” is a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension benefits which is adjusted for the 
effects of prqjected salary increases and ste rate benefits that are estimated to be payable in the future as a result of employee service 
to-date. The measure, which is the actuanaypresent value of credited projected benefits, is intended to help users assess the pensions’ 
h d i n g  status on a going-concern basis, assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and make 
comparisons among the plans and employers. 

Benefits fulIy vest on reaching five years of service for non-hazardous employees. Aspects of benefits for non-hazardous employees 
include retirement after 27 years of service or age 65. Aspects of benefits for hazardous employees include retirement after 20 years 
of service or age 55 

accounting for capital costs, lease costs, and bank in B ebtedness are shown as a part of these financial statements. 
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Electric & Water Plant Board Of The City of Frankfort, Kentucky 
Notes To The Financial Statements 

June 30,2009 
Note G - Deferred Compensation 

Eligible employees can participate in deferred compensation lans administered by the Kentucky Public Employees’ Deferred 

18A375 to provide administration of tax-sheltered supplemental retirement plans for all state employees, public school and university 
employees, and employees of local political subdivisions that have elected to participate. 

These deferred compensation plans permit all full-time employees to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred 
com ensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. Participation by eligible 
empfoyees in the deferred compensation plan is voluntary. 

Historical trend information showing the Kentucky Public Employees’ Deferred Compensation Authority’s progress in accumulating 
sufficient assets to pay benefits when due is presented in the Kentucky Public Em lo ees’ Deferred Compensation Authority’s annual 
financial report, A copy of this report may be re uested by writing Kentucky Pubpic Smployees’ Deferred Compensation Authority at 
101 Sea Hero Road, Suite 100, Frankfort, KentuJcy 40601-8862, or by telephone at (502) 573-7925. 

Com ensation Authority. The Kentucky Public Employees’ De P erred Compensation Authority is authorized under KRS 18A.230 to 
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Electric & Water Plant Board 
Of The City Of Frankfort, Kentucky 

Supplemental Information 



Assets 
Cash & Cash Equivalents 
Accrued Interest Receivable 
Receivables 

Billed user fees 
Unbilled user fees 
Advertising 
Other 

Inventory 
Prepaid Expenses 
Property, Plant, and Equipment 

Cable Acquisition Cost 
Unamortized Bond Discount 
Insurance Escrow Account 
Retirement Plan Assets: 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments 

Total Assets 

Liabiliites and Net Assets 
Liabilities 

Accounts and Other Payables 
Accrued Expenses 
Customer Deposits 
Unearned Revenues 
Boads Payable Due in One Year 
L,ong Term Debt 

Total Liabilities 
Bonds and Bond Anticipation Note Payable 

Net Assets 
Invested in capital assets 
Restricted for debt retirement, contracts, & capital additions 
Restricted for retirement plans 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 
Total Liabilities and Net Assets 

Electric & Water Plant Board Of The City of Frankfort, Kentucky 
Statement of Financial Position - Electric &Water, Cable 

June 30,2009 

Electric &Water Cable Total 
$ 6,141,749 $ 887,290 $ 7,029,039 

4,522 1,756 6,278 

5,122,343 
1,054,300 

269,742 
3,962,489 

414,046 
116,787,958 
(55,861,839) 

167,155 
162,538 

1,987,719 

142,122 
15,290 

875,545 
188,071 

50,586,635 
(25,997,764) 

351,000 

148,766 

7,110,062 
1,054,300 

142,122 
285,032 

4,838,034 
602,117 

167,374,593 
(81,859,603) 

351,000 
167,155 
3 11,304 

86,5 12 86,5 12 
327,548 

$ 78,639,063 $ 29,186,430 $ 107,825,493 
- -  327,548 

$ 10,647,944 $ 1,672,443 $ 12,320,3 87 
653,909 452,719 1,106,628 

2,237,219 30,049 2,267,268 
663,910 663,910 

2,460,000 2,013,714 4,473,7 14 

8,275,000 23,818,968 32,093,968 
24,274,072 28,65 1,803 52,925,875 

50,191,119 (1,243,811) 48,947,308 
1,439,849 1,439,849 

414,078 414,078 
2,3 19,945 1,778,438 4,098,383 

54,364,991 534,627 54,899,6 18 
$ 78,639,063 $ 29,186,430 $ 107,825,493 
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Operating Revenues: 
User Fees 

Electric 
Water 
Telecommunication 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Electric 
Water 
Telecommunication 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income 

Non-Operating Revenues/(Expenses) 
Net Merchandise Sale 
Rental Revenue 
Interest Revenue 
Other Non-Operating Revenue 
Interest Expense 
Retirement Plan Net Loss 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Income (Loss) Before Contributions 

Capital Contributions 

Change in Net Assets 

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 

Net Assets - End of Year 

Frankfort Electric & Water Plant Board 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes In 

Retained Earnings - Budget and Actual 
For The Year Ended June 30,2009 

Variable 
Favorable 

Budgeted Actual (Unfavorable) 

$ 43,037,800 $ 40,201,361 $ (2,836,439) 
8,016,600 7,645,773 (3 70,827) 

20,257,000 ___ 20,15!@ (102,542) 

7 1,3 11,400 68,001,592 (3,309,808) 

43,547,301 41,839,473 1,7 11,599 
7,195,066 7,241,538 (46,472) 

18,387,633 17,798,941 588,692 

69,130,000 __ 66,876,181 2,253,8 19 

2,181,400 1,125,411 (1,055,989) 

15,800 8,109 (7,691) 
9,400 9,737 337 

196,900 92,547 (104,353) 
433,500 563,255 129,755 

(2,017,700) (1,834,788) 182,9 12 
6,187 6,187 

(1,362,100) (1,154,953) 207,147 

819,300 (29,542) (848,842) 

797,900 705,569 (92,331) 

1,617,200 676,027 (941,173) 

54,223,591 54,223,591 __ 

$ 55,840,791 $ 54,899,618 $ (941,173) 
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Operating Income 
User Fees 
Advertising Revenue 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 

Operating Income 

Non-Operating Revenues/(Expenses) 
Net Merchandise Sales 
Rental Revenues 
Interest Revenues 
Other Non-Operating Revenues 
Interest Expense 
Retirement Plan Net LOSS 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Net Income 

Frankfort Electric & Water Plant Board 
Statement of Revenues and Expenses 

Electric, Water and Telecommunication Divisions 
For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

Electric Water Telecommunication 
Division Division- Division 

$ 40,201,361 $ 7,645,773 $ 19,425,255 
729,203 

40,201,361 7,645,773 20,154,458 

4 1,83 5,702 7,241,538 17,798,941 

(1,634,341) 404,235 2,355,5 17 

2,182 1,632 4,295 
2,620 1,960 5,157 

30,641 37,989 23,917 
176,132 221,983 165,140 

(76,755) (594,635) (1,163,398) 
3,094 3,093 

183,765 (3 84,821) (953,897) 

(1,450,576) $ 19,414 $ 1,40 1,620 $ 
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Electric Division 
Electricity Purchased 
Transmission and Distribution 
Engineering 

Total Electric Expense 

Meter Reading 
Customer Records and Collection 
Postage and Printing 
24/7 Customer Care Payroll 
Over and Short 
Office Supplies 
Bad Debts 
GIS Expenses 
CIS Expenses 
Computer Expenses 
Information Technologies Payroll 

Total Office Expenses 

Advertising 
Administrative Expenses 
Clearing Account 
Dues &. Subscriptions 
Safety 
Travel and Training 
Board Expenses 
Social Security Expense 
Legal and Consulting Fees 
Insurance 

Total Adminstrative Expenses 

Vacation Benefits 
Sick Benefits 
Employees Welfare 
Clubhouse Expense 
Employee Activity 
Employee Assistance 
Pension Expense 

Total Employee Benefits Expenses 

General Expenses 
Maintenance 
Depreciation 
In-lieu of Tax City 
In-lieu of Tax County 
Cash Contributions to City 

Total General Expenses 

Support Services 
Inventory Adjustments 
Cost of Sales Clearing 
Auto and Truck Repair 
Gas and Oil 

rota1 Support Services 

Frankfort Electric &Water Plant Board 
Detail Schedule of Budgeted and Actual Operating Expenses 

Electric, Water and Telecommunication Divisions 
For The Year Ended June 30,2009 

Variance 
Favorable 

Budgeted Actual Wnfavorable) 
$ 36,031,800 $ 33,917,218 $ 2,114,582 

2,094,000 2,416,574 (322,574) 
242,200 255,685 (13,485) 

38,368,000 36,589,477 1,778,523 

21 8,020 
237,946 
47,089 

27 
12,109 

112,495 
14,799 
75,073 
34,980 

160,317 
912,855 

6,727 
287,321 

18,482 
9,964 

73,868 
1,642 

214,358 
95,075 

275,992 
983,429 

226,150 
23 1,653 
45,323 

31 
12,710 
85,654 
9,350 

45,134 
37,976 

126,992 
820,973 

2,224 
284,066 

1,006 
4 1,403 

8,396 
39,623 

1,905 
218,851 
230,819 
286,961 

1,115,254 

146,705 171,656 
75,402 79,543 

466,339 465,498 
2,143 2,580 

1,232 782 
462,753 405,485 

1,165,208 1,134,939 

10,634 9,395 

(8,130) 
6,293 
1,766 

(4) 
(601) 

26,841 
5,449 

29,939 
(2,996) 
33,325 
91,882 

4,503 
3,255 

(22,921) 
1,568 

34,245 

(1,006) 

(263) 

(1 35,744) 
(10,969) 

(13 1,825) 

(4,493) 

(24,95 1 ) 
1) 

(437) 
841 

1,239 
450 

57,268 
30,269 

4,036 3,933 103 
9,418 12,200 (2,782) 

47,288 37,801 9,487 
23,076 17,401 5,675 

1,544,399 1,662,216 (1 17,817) 

15,624 15,625 (1) 
1,643,841 1,749,176 (105,335) 

4,947 
9,873 (9,873) 
1,221 (1,221) 

146,006 150,953 

170,629 136,403 34,226 
152,386 132,380 20,006 
473,968 425,883 48,085 

$ 43,547,301 $ 41,835,702 $ 1,711,599 Total Operating Expenses - Electric Division 
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Water Division 
Distributions and Treatment 
Engineering 
Total Water Department Expense 

Meter Reading 
Customer Records and Collection 
Postage and Printing 
2417 Customer Care Payroll 
Over and Short 
Office Supplies 
Bad Debts 
GIs Expenses 
CIS Expenses 
Computer Expenses 
Information Technologies Payroll 
Total Office Expenses 

Advertising 
Administrative Expenses 
Clearing Account 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Safety 
Travel and Training 
Board Expenses 
Social Security Expense 
Legal and Consulting Fees 
Insurance 
Total Administrative Expenses 

Vacation Benefits 
Sick Benefits 
Employees Welfare 
Cl~ibhouse Expense 
Einployee Activity 
Employee Assistance 
Pension Expense 
Total Employee Benefits Expenses 

General Expenses 
Maintenance 
Depreciation & Amortization 
In-lieu of Tax City 
In-lieu of Tax County 
Cash Contributions to City 
Total General Expenses 

Support Services 
Inventory Adjustments 
Cost of Sales Clearing 
Auto and Truck Repair 
Gas and Oil 
Total Support Services 

Total Operating Expenses - Water Division 

Frankfort Electric & Water Plant Board 
Detail Schedule of Budgeted and Actual Operating Expenses 

Electric, Water and Telecommunication Divisions 
For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

Variance 
Favorable 

Budgeted Actual (Unfavorable) 
$ 2,404,500 $ 2,855,351 $ (450,851) 

228,900 236,004 (7,104) 
2,633,400 3,091,355 (457,955) 

165,198 
182,622 
38,016 

21 

14,367 
11,302 
55,689 
26,7 14 

108,624 
610,547 

7,994 

5,137 
200,479 

19,982 
9,614 

59,008 
1,254 

209,959 
61,687 

248,273 
815,393 

144,970 
77,350 

509,249 
2,027 

11,294 
1,332 

467,282 
1,213,504 

169,279 
173,288 
35,697 

23 

15,705 
8,964 

33,762 
28,408 
94,996 

569,696 

9,574 

5,350 
215,346 

753 
12,389 
8,894 

34,274 
1,424 

211,840 
68,928 

2 5 0,3 6 9 
809,567 

(4,081) 
9,334 
2,319 

(2) 
(1,580) 
(1,338) 
2,338 

21,927 
(1,694) 
13,628 
40,851 

(213) 
(14,867) 

(753) 
7,593 

720 
24,734 

(170) 
(1,881) 
(7,241) 
(2,096) 
5,826 

170,181 (25,211) 
94,63 1 (17,281) 

490,563 18,686 

9,899 1,395 
834 498 

395,555 71,727 
1,165,702 47,802 

4,039 (2,O 12) 

2,569 2,959 (390) 
5,137 10,095 (4,958) 

1,073,072 1,201,935 (128,863) 
39,188 30,906 8,282 
19,124 14,228 4,896 
2,993 2,865 128 

1,142,083 1,2- (120,905) 

112,919 109,212 3,707 
2,999 (2,999) 

914 (914) 
(16,862) 114,754 131,616 

93,008 97,489 (4,48 1) 
320,681 342,230 (21,549) 

$ 6,735,608 $ 7,241,538 $ (505,930) 
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Telecommunication Division 
Operations & Maintenance 
Distribution 
HBO Expense 
TMC Expense 
Disney Expense 
Showtime Expense 
Cinemax Expense 
Encore Expense 
StarzEncore Expense 
Digital Music Expense 
Satellite Station Expense 
Pole Rental Expense 
Digital Station Expense 
High Definition TV Expense 
Pay per View Expense 
Royalty Copyright Expense 

Total Operations & Maintenance 

Cable 10 Payroll 
Cable 10 Expense 
Ad Insertion Payroll 
Ad Insertion Expenses 
Marketing Expenses 

Total Cable 10 Expenses 

FSN Payroll 
FSN Expense 
Access Billing Expense 
Cable Tree Trimming 
Security Payroll 
Expanded Cable 
Security Expense 

Total Cable FSN Expenses 

Engineering Expense 
Engineering Payroll 
Total Cable Enginering Expense 

Total Cable Expenses 

Customer Records and Collection Expeiise 
Postage and Printing 
24/7 Customer Care Payroll 
Over and Short 
Office Supplies 
Bad Debts 
GIS Expenses 
CIS Expenses 
Computer Expenses 
Information Technologies Payroll 

Total Office Expenses 

Frankfort Electric & Water Plant Board 
Detail Schedule of Budgeted and Actual Operating Expenses 

Electric, Water and Telecommunication Divisions 
For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

Variable 
Favorable 

Budgeted Actual (Unfavorable) 
642,300 967,585 (325,285) 
310,000 405,729 (95,729) 
453,700 414,838 38,862 

30,700 27,802 2,898 

80,400 74,298 6,102 
54,000 47,174 6,826 
2,700 1,838 862 

96,000 85,493 10,507 
3,900 2,833 1,067 

3,120,200 3,825,578 (705,378) 
56,000 20,459 35,541 

447,500 517,172 (69,672) 
70,900 (4,506) 75,406 

8,400 61,911 (53,511) 

5,441,700 6,520,978 (1,079,278) 
65,000 72,774 (7,774) 

455,000 483,801 (28,801) 
55,000 48,491 6,509 

87,000 86,327 673 
75.000 65,590 9,4 10 

672,000 684,209 (12,209) 

765,200 789,938 (24,73 8) 
1,250,000 1,380,123 (130,123) 

40,000 47,296 (7,296) 

63,000 77,194 (14,199 
2,118,200 2,294,551 (176,351) 

2,000 1,268 732 
150,000 106,708 43,292 
152,000 107,976 44,024 

(1,223,814) 8,383,900 9,607,714 

460,993 
95,964 

52 
20,178 
28,721 
28,530 

140,575 
67,434 

274,199 
1,116,646 

456,011 
89,559 

21 
29,279 
35,687 
18,401 

106,696 
75,417 

249,926 
1,060,997 

4,982 
6,405 

31 
(9,101) 
(6,966) 
10,129 
33,879 
(7,983) 
24,273 
55,649 
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Telecommunication Division(continued) 
Advertising 
Administrative Expense 
Clearing Account 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Safety 
Travel and Training 
Board Expenses 
Social Security Expense 
Legal and Consulting Fees 
Insurance 
Total Adminislralive Expenses 

Vacation Benefits 
Sick Benefits 
Employces Welfare 
Clubhouse Expense 
Employee Activity 
Employee Assistance 
Pension Expense 
Total Employee Benefits Expenses 

General Expenses 
Maintenance 
Amortization of Goodwill 
Dcpreciation 
In-lieu of Tax City 
In-lieu of Tax County 
Cash Contributions to City 

Total General Expenses 

Support Services Expense 
Support Services Payroll 
Inventory Adjustments 
Cost of Sales Clearing 
Auto and Truck Repair Expense 
Auto and Truck Repair Payroll 
Gas and Oil 

Total Support Services Expense 

Frankfort Electric & Water Plant Board 
Detail Schedule of Budgeted and Actual Operating Expenses 

Electric, Water and Telecommunication Divisions 
For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

Variable 
Favorable 

Budgeted Actual ~ (Unfavorable) 
$ 12,968 $ 5,914 $ 7,054 

506,070 560,680 (54,610) 

29,973 6,407 23,566 
14,422 14,098 324 

109,769 56,166 53,603 

3 13,7 13 323,007 (9,294) 

1,982 (1,982) 

3,164 5,291 (2,127) 

138,188 91,303 46,885 
334,652 350,819 (16,167) 

1,462,919 1,415,667 47,252 

217,455 
116,025 
763,874 

3,041 
16,941 
1,998 

698,365 
1,817,699 

6,484 
12.968 

140,400 
3,024,155 

38,013 
18,550 
5,983 

3,246,553 
-_____. 

232,338 
96,735 

762,015 
4,301 

14,434 
1,303 

604,996 
I ,  7 1 6,122 

(14,883) 
19,290 
1,859 

2,507 
695 

93,369 
101,577 

(1,260) 

9,116 (2,632) 
29,908 (1 6,940) 

3,257,297 (233,142) 
140,400 

40,300 (2,287) 
14,371 4,179 
6,512 (529) 

3,497,904 (251,351) 

48,242 47,034 1,208 
236,799 240.305 (3,506) 

6,618 (661 8) 

55,869 51,790 4,079 
56,405 60,085 (3,680) 
90,996 92,303 (1,307) 

488,311 500,537 (12,226) 

2,402 ( 2,4 0 2 ) 

Total Operating Expenses - Telecommunication Division $ 16,516,028 $ 17,798,941 $ (1,282,913) 
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Electric Division 
Electricity Purchased 
Transmission and Distribution 
Engineering 

Total Electric Expense 

Meter Reading 
Customer Records and Collection 
Postage and Printing 
24/7 Customer Care Payroll 
Over and Short 
Office Supplies 
Bad Debts 
GIS Expenses 
CIS Expenses 
Computer Expenses 
Information Technologies Payroll 

Total Office Expenses 

Advertising 
Administrative Expenses 
Clearing Account 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Safety 
Travel and Training 
Board Expenses 
Social Security Expense 
Legal and Consulting Fees 
Insurance 

Total Adnlinstrative Expenses 

Vacation Benefits 
Sick Benefits 
Employees Welfare 
Clubhouse Expense 
Employee Activity 
Employee Assistance 
Pension Expense 

Total Employee Benefits Expenses 

General Expenses 
Maintenance 
Depreciation 
In-lieu of Tax City 
In-lieu of Tax County 
Cash Contributions to City 

Total General Expenses 

Support Services 
Inventory Adjustments 
Cost of Sales Clearing 
Auto and Truck Repair 
Gas and Oil 

Total Support Services 

Total Operaitng Expenses - Electric Division 

Frankfort Electric & Water Plant Board 
Comparative Operating Expenses 

Electric, Water and Telecommunication Divisions 
For The Years Ended June 30,2009 and 2008 

2009 
33,917,218 
2,416,574 

255,685 
36,589,477 

226,150 
231,653 
45,323 

31 
12,710 
85,654 
9,350 

45,134 
37,976 

126,992 
820,973 

2,224 
284,066 

1,006 
4 1,403 

8,396 
39,623 

1,905 
21 8,85 1 
230,819 
286,961 

1,115,254 

171,656 

465,498 
2,580 
9,395 

782 
405,485 

1,134,939 

79,543 

3,933 
12,200 

1,662,216 
37,801 
17,401 
15,625 

1,749,176 

146,006 
9,873 
1,221 

136,403 
132,380 
425,883 

$ 41,835,702 

2008 
34,746,820 
2,046,915 

221,261 
37,014,996 

224,831 
230,214 
45,538 

79 
1 1,905 

144,147 
12,692 
35,345 
42,907 

127,994 
875,652 

5,892 
266,159 

29 1 
40,077 

9,651 
46,899 

1,558 
205,087 
82,333 

284,960 
942,907 

158,052 
75,103 

482,393 
4,445 
8,299 

68 1 
454,917 

1,184,090 

6,622 
9,548 

1,639,346 
38,210 
17,590 
16,022 

1,727,338 

144,637 
24,011 

6,134 
150,375 
162,129 
487,286 

$ 42,232,269 

24 



Water Division 
Distributions and Treatment 
Engineering 
Total Water Department Expense 

Meter Reading 
Customer Records and Collection 
Postage and Printing 
24/7 Customer Care Payroll 
Over and Short 
Office Supplies 
Bad Debts 
GIS Expenses 
CIS Expenses 
Computer Expenses 
Information Technologies Payroll 
Total Office Expenses 

Advertising 
Administrative Expenses 
Clearing Account 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Safety 
Travel and Training 
Board Expenses 
Social Security Expense 
Legal and Consulting Fees 
Insurance 
Total Administrative Expenses 

Vacation Benefits 
Sick Benefits 
Employees Welfare 
Clubhouse Expense 
Employee Activity 
Employee Assistance 
Pension Expense 
Total Employee Benefits Expenses 

General Expenses 
Maintenance 
Depreciation & Amoritzation 
In-lieu of Tax City 
In-lieu of Tax County 
Cash Contributions to City 
Total General Expenses 

Support Services 
Inventory Adjustments 
Cost of Sales Clearing 
Auto and Truck Repair 
Gas and Oil 
Total Support Services 

Frankfort Electric & Water Plant Board 
Comparative Operating Expenses 

Electric, Water, And Telecommunication Divisions 
For The Years Ended June 30,2009 and 2008 

2009 2008 
2,855,351 2,562,095 

236,004 226,768 
3,09 1,355 2,788,863 

169,279 
173,288 
35,691 

23 
9,574 

15,705 
8,964 

33,762 
28,408 
94,996 

569,696 

5,350 
215,346 

753 
12,389 
8,894 

34,274 
1,424 

211,840 
68,928 

250,369 
809,567 

170,181 
94,63 1 

490,563 
4,039 
9,899 

834 
395,555 

1,165,702 

166,967 
171,534 
34,800 

59 
8,613 

26,922 
9,457 

26,336 
31,866 
95,369 

571,923 

2,40 1 
197,600 

217 
11,259 
10,075 
41,911 

1,160 
207,798 

41,501 
247,306 
761,228 

168,434 
59,748 

502,926 
4,664 
8,461 

714 
462,281 

1,207,228 

2,959 4,875 
10,095 7,3 10 

1,201,935 1,156,517 
30,906 31,326 
14,228 14,420 
2,865 2,992 

1,262,988 1,217,440 

109,Z 12 107,770 
2,999 1 1,876 

914 4,510 
131,616 133,775 
97,489 108,938 

342,230 366,929 

Total Operating Expenses - Water Division $ 7,241,538 $ 6,913,611 
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Telecommunication Division 
Operations & Maintenance 
Distribution 
HBO Expense 
TMC Expense 
Disney Expense 
Showtime Expense 
Cinemax Expense 
Encore Expense 
StarzlEncore Expense 
Digital Music Expense 
Satellite Station Expense 
Pole Rental Expense 
Digital Station Expense 
High Definition TV Expense 
Pay per View Expense 
Royalty Copyright Expense 
Total Operations & Maintenance 

Cable 10 Payroll 
Cable 10 Expense 
Ad Insertion Payroll 
Ad Insertion Expenses 
Marketing Expenses 
Total Cable 10 Expenses 

FSN Payroll 
FSN Expense 
Access Billing Expense 
Cable Tree Trimming 
Security Payroll 
Expanded Cable 
Security Expense 
Total Cable FSN Expenses 

Engineering Expense 
Engineering Payroll 
Total Cable Enginering Expense 
Total Cable Expenses 

Customer Records and Collection Expense 
Postage and Printing 
24/7 Customer Care Payroll 
Over and Short 
Office Supplies 
Bad Debts 
GIS Expenses 
CIS Expenses 
Computer Expenses 
Inionnation Technologies Payroll 
Total Office Expenses 

Frankfort Electric & Water Plant Board 
Comparative Operating Expenses 

Electric, Water, And Telecommunication Divisions 
For The Years Ended June 30,2009 and 2008 

2009 2008 
967,585 811,615 
405,729 314,320 
414,838 437,902 

27,802 31,137 

74,298 80,246 
47,174 52,484 

1,838 3,385 
85,493 78,187 
2,833 3,302 

20,459 28,828 
517,172 400,923 

61,911 35,571 
72,774 75,440 

6,520,978 5,822,450 

3,825,578 3,373,577 

(4,506) 95,533 

483,801 441,780 
48,491 42,268 

86,327 55,757 
65,590 68,560 

608,365 684,209 

789,938 762,087 
1,292,403 

47,296 24,309 
1,380,123 

77,194 67,771 
2,294,551 2,146,570 

1,268 1,287 
106,708 117,865 
107,976 119,152 

9,607,714 8,696,537 

456,011 
89,559 

21 

35,687 
18,401 

106,696 
75,411 

249,926 
1,060,997 

29,279 

433,061 
91,794 

149 
23,314 
53,844 
23,870 
66,475 
81,411 

240,721 
1 ,O 14,63 9 
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Frankfort Electric & Water Plant Board 
Comparative Operating Expenses 

Electric, Water, And Telecommunication Divisions 
For The Years Ended June 30,2009 and 2008 

Telecommunication Division (continued) 
Advertising 
Administrative Expense 
Clearing Account 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Safety 
Travel and Training 
Board Expenses 
Social Security Expense 
Legal and Consulting Fees 
Insurance 
Total AdministTative Expenses 

Vacation Benefits 
Sick Benefits 
Employees Welfare 
Clubhouse Expense 
Employee Activity 
Employee Assistance 
Pension Expense 
Total Employee Benefits Expenses 

General Expenses 
Maintenance 
Amortization of Goodwill 
Depreciation 
In-lieu of Tax City 
In-lieu of Tax County 
Cash Contributions to City 
Total General Expenses 

Support Services Expense 
Support Services Payroll 
Inventory Adjustments 
Cost of Sales Clearing 
Auto and Truck Repair Expense 
Auto and Truck Repair Payroll 
Gas and Oil 
Total Support Services Expense 

Total Operating Expenses - Telecommunication Division 

2009 - 
5,914 

560,680 
1,982 
6,407 

14,098 
56,166 
5,291 

323,007 
91,303 

350,819 
1,415,667 

2008 
8,551 

499,282 
549 

6,868 
16,315 
68,866 
2,930 

305,585 
48,465 

333,348 
1,290,759 

232,338 205,608 
96,735 102,290 

762,015 752,776 
4,301 6,996 

14,434 12,078 
1,303 1,072 

604,996 682,293 
1,716,122 1,763,113 

9,116 
29,908 

140,300 
3,257,297 

40,300 
14,371 
6,512 

3,497,904 

47,034 
240,305 

6,618 
2,402 

5 1,790 
60,085 
92,303 

500,537 

15,222 
19,687 

140,400 
3,138,590 

39,470 
13,988 
5,985 

3,373,342 

42,606 
229,416 

13,825 
11,536 
43,290 
56,660 

105,842 
503,175 

$ 17,798,941 $ 16,641,565 
~ 
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Electric &Water Plant Board Of The City of Frankfort, Kentucky 
Schedule Of Bond Principal And Interest Maturities 

June 30,2009 

Consolidated Note Principal Interest Total 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010 $ 251,382 $ 32,632 $ 284,014 

17,127 284,014 Fiscal Year Ended June 30,201 1 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 139,575 2,454 142,029 

266,887 

Total $ 657,844 $ 52,213 $ 710,057 

Principal Interest Total 1999 Bond Issue -- 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010 $ 610,000 $ 466,710 $ 1,076,710 

Total 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,201 1 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2013 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2014 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2015 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2016 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2017 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2019 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2020 ___ 

640,000 
675,000 
715,000 
755,000 
795,000 
840,000 
885,000 
935,000 
990,000 

1,045,000 

433,898 
399,379 
362,713 
323,380 
281,133 
236,170 
188,733 
138,683 
85,745 
29,255 

FSN Notes 
Fiscal Yeas Ended June 30,2010 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201 1 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,20 13 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2014 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2015 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2016 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2017 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018 
Fiscal Year Ended .lune 30,2019 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2020 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2021 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2022 

Total 

Water Bond Anticipation Note 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010 

$ 8,885,000 $ 2,945,799 

Principal 
$ 1,762,332 

1,900,000 
2,000,000 
2,000,000 
2,000,000 
2,000,000 
2,000,000 
2,000,000 
2,000,000 
2,000,000 
2,000,000 
2,000,000 
1,512,506 

$ 25,174,838 

Interest 
Interest is variable 
Interest is variable 
Interest is variable 
Interest is variable 
Interest is variable 
Interest is variable 
Interest is variable 
Interest is variable 
Interest is variable 
Interest is variable 
Interest is variable 
Interest is variable 
Interest is variable 

1,073,898 
1,074,379 
1,077,713 
1,078,380 
1,076,133 
1,076,170 
1,073,733 
1,073,683 
1,075,745 
1,074,255 

$ 11,830,799 

Total 
$ 1,762,332 

1,900,000 
2,000,000 
2,000,000 
2,000,000 
2,000,000 
2,000,000 
2,000,000 
2,000,000 
2,000,000 
2,000,000 
2,000,000 
1,512,506 

$ 25,174,838 

9; 1,850,000 
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Chairiiian 
Members of tlic Electric & Water Plant Board 
Frankfor[. Kentucky 

Chairiiian 
Members of tlic Electric & Water Plant Board 
Frankfor[. Kentucky 

Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
And On Compliance A n d  Other Matters Based On An Audit 

Of Financial Staternetits Performed In Accordance 
With G m e ~ 7 7 / ~ 7 c ~ i 7 /  .4 di/i i7g Skm/(irds 

We have audited tlie financial statements of Electric k Water Plant Board, as of and for the year ended .[tine -30. 
7009, and have issued our report thereon dated January 12, 20 10. We conducted our audit i n  accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted i n  the United States of America, and the Standards applicable lo financial 
audits contained i n  Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of [lie [.lnitetl States. 

Interiial Control Over Financial Reportine 

I n  planning and perforiiiing our audit, we considered tlie Electric Cyr. Water Plant Board’s internal coiitrol over 
linancial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing proccdurcs for the purpose of expressing our opinions on tlie 
financial statements, but not for tlie purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Electric Ly: M’iIler 
Plant Board’s internal control over linancial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on llte 
ef‘fectivcness of tlie Electric & Water Plant Board’s inlernal control over financial reporting. 

A control deficiency exists wlieii tlie desisn or ox1 ation of a control does not allow nianagcnient or cniployecs, i n  
tlic notmal course of perfornming their assrgned /unctions. to prevent or detect riiisstatements on a !imely basis. A 
significant delicicncy is a control deliciency, or combination of control deficiencies, tIi:ik adversely aif‘ects i1;e 
Electric & Water Plant Board’s ability to initiate, authorize. record, process. or report financial data ieliabl\. iii 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelil~ootl t l ia~ a 
inisstatement of tlie 13lectric & Water Plant Board‘s linancial statements that is inore t l iun  incoiiscrluciiti~il \vi11 not  
he prevented or detected by the Electric & Waker Plant Board’s intcrnal control. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency. or combination o f  significant deficiencies. t ha t  resulks i n  niorc‘ th i ln  
a remote likelihood thak a material misstatement of tlie linancial statenicnts will not he prevenked or detected by ~ l i c  
lilectric & Water Plant Board ‘s internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was  lor tlie limited purpose described in the tirst 
paraeraph of this section and would not neccssarily identily all deficiencies in internal conlrol that  might be 
signrficant deliciencics or material weaknesses. We did not identify any delkiencics in internal control ovcr 
l i i iai icial reporting that w e  consider to be material weaknesses. as defined above. 

Coliipliilnce and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Electric & Water Plant Board’s financial slatciiients arc 
liw o f  material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain pi,ovisions of laws. re.gul;ilions. 
contracts, nonconipliancc with which could liavc a direck and material effect on tlic dekcrniination 01  Iinancial 
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not ail  objective of  o u r  
audit and. accordingly. we do not exprcss such an opinion. I’he results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
nonconipliancc or ofiier matters that are required to be reporled under Govei-nment Auditing Stnritlards. 

We noted certain matters that w e  reported to management of Electric L P ~  Water Plant Boaid. i n  a separate letter tlatcd 

This rcport is intended solely rot the information and use of nianagcineiit and [lie board ol‘ dii cctors and is not 
intended lo  hc, and sliould not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Jantlary 12, 2010. 

.lanuary 12, 20 I O  
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ ~ _ . - - _ _ _ - ~ - - I _ .  -___ ___----~--- --.. 

201 W e s t  Main Street,  Frankfort ,  Keiztucky 40601 I PO. Box 698, Frankfort, Kentucky  40602-0698 
(502) 227-7395 I Fax (502) 227-8005 I W W W . C ~ V Z C ~ ~ . C . W ~ Z  
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FRANKFORT ELECTRIC & WATER PLANT BOARD 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

INTRODUCTION 

The following discussion and analysis of the Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board’s financial performance provides an overview 
of the Board’s financial activities for the fiscal years ended June 30,2008 and 2007. 

This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the Board’s financial statements and accompanying notes, which 
follow this section. 

The Board was established under Kentucky Revised Statues (KRS 96-176) as a combined Electric and Water System to operate, 
maintain, improve, and expand the respective facilities and began operations in 1943. In 1954 the Board created Community 
Television and appointed a separate Cable Board to provide Cable TV service to Frankfort and the surrounding area. In 1988, the 
Board took direct control of the Cable TV operation in order to provide additional services over a fiber optic network, as a public 
prqject (the Full Service Network). All three operations are combined together and presented on pages 7 to 9 of the Audit Report. 
Cable Telecomrnunications operations are separated from the Electric and Water operations on the audit report under “Supplemental 
Information” on pages 17 to 28. The Board has completed the upgrade of the cable system to fiber optics and is now able to provide a 
Full Service Network (FSN) with few exceptions, throughout the Cable Service Area. The Full Service Network includes Digital TV, 
HDTV, DVR, Broadband Service, Point to Point Fiber service, Security Service, and Local and Long Distance Telephone Service. 

The Full Service Network upgrade is being financed by a Master Credit Agreement with a credit line of $29.5 million dollars. 
Security for this financing is the Cable Plant exclusively and repayment will be from Cable revenues only. The Board began repaying 
funds borrowed under the Master Credit Agreement in Fiscal Year 2005-06 in accordance with the agreement. The Electric and Water 
facilities and finances are specifically excluded as security in the Master Credit Agreement. In Fiscal Year 2007, the Board decided to 
refinance the five FSN notes to extend maturities in order to reduce principal payments and increase short-term cash flow. This was in 
response to increasing interest rates and pension expenses. These changes will enable the Cable Department to maintain the required 
minimum reserve as established by the Board while still funding the Capital Additions necessary to maintain and improve the Cable 
System. In addition to changing the maturities, the amendments on the FSN notes included an interest rate floor of 4.00% and a 
ceiling of 6.25%. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The assets of the Board exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $54,223,591 (equity). Of this amount, 
$46,215,207 is invested in Capital Assets, $1,316,121 is restricted for Debt Retirement, $407,901 is restricted for Retirement Plans, 
and $6,284,362 is unrestricted. 

The Board’s equity (net assets) increased $2,796,277 during the current fiscal year. The major changes from the prior year included: 
Sales to customers increased $1,988,492, Capital Contributions increased $1,871,785, and Electric Fuel Adjustment Expense 
increased $1,297,775. 

Revenues 
Gross income from sales, and other sources, was $70,875,474 for FY08. This represents an increase of $3,871,830, or 5.78% from 
FY07. The major increases were attributable to Electric Revenue $264,863, Basic Cable Revenue $489,151, Digital Basic Revenue 
$279,998, HSDS Revenue $652,915, Local Phone Revenue $375,213, and Capital Contributions $1,871,786. All three divisions of 
FPB performed work on the state US 421 road project, bringing in more than $lm for Capital Contributions. 

Expenses 
Total expenses were $68,079,197 for FYO8. This represents an increase of $3,499,095, or 5.42% from FY07. The major increases 
were attributable to Station Expenses $700,000, Power Costs $1,460,246, Water Treatment Expenses $229,830, Employee Welfare 
Expense $203,699, and Pension Expense $354,779. 

Operating Expenses generally refer to the ordinary and necessary business expenses incurred in the day-to-day operation of the Utility. 
Broad categories of these expenses are classified as “Operations and Maintenance”, “Engineering”, “Support Services”, “Office”, 
“Administrative”, “General”, and “Employee Benefits”. They include such things as system maintenance, fleet maintenance, office 
supplies, customer service, fringe benefits, billing and accounting. These are current period expenses, which are not otherwise 
capitalized as part of a construction project having a service life greater than one year. The term Operating Expense does not include 
Interest Expense, which relates to financing decisions. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FPB’s Financial Statements are comprised of two components: 
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e Financial Statements; and 
“Notes” to the Financial Statements. 

Included as part of the Financial Statements are three different types (and names) of statements and their respective Notes. 

The Three Financial Statement Types: 

1. The “Balance Sheet” presents information on FPB’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported 
as Equity (which is also known in the Accounting profession as ‘Wet Assets”). Over time, increases and decreases in 
Equity may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial condition of FPB is improving or deteriorating. 

2. The “Statement of Revenues. ExDenses, and Changes in Net Assets” presents information showing how FPB’s Equity 
changed between FY07 and FY08. Results of FPB’s “operations are reported as the underlying events occur, 
regardless of the timing of cash flows.” This means that FPB’s revenues and its expenses are reported in the Financial 
Statements for some items that will result in cash flows bositive or negative) in some future year, but not this one. For 
example, take Accounts Payable and Accounts Receivable. Customers owed FPB money as of June 30,2008. This was 
reported as income in FY08 but the cash will not be realized until the next fiscal year. On a similar note, FPB owed 
money to Kentucky Utilities as of June 30, 2008. This was reported as expense in FY08 but the cash will not be 
expended until the next fiscal year. This is called the “accrual” basis if accounting and is further explained in Note A. 

In contrast, most of us personally use the “cash” basis of accounting for our tax returns and our own personal finances. 
We include and deduct the money as we actually receive or disburse it. 

3. The “Statement of Cash Flows” presents the cash flow changes occurring during the FY08 and FY07 in “highly liquid” 
cash and investments, including certain restricted cash accounts or cash-like assets. “Highly liquid” means it is, or can 
quickly be, turned into useable cash. 

Notes to the Financial Statements: 

The ‘Wotes to the Financial Statements” provide additional information that is essential for a full and complete understanding of the 
information provided in the Financial Statements. The Notes to these Financial Statements can be found on pages 10 to 16 of this 
report. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Assets 
FPB’s Total Assets increased $891,972 over FY07. The major changes in Assets, as reported on the Audit, were in “Cash”, 
“Investments”, “Inventory”, “Insurance Escrow Account” and “Property, Plant, and Equipment” net of Accumulated Depreciation. 
Maintaining the inventory needed for the ongoing demand for our various Cable Services resulted in a higher Inventory balance at the 
end o f  FY08. Fully funding the Self-Insurance Fund accounted for a higher balance in this account. Property, Plant, and Equipment 
increased due to the ongoing subdivision growth and continued investment in 0111 systems. 

Liabilities 
FPB’s Total Liabilities decreased $1,904,305 from FY07. The Audit Report indicates that the major change was in “Bonds Payable”. 
The decrease in Bonds Payable is due to no additional borrowing, increased principal payments on the FSN notes, and the continued 
repayment of the existing Water Bonds. The $1.85 million water BAN was renewed in FY07 for a term of 18 months, with the 
Board’s intention being to roll this BAN into a new water bond issue in FY08 for the planned Water Treatment Facility upgrade. The 
Board has since secured alternate financing for the Water Treatment Facility and will reevaluate the status of the water BAN in FY09. 

Net Assets 
As noted earlier, FPB’s assets exceeded its liabilities by $54,223,591 at the end of FY08. This represents an increase from FY07 of 
$2,796,277, and as noted earlier, increases or decreases in equity may, over time, serve as a useful indicator of FPB’s financial 
position. The disclaimer comes from the fact that being “land rich and cash poor” is not beneficial if the company needs liquidity for 
cash flow. On the other hand, if you have sufficient cash flow, “investing” in your electric, water, and cable systems (maintaining, 
expanding, replacing, upgrading, etc.) or land, is a good and prudent business practice. 

A portion of FPB’s Net Assets, $46,215,207, or 85%, reflect it’s investment in “Capital Assets”, such as transmission and distribution 
facilities, less any related debt used to acquire such assets that remained outstanding as o f  the end of FY08. FPB uses these Capital 
Assets to provided services to its owners/customers; consequently, these assets are not available for spending. Resources needed to 
repay the outstanding debt shown on the Balance Sheet must come from other sources, such as sales of water and cable services, since, 
obviously, the Capital Assets themselves cannot be used to pay such “long-term” liabilities. 



The ‘knrestricted” portion of FPB’s net assets is $6,284,362, or 12% of total Net Assets. This portion may be used to meet FPB’s 
ongoing obligations to creditors and owners/customers. 

An additional portion of FPB’s Equity, $1,724,022, or 3%, represents resources that are subject to external, restrictions on how they 
are used. $1,316,121 is reserved for debt repayment and $407,901 is reserved for retirement benefits for those few employees whom 
opted out of the CERS retirement plan. 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

FPB’s investments in capital assets as of June 30, 2008 amounted to $85,387,318 (net of accumulated depreciation). This includes 
investment in transmission and distribution related infrastructure, as well as general items such as office equipment, vehicles, etc. 
Major capital assets events during the current fiscal year included: 

Electric 
*SCADA addition and two breaker replacements at Ridgeview Substation 
*Overall general distribution system improvements 

Water 
“US 421 
“Wet Well Project @ WTP 
*Hoist Replacement @ WTP 
*New Subdivision development 

*Completion of two Dark Fiber rings for use by State Government 
*DCTs for Digital Cable/HD/RVR 
*Headend Equipment improvements for transition to Digital Simulcast 

General 
*Savin 8065 Digital CopierfPrinter (Downtown) 
“John Deere Z-Track Mower 
“Outsource programmers to develop new Customer Service and Billing System 
*Fleet replacement (1 utility truck w/ crane & 1 pickup truck in the Electric Dept, 1 pickup truck in Electric Eng Dept, 1 
pickup I% 1 van in the Cable Dept, 2 pickups in the Meter Reading Dept, 1 pickup in Support Services Dept) 

LONG-TERM DEBT 

As of 6130108, FPB had long term bonded water debt outstanding of $9,465,000. This is debt backed by the electric and water 
revenues of FPB (revenue bonds). No changes occurred in this bonded debt other than the regularly scheduled principal payment of 
$550,000. 

As of B/30/08, FPB had a long term bond outstanding for the Consolidated acquisition of $894,622. This is debt backed by the cable 
system. No changes occurred in this bonded debt other than the regularly scheduled principal payments totaling $223,000. 

As of 6/30/08, FPB had long term notes outstanding with Farmers Bank of $26,962,489. This is debt backed by the cable system. 
FPB made regularly scheduled principal payments totaling $1,500,000. The Board refinanced one of the five FSN notes in FY07 in 
order to extend the maturity fi-om 2016 to 2022 and to establish a new floor of 4.00% and a new ceiling of 6.25%. The remaining 
three notes are scheduled to be refinanced during the next fiscal year. 

As of 6/30/08, FPB had a long term bond anticipation note (BAN) outstanding for the Water Department of $1,850,000. This is debt 
backed by the electric and water revenues of FPB. Tlie Board currently malces interest payments only on this BAN. The original 
BAN matured in February 2007 but, the Board decided to refinance this BAN for another 18 months with the intention of rolling this 
debt into a fhture bond issue for the Water Department. 

BUDGET 

Every year, the Board approves a 5-year budget for all operations of FPB. Revenues and Expenses are based on a five-year historical 
calculation (with some exceptions primarily in Cable) and current inflationary trends. There are major impacts to the Electric and 
Water operations due mainly to weather conditions, which cannot be accurately anticipated. The use of a 5-year historical period 
tends to result in an “average” year in growth, inflation, and prevailing weather conditions. It is a rare occurrence when “average” and 
actual coincide. When workflow calls for more Additionally, expenditures are divided between capital and expense items. 
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expenditure on capital items than what was budgeted, expenses will typically be lower and net income will be higher but with no 
impact on reserves. The opposite is also true. 

Increasing Fuel Adjustments passed through from KU resulted in higher than budgeted Electric Operating Revenues of $724,759. 
Capital Contributions came in at $331,463, or 12.76%, lower than the FYO8 budget. Power Costs were $1,537,320 higher than 
budgeted due to higher Fuel Adjustments (.61% actual vs. .35% budget). Overall, the Electric Department had a net loss $1,576,374 
unfavorable to what was budgeted. 

Decreased sales resulted in lower than budgeted Water Operating Revenues of 8400,275. The Water Distribution Department worked 
more time on maintenance projects than what was budgeted resulting in more charges to expense and lower charges to capital. 
Overall, the Water Department had net income $556,544 unfavorable to what was budgeted. 

For the most part, weather conditions have little impact on the Cable operations. Cable Operating Revenues were $16,734 higher than 
budgeted. Basic Service Revenue was $240,497 favorable to budget due to an unbudgeted rate increase of $I  .SO for the addition of 
the Disney and FSN channels to the lineup. Digital Basic Revenue was $240,343 favorable to budget due to higher than anticipated 
subscribers and the success of the HD service. Local Phone Revenue was unfavorable to budget $220,493 due to slower growth than 
anticipated. Dark Fiber Revenue was $203,460 under budget due to a delayed fiber ring prqject with the State. Total Cable expenses 
were $345,494 more than budgeted, primarily due to a shift in labor expenditures from capital to expense and due to the cost increase 
for Basic cable as a result of adding two unbudgeted channels. Total expenses that were allocated to the Cable department were 
favorable $457,276 as a result of lower spending in computer expenses, consulting fees, and FSN interest expense. Overall, the Cable 
Department had net income $5 1,702 favorable to what was budgeted. 

THE FUTURE 

Electric 
Due to the rising costs of materials and pension expenses, reduced SEPA credit, general inflation, and maintaining minimum reserves 
as established by the Board, the Board anticipates the need for rate adjustments in the near future. The first increase is scheduled for 
the 08-09 fiscal year, one year sooner than what was anticipated in the last five-year plan. 

The primary goals of the Electric Department for FY09 are to continue strengthening the transmissionldistribution system for load- 
growth capacity, improved power quality and reliability. During FY09, the Electric Department will continue to perform upgrades of 
transmission lines and facilities, specifically breaker replacement at the receiving station and various ICWH meter change outs and 
meeting new arc flash safety requirements. The Department will continue to add to and expand the distribution substations including 
SCADA functionality. This will give our system greater flexibility and redundancy. In FY09, voltage conversions from 8.3kV to 
13.2 kV will continue to improve voltage quality and load capacity. A continuation of the combined 25% increase in spending on tree 
trimming and spray programs over the next two fiscal years is projected to reduce tree related outages by as much as 20%. Higher 
costs are expected to continue in material due to the large increases in steel, copper, aluminum and oil prices. The Electric 
Department does not forecast the addition of any employees over the next five years. 

Due to the rising costs of materials and pension expenses, general inflation, increased interest, principal, and debt service payments for 
a new IUA loan, and maintaining minimum reserves as established by the Board, the Board anticipates the need for rate adjustments in 
the very near future. The first rate increase is scheduled for May 09 for Wholesale customers (this rate was passed by the Board in 
FY08 but delayed by the rate case filed by the Wholesale water customers). This is a rate increase that was anticipated to generate 
revenues in FY07 and FYO8 but did not materialize. A rate increase is also planned for all customers in Jan 10, with the county rate 
increase anticipated to be at a lower figure in an effort to balance city and county water rates. The final rate increase anticipated in the 
current five-year budget is Jan 12 for all water customers. The Water department will undergo a cost of service study in FY09 for 
FY08 and the plan is to conduct these studies every two years in order to maintain rates necessary for the operations of the department 
while trying to minimize the need for large increases at any one time. The January 10 increase to City customers is 6 months later 
than what was budgeted in the prior five-year plan while the January 12 increase was not included in the FY08 budget. The 
construction of a new Chemical Feed Facility will necessitate additional borrowing, as mentioned above, beginning in the next fiscal 
year with a 1 .O% loan through the KIA. The Reservoir Lining Project may also require additional borrowing beginning in the next 
fiscal year. The Board does not anticipate any problems with implementing rate increases or borrowing. 

The Water department will be focusing on developing a plan for the Reservoir, construction of the Chemical Feed Facility, and 
secondary water connection options in the upcoming year. Engineering for the Chemical Feed Facility is complete and construction of 
the project is slated to start in FY09 with the majority of construction taking place in FY10, and reaching completion in FY11. The 
Board will continue to evaluate options for a secondary potable water connection in order to address emergency andor drought 
conditions. The Water Department does not anticipate any personnel changes over the next five years. 
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Cable Telecommunications 
The Cable Telecommunications Department expects to complete several projects over the next fiscal year. Those projects include: 
the purchase of a soft-switch in the Telephone Division, the planning and execution of a digital simulcast of analog cable channels for 
the future “all-digital” cable television solution, the continuation of the node division project, the implementation of a limited rollout 
of a fiber-to-the-home extension in the Lewis Ferry Road area, begin the construction of a new Headend facility on the east side of the 
K.entucky River and to comply with Federal, State, and Company regulations. 

The Board will add full-time installer in the Cable Division in FY09. The fimds for this position will come from the reduction of 
overtime throughout the division. The goal is to not increase payroll expense but to better utilize staff in keeping pace with customer 
growth and demand for services. 

New service offerings this fiscal year include the addition of digital and high definition programming to the cable lineup. The 
completion of the premium channel migration to digital receivers is expected to be completed by the end of 2008. This step will assist 
the department in freeing up valuable bandwidth as part of the digital simulcast requirement when digitizing analog channels. New 
broadband speeds of 12, 16 and 20 megabit will be introduced on a limited basis to those areas in the community where the node 
division project has been completed. 

Rate increases are planned for expanded cable and premium channel programming to keep pace with the rising programming 
expenses. Broadband rates for the older 128, 256 and 512K speeds will increase for the first time since 2005 by $1 per month. The 
newer broadband speeds of 1 ,2 ,4  and 8 megabit will increase by $2 per month. These increases are needed to make improvements in 
the broadband network and to pay for increases in bandwidth expenses to third party carriers. 

Administrative and General 
Expenses for the Board’s Self-Insurance plan have remained relatively stable over the last three fiscal years. In FY09, the Board has 
maintained the same budget for Self-Insurance as the previous two fiscal years, with a 3% increase each year thereafter, understanding 
that one illness and/or accident could result in significant increases. In order to provide somewhat of a “cushion” for fluctuating 
claims, the Board has decided to h n d  the Self-Insurance fimd at the full budgeted amount each fiscal year, even if actual claims come 
in lower than anticipated. This is an attempt to keep unexpected high claims from taking a devastating toll on the Board’s reserves. 

The Board has experienced large increases in the employer contribution rate to KERS for employee pension. The rate went from 
16.17% in FY08 to 15.58% in FY09, a 39% decrease. An amendment was later passed and the rate was reduced to 13.50%. Based 
on actuarial studies, rates are still expected to climb to 20.97% in five years. The increase is lower than what was calculated last year 
by 6.52%. This increase has been incorporated in the Board’s current five-year plan. 

Overall 
The Board has decided to move in the direction of becoming a “greener” company. As a result, $50,000 has been earmarked for green 
projects in FY09. FPB will incorporate this directive into our constant mission of providing superior, reliable services to the 
community at the most reasonable prices possible. 
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Assets 
Cash & Cash Equivalents 
Investments 
Accrued Interest Receivable 
Receivables 

Billed user fees 
Unbilled user fees 
Advertising 
Other 

Inventory 
Prepaid Expenses 
Property, Plant, and Equipment 

Cable Acquisition Cost 
Tlnamortized Bond Discount 
Insurance Escrow Account 
Retirement Plan Assets: 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments 

Total Assets 

Liabilities & Net Assets 
Liabilities 

Accounts and Other Payables 
Accrued Expenses 
Customer Deposits 
Unearned Revenues 
Bonds Payable Due in One Year 
Long Term Debt: 
Bonds & Bond Anticipation Note Payable 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 
Investment in Capital Assets 
Res@icted for Debt Retirement 
Restricted for Retirement Plans 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

Total Liabilities &Net  Assets 

Frankfort Electric & Water Plant Board 
Comparative Statement of Net Assets 

June 30,2008 and 2007 

2007 -- 2008 
$ 4,530,267 $ 

3,882,489 
1 1,943 

7,326,728 
1,201,800 

171,984 
229,358 

4,986,454 
5 9 2,6 8 2 

161,352,080 
(75,964,762) 

491,400 
183,201 
224,294 

33,867 

5,95 1,267 
3,209,871 

32,909 

7,5 14,479 
1,253,900 

236,492 
363,776 

4,509,868 
61 1,048 

153,854,604 
(70,068,702) 

631,800 
199,248 
36,789 

27,966 
374.005 370.503 - '08.7 35.818, 

$ 12,409,063 $ 12,283,898 
1,002,761 970,381 
2,162,677 2,012,113 

657,587 596,977 
3,137,763 4,123,022 

36,034,348 37,322,113 
______I- 

55.404.1 99 57.308.504 

46,215,207 42,340,767 
1,190,081 1,3 16,121 

407,901 398,493 
6,284,362 7 , 497 , 973 

51.427.314 54,223,591 

$ 109,627,790 $ 108,735,818 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements7 



Operating Revenues 
Fees 

Electric 
Water 
Telecommunication 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 
Electric 
Water 
Telecommunication 

Total Operating Expenses 

Net Income From Operations 

Non-Operating RevenuesFxpenses) 
Net Merchandise Sale 
Rental Revenue 
Interest Revenue 
Other Non-Operating Revenue 
Interest Expense 
Retirement Plan Net Income/(Loss) 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Income (Loss) Before Contributions 

Capital Contributions 

Change in Net Assets 

Net Assets ~ Beginning of Year 

Net Assets - End of Year 

Frankfort Electric & Water Plant Board 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 

Changes in Net Assets 
For The Years Ended June 30,2008 and 2007 

2008 2007 

$ 41,060,752 $ 40,795,896 
7,632,125 7,479,360 

18,571,734 17,000,863 

67,264,611 65,276,119 

42,232,269 40,800,193 
6,913,611 6,919,855 

16,641,565 14,471,319 

65,787,445 62,191,367 

1,477,166 3,084,752 

35,900 12,784 
9,95 1 9,000 

214,148 189,805 
439,408 430,827 

(2,291,752) (2,388,734) 
9,408 6,160 

(1,607,280) (1,7 1531 5) 

(130,114) 1,368,937 

2,926,391 1,054,606 

2,796,277 2,423,543 

51,427,3 14 49,003,77 1 

$ 54,223,591 $ 51,427,3 14 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Cash Received from Users and Customers 
Cash Received from Other Non-Operating Revenues 
Cash Payments for Employee Services and Benefits 
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services 
Cash Payments for Other Non-Operating Expenses 

Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Purchases of Property, Plant &Equipment 
Purchase of Securities 

Cash Provided/(Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities 
Long-Term Debt Proceeds 
Payments on Bond/Note Indebtedness 

Cash Provided/(Used) by Financing Activities 

Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 

Reconciliation of Operating Income/(Loss) to Net Cash Used by Operating Activities 

Operating Income/(L.oss) 
Adjustment to Reconcile Operating Income/&oss) to 

Cash Provided/(Used) in Operating Activities 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables 
(1ncrease)lDecrease in Inventory 
(1ncrease)lDecrease in Prepaid Expenses 
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts and Other Payables 
Increase/(Decrease) in Accrued Expenses 
Increase/(Decrease) in Customer Deposits 
Increase/@ecrease) in Unearned Revenues 

Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities 

Frankfort Electric & Water Plant Board 
Comparative Statement of Cash Flows 

For The Years Ended June 30,2008 and 2007 

2008 2007 
$ 67,935,528 $ 65,444,839 

3,601,455 1,721,365 
(12,922,642) (12,148,012) 
(47,090,625) (43,970,381) 
(2,282,344) (2,382,574) 

9,241,372 8,665,237 

(7,519,822) (7,273,081) 
( 6 7 m  (879,033) 

(8,195,942) (8,152,114) 

151,454 
(2,273,024) (1,753,172) 

(2,273,024) (1,601,7 18) 

(1,227,594) (1,088,595) 

6,016,022 7,104,617 

$ 4,788,428 $ 6,016,022 

2,796,277 2,423,543 

5,918,407 
156,446 
459,743 

(476,586) 
18,366 

125,165 
32,380 

150,564 
60,610 

5,626,955 
156,446 

(996,778) 
(703,216) 

1,961,078 
3 1,064 

155,080 
13,640 

(2,575) 

$ 9,241,372 $ 8,665,237 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Notes To The Financial Statements 

June 30,2008 

Note A - Summary o f  Significant Accounting Policies 

The financial statements of the Electric & Water Plant Board of the City of Frankfort have been prepared in conformity with enerally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as a lied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (6ASB) is 
the accepted standard-settinf body ,for estaiyishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant 
accounting principles and PO icies utilized by the Board are described below: 

The Reporting Entity 

The Electric and Water Plant Board is not considered a component unit of the City of Frankfort. The Electric and Water Plant Board 
operates under the provisions of the Kentucky Revised Statutes mentioned above. Additionally, the City of Frankfort does not 
exercise financial, budgetary, accounting or administrative controls over the Electric and Water Plant Board. Therefore, the financial 
statements of the Electric and Water Plant Board are not included in the financial statements of the City of Franlcfort. 

On July I, 2002, the Board adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 "Basic Finuncial 
Statements - and Management's Discussion u77d Analysis -for State and L,ocal Governments. " Statement 34 established standards for 
external financial reporting for all state and local governmental entities which includes a statement af net assets, a statement of 
activities and changes in net assets, and a statement of cash flows. It requires the classification of net assets into three components - 
invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows: 

e Invested in ca ita1 assets, net ofrelated debt - This component of net assets consists of capital assets, including restricted capital 
assets, net o!accumuIated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other 
borrowin s that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent 
related d&t proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent roceeds are not included in the calculation of 
invcsted in capital assets, net of related debt Rather, that portion of the debt is inckdid in the same net assets component as the 
unspent proceeds. 

Restricted - This component of net assets consists of constraints placed on net asset use through external constraints imposed by 
creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints 
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted 77et assets - The component of net assets consist of net assets that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or 
"invested in capital assets, net of related debt". 

* 

* 

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting rinciples requires management 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and discksure of contingent assets and li 
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

On July 1, 2002, the Board also ado ted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 33, Accozinting 
and Finuncial Reporting for Nonexciange Transactions This statement requires that capital contributions to the Board be presented 
as a change in net assets. 

The adoption of Statement No. 34 and Statement No. 33 affected the classification of net assets in accordance with the statements and 
the presentation of capital contributions as a change in net assets. The financial statements €or the year ended June 30, 2002 were 
restated to reflect the adoption of Statement No. 34 and Statement No. 33. 

Fund Accounting 

The Electric and Water Plant Board is accounted for as an enterprise fund. Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (A) that 
are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs 
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be frnanced or recovered 
pnmanly through user charges, or (B) where the governing body has decided that eriodic determination of revenues earned, expenses 
incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public pofky, management control, accountability, or other 
purposes. 
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Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

- Propertv, Plant, Eeuipment, and Long-Term Liabilities 

Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Notes To The Financial Statements 

June 30,2008 

The accountin treatment applied to roperty, plant, e uipment and long-term liabilities associated with a fund are determined by its 
measurement focus. Enterprise fun& are accounted Tor on a cost of services or “Ca ita1 Maintenance” measurement focus. This 
means that all assets and liabilities associated with their activity are included on tEeir balance sheets. All property, plant and 
equipment are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Depreciation is provided in 
the enterprise fund in amounts sufficient to relate the cost of the depreciable assets to operations over their estimated service lives on 
the straight-line basis. The service lives by type of assets are as follows: 

Structure and Improvements 
Electric Distribution Systems 
Water Distribution Systems 
Cable Distribution System 
Furniture and Equipment 

30 years 
30 years 
SO years 
10 years 

4-10 years 

Basis of Accounting 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. 
Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made. 

Enterprise funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues and the related assets are recognized when earned 
rather than when received. Expenses and the related liabilities are recognized when the obligation is incurred rather than when paid. 

Electric and water fees are recorded as revenues when the customers are billed. Telecommunications fees are billed one month in 
advance, and therefore are recorded as unearned revenues when billed. 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The Electric and Water Plant Board follows these procedures in establishing budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 

1. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for all funds 
2. A statement of revenues, ex enses and changes in retained earnings - budget and actual - is presented for analytical 

purposes in the supplementa?information section of this report, and is not intended to be a financial statement presented 
m conformity with general] accepted accounting rinci les. 

3 .  The Board of Directors of t i e  Electric and Water &ant {oard approves the budget of the Electric and Water Plant Board. 
4. Unused appropriations of the annual budget lapse at the end of the years. 
5 .  The budgeted amounts shown in the financial statements are the final authorized amounts as revised during the year. 

Revenue Resuirements 

The Electric and Water Plant Board is regulated by Kentucky Revised Statute 96.182 concerning the application of revenues earned by 
the Board. The provisions of Kentucky Revised Statute 96.1 82 are as follows: 

Subject to the provisions of outstanding bonds and contracts, the Board shall apply all funds derived from operations 1 to the 
payment of operating expenses, (2) to the payment of bond interest and retirement, (3) to sinking fund requlrements, [4] to the 

the payment of other obligations incurred in the operations and maintenance of the plant and the furnishings of service. 

Purpose of Various Internal Funds 

Operating F U  

Chapter 96 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes provides that all revenues of the system shall be placed in this fund as collected. 
Distributions to other funds are made upon approval of the Electric and Water Plant Board in accordance with the 
requirements of each fund. 

This fund was created for the purpose of paying expenses of operating and maintaining the combined water works, electric 
power, cable, and full service network systems. The amount necessary to meet these expenses is transferred to this fund as 
needed from the Revenue Fund accounts. Approval of expenditures from this fund is made by the Board upon presentation 
of request for reimbursement to this fund. 

maintenance of a fund to meet depreciation and the improvements and extension of the plant in an amount e ual to six percent (6% 
the undepreciated book value of its property, ( 5 )  to the maintenance of a cash working fund equal to one ( 9 ) month’s revenue, (6 

(1) Water and Electric Revenue Fund 

(2) Operations and Maintenance Fund 

Restricted Funds 

(1) Electric and Water Revenue Bonds and Interest Sinking Fund 
This fund was established in accordance with Kentucky Revised Statute 96.182. 
accumulated over a ten year period to equal the average annual interest and principal requirements for such then outstanding. 

It provides that a reserve is to be 
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Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Notes To The Financial Statements 

June 30,2008 

Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Cash, Cash Eauivalents and Investments 
The Electric and Water Plant Board.maintains a cash account for each of the internal funds described in Note A above. Additionally, 
some of these internal funds hold investments which are stated at cost. For the purpose of these financial statements, the Board 
considers all highly liquid investment vehicles with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Statutes 
require that financial institutions pledge a proved securities to secure those funds on deposit in an amount equal to the amount of 
those funds. At the end of the fiscal year, &e carrying amount of the Board's deposits and investments were $8,412,756. All deposits 
and investments were covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held in the pledging institution's trust department in the 
Board's name. 

The following is a chart categorizing the investments in order to give an indication of the level of risk assumed b the Board at June 
30, 2008 and 2007. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are geld by the Board's 
custodial agent in the Board's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by 
the counterparty's trust de artment or agent in the Board's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for 
which the securities are he P d by the counterparty or by its department or agent, but not in the Board's name. 

2008 Category 
1 2 3 Carrying Amount Market Value 

U.S. Government Securities $ 3,780,081 $ $ $ 3,780,081 $ 3,780,081 
Certificates of Deposit 102,408 102,408 102,408 

$ 3,882,489 $ $ $ 3,882,489 $ 3,882,489 

2007 Category 
1 2 3 Carrying Amount Market Value 

U.S. Government Securities $ 3,134,871 $ $ $ 3,134,871 $ 3,134,871 
Certificates of Deposit 75,000 75,000 75,000 

$ 3,209,871 $ $ $ 3,209,871 $ 3,209,871 

The Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board Revised Retirement Plan records as cash and cash equivalents all highly liquid 
investment vehicles with an original maturity of three months or less. 

Marketable securities are camed at cost including remiums and discounts on co orate bonds. The premiums and discounts are not 
material in relation to the investment taken as a d o l e .  Therefore, premiums anrdiscounts have not been amortized. All securities 
are held in trust by Farmers Bank & Capital Trust Company, Frankfort, Kentucky. Under the terms of the retirement plan, the trustee 
has the power to hold, invest, reinvest, purchase insurance on the lives of members, control, and disburse funds as at that time shall be 
set forth in the Trust Agreement. 

The followin is a chart cate orizing the Retirement Plan's investment in order to give an indication of level of risk assumed b the 
Plan at June $0,2008 and 20l7. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are herd by 
the Plan's custodial agent in the Plan's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are 
held by the counterp 's trust department or agent in the Plan's name. Shown in this cate ory are investments with Farmers Bank & 

unmsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty or by its trust department or agent, but 
not in the Plan's Name. 

Capital Trust Co. whic "x were acquired by the merger of Community Service's plan into t a e Plant Board plan. Category 3 includes 

2008 Category 
1 2 3 Carrying Amount Market Value 

U.S. Government Securities $ 148,225 $ $ $ 148,225 $ 152,496 
Corporate Bonds 150,020 150,020 136,273 
Mutual Funds 75,760 75,760 74,554 

$ 374,005 $ $ $ 374,005 $ 363,323 

2007 Category 
1 2 3 Carrying Amount Market Value 

U.S. Government Securities $ 148,225 $ $ $ 148,225 $ 145,451 
Corporate Bonds 150,020 150,020 143,415 
Mutual Funds 72,258 72,258 69,587 

$ 370,503 $ $ $ 370,503 $ 358,453 
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Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Notes To The Financial Statements 

June 30,2008 

Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Inventory 

Materials and supplies inventory are stated at lower of cost or market using average cost to determine unit cost on all items with the 
exception of chemicals. 

Accumulated Compensated Absences 

It is the Board’s policy to permit em loyees to accumulate limited amounts of earned but unused vacation pay which will be paid to 
employees upon separation &om the goard’s service. In enterprise fimds, the cost of vacation pay is accrued in the period in which it 
is earned. 

- Pension Plans 

The Board became a member of the County Employees’ Retirement System (CERS) on July 1, 1988. Eligible em layees were 
enrolled in CERS on that date. Both em loyer and the employee contribute to this plan. The total estimated cost oBentering the 
system as of July 1, 1988 was $2,989,325. The onginal plan for entenn the system required annual payments for 24 years from 
funds available in the Electric and Water Plant Board Retirement Plan as foiows: 

$264,3 18 X 24 annual payments = $6,343,632 

The Board made the required annual payments for the first nineteen years, and paid the remaining balance owed in 2007. 

The retirees currently bein paid benefits by the previously funded Electric and Water Plant Board Retirement Plan will continue to 
receive their monthly heneats from this retirement plan. The Board does not make any payments from the operating accounts. 

Restrictions of Net Assets 

2008 2007 

1) Revenue Bond Sinking Reserve $ 1,136,121 $ 1,190,081 
2) Retirement Plan Assets 407,901 398,493 

Total R.estricted Net Assets $ 1,544,022 $ 1,588,574 

Projects and Funding 

Schedules of the bond principal and interest maturities of these bond issues are presented as supplemental information to this report. 

General Obligation Bonded Debt Service 

The Board maintains a bond interest redem tion reserve fund for the retirement of bonded indebtedness. The transfer and reserve 
requirements of these hnds have been descriied previously. 

Comparative 

Comparative data for the prior year has been presented in the acconipanying financial statements in order to provide an understanding 
of changes in the Board’s financial position and operations. 

Allowance for Uncollectible Amounts 

The Board records an allowance for doubtful accounts in the financial statements. The allowance for doubtful accounts at June 30, 
2008 and 2007 was $23,100 and $25,300, respectively. 
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Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Notes To The Financial Statements 

June 30,2008 

Note B - Property, Plant and Equipment 

The following is a summary of the property, plant and equipment as of June 30,2008 and 2007: 

Water Distribution System 
Water Treatment Plant 
Electric Distribution System 
Structures and Improvements 
Transportation Equipment 
Office Furniture and Equipment 
Tools, Shop Garage and Store Equipment 
Laboratory Equipment 
Power Operated Equipment 
Communication Equipment 
Miscellaneous Equipment 
Cable Division Assets 
Land and Land Rights 
Computer Equipment 

Total Property, Plant and Equipment 

Water Distribution System 
Water Treatment Plant 
Electric Distribution System 
Structures and Improvements 
Transportation Equipment 
Office Furniture and Equipment 
Tools, Shop Garage and Store Equipment 
Laboratory Equipment 
Power Operated Equipment 
Communication Equipment 
Miscellaneous Equipment 
Cable Division Assets 
Land and Land Rights 
Computer Equipment 

Total Property, Plant and Equipment 

2008 

Accumulated Book 
cost Depreciation 

$ 36,752,831 $ 11,355,364 
1 1,55 1,407 5,370,138 
52,635,604 27,419,670 
2,423,035 1,457,064 
4,146,936 2,975,901 
6,773,307 5,242,141 

4 19,794 388,622 
52,192 5 1,628 

2,010,567 1,755,185 
347,292 238,073 
705,3 10 648,117 

41,792,240 18,878,258 
585,848 

1,155,717 184,60 1 

Value 
$ 25,397,467 

6,18 1,269 
25,215,934 

965,971 
1,171,035 
1,531,166 

31,172 
564 

255,382 
109,219 
57,193 

22,913,982 
585,848 
971,116 

- 

$ 161,352,080 $ 75,964,762 $ 85,387,318 

cost 
$ 34,717,954 

11,144,426 
51 ,I  76,530 

2,492,411 
3,985,276 
6,736,812 

416,803 
52,192 

1,992,407 
347,292 
670,229 

39,150,864 
458,881 
512,527 

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

$ 10,661,411 
5,142,660 

26,123,3 18 
1,345,046 
2,732,564 
4,808,600 

380,383 
51,113 

1,649,027 
215,151 
508,443 

16,405,715 

45,271 

Book 
Value 

$ 24,056,543 
6,001,766 

25,053,212 
1,147,365 
1,252,712 
1,928,212 

36,420 
1,079 

343,380 
132,141 
161,786 

22,745,149 
458,881 
467,256 

$ 153,854,604 $ 70,068,702 $ 83,785,902 
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Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Notes To The Financial Statements 

June 30,2008 

Note C -Bonds Payable 

The annual requirements to retire bonded debt as of June 30,2008 and 2007 are as follows: 

2008 
June 30, Principal - 

2009 $ 4,987,763 
2010 3,842,239 
201 1 3,854,607 
2012 3,854,202 
2013 3,736,374 

Thereafter 18,896,926 

Total $ 39,172,111 

2007 
June 30, Principal 

2008 $ 4,123,022 
2009 3,316,778 
2010 4,086,382 
201 1 4,256,887 
201 2 4,339,575 

Thereafter 21,322,491 

Total $ 4 1,445,13 5 

From July 1, 1998 to June 30, 2007 the Plant Board entered into bond anticipation notes with Farmers Bank and Capital Trust 
Company. The purpose of these notes was to enable the Plant Board to work on capital additions far the Full Service Network. The 
balance of the bond anticipation notes at June 30, 2008 totaled $26,962,491 and at June 30, 2007, the notes totaled $29,061,064. This 
amount is included in long-term debt. 

In 2006, the Plant Board entered into a bond antici ation note wi$ the Republic Bank.for a water project in the amount of $1,850,000. 
All funds were drawn and used in the project and t ie Plant Board is currently making interest-only payments on the debt. 

Note D -Insurance Escrow Account 

The insurance escrow account is a liability set up to account for the possibility of future insurance claims. 

Note E - Frankfort Plant Board Municipal Projects Corporation 

In October of 1999, the Board of Directors of the Electric and Water.Pk.int Board formed the Frankfort Plant Board Municipal Projects 
Corparation with the purpose of authorizing and ap roving the initial financing of the costs of the new improvements to and 
expansions of the Municipal Cable Television of the Pyant Board. The initial financing amounted to $4,130,000 by means of a lease 
between the Corporation, as lessor, and the Plant Board, as lessee. The Corporation will provide the lease for the cable system, as 
improved and expended, to the Plant Board, and authorize the assignment of the Corporation’s rights and interests under the lease to 
the Farmers Bank & Capital Trust Company. 

This authorization is accomplished by means of an instrument of assignment from the Corporation to the bank as assignee in 
consideration of the bank’s advance of assignment roceeds sufficient to pay the costs of improving and financing the system All 

Note F - Retirement Plans 

accounting for capital costs, lease costs, and bank in B ebtedness are shown as a part of these financial statements. 

All employees are covered under the County Employee’s Retirement System (CERS), a cost sharing, multiple-em loyer, public 
employers retirement system established under the rovisions of Kentucky Revised Statute Section 61.645. Funding For the plan is 

contribution. 

The Board’s total payroll for the year was $10,067,080. The contribution requirement for CERS for the year ended June 30,2008 was 
$2,106,963 which consisfed of $1,598,848 from the Board and $508,115 from the employees. Benefits under both plans will vary 
based on final compensation, years of service, and other factors as fully descnbed in the plan documents. 

provided through payroll withholdings of 5.00% an B a Board contribution of 16.17% of the employee’s total compensation subject to 

The “pension benefit obligation” is a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension benefits which is ad‘usted for the 
effects of projected salary increases and ste rate benefits that are estimated to be payable in the future as a result of emdoyee service 
to-date. The measure, which is the actuariaypresent value of credited projected benefits, is intended to help users assess the pensions’ 
funding status on a going-concern basis, assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and make 
comparisons among the plans and employers. 
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Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Notes To The Financial Statements 

June 30,2008 

Note F - Retirement Plans (continued) 

Benefits fully vest on reaching five years of service for non-hazardous employees. Aspects of benefits for non-hazardous employees 
include retirement after 27 years of service or age 65. Aspects of benefits for hazardous employees include retirement after 20 years 
of service or age 55. 

Note G - Deferred Compensation 

Eligible employees can participate in deferred compensation lans administered by the Kentucky Public Employees’ Deferred 
Corn ensation Authority. The Kentucky Public Employees’ Degrred Compensation Authority is authorized under KRS l8A.230 to 
1 SA375 to provide administration of tax-sheltered supplemental retirement plans for all state employees, public school and university 
employees, and employees of local political subdivisions that have elected to participate. 

These deferred compensation plans permit all full-time employees to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred 
com ensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. Participation by eligible 

Historical trend information showing the Kentucky Public Employees’ Deferred Compensation Authority’s progress in accumulating 
sufficient assets to pay benefits when due is presented in the Kentuckv Public Employees’ Deferred Compensation Authority’s annual 

emp P oyces in the deferred compensation plan is voluntary. 

financial report. A^cdpy of this report may 6e re uested by writing Kkntucky Public Employees’ Deferrea Compensation Akthority at 
101 Sea Hero Road, Suite 100, Frankfort, Ken&& 40601-8862, or by telephone at (502) 573-7925. 
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Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Statement of Net Assets 

June 30,2007 

Assets 
Cash & Cash Equivalents 
Accrued Interest Receivable 
Receivables 

Billed user fees 
Unbilled user fees 
Advertising 
Other 

Inventory 
Prepaid Expenses 
Property, Plant, and Equipment 

Cable Acquisition Cost 
Unamortized Bond Discount 
Insurance Escrow Account 
Retirement Plan Assets: 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments 

Total Assets 

Liabilities &Net Assets 
Liabilities 

Accounts and Other Payables 
Accrued Expenses 
Customer Deposits 
Unearned Revenues 
Bonds Payable Due in One Year 
Long Tern1 Debt: 
Bonds & Bond Anticipation Note Payable 
Total Liabilities 

Ne Assets 
Net Assets 
Total Net Assets 

Total Liabilities & Net Assets 

Electric & Water Telecommunication Total 
$ 7,426,103 $ 986,653 $ 8,412,756 

8,949 2,994 1 1,943 

5,491,736 
1,201,800 

215,998 
4,081,204 

412,418 
113,729,786 
(53,010,744) 

183,201 
11 7,487 

1,834,992 

171,984 
13,360 

905,250 
180,264 

47,622,294 
(22,954,018) 

491,400 

106,807 

7,326,728 
1,201,800 

17 1,984 
229,358 

4,986,454 
592,682 

161,352,080 
(75,964,762) 

491,400 
183,201 
224,294 

33,867 33,867 
374,005 374,005 

$ 80,265,810 $ 29,361,980 $ 109,627,790 

$ 11,044,640 $ 1,364,423 $ 12,409,063 
588,699 414,062 1,002,761 

2,13 1,909 30,768 2,162,677 
657,587 657,587 

580,000 2,557,763 3,137,763 

10,735,000 25,299,348 36,034,348 
25,080,248 30,323,95 1 55,404,199 

55,185,562 (961.97 1) 54,223,591 
55,185,562 (961 -97 1) 54,223,591 

$ 80,265,810 $ 29,361,980 $ 109,627,790 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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Operating Revenues 
Fees 

Electric 
Water 
Telecommunication 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 
Electric 
Water 
Telecornmunjcation 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income 

Non-Operating Revenues(Expenses) 
Net Merchandise Sale 
Rental Revenue 
Interest Revenue 
Other Non-Operating Revenue 
Interest Expense 
Retirement Plan Net Income/(Loss) 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Income (Loss) Before Contributions 

Capital Contributions 

Change in Net Assets 

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 

Net Assets - End of Year 

Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes In 

Net Assets - Budget and Actual 
For The Year Ended June 30,2008 

Variable 
Favorable 

Budgeted Actual (Unfavorable) 

$ 40,336,000 $ 41,060,752 $ 724,752 
8,032,400 7,632,125 (400,275) 

18,571,734 16,734 -- 18,555,000 

66,923,400 ___ 67,264,611 341,211 

40,280,064 42,232,269 (1,952,205) 
6,735,608 6,913,611 (178,003) 

16,5 16,028 16,641,565 (125,537) 

63,531,700 - 65,787,445 (2,255,745) 

3,391,700 1,477,166 (1,914,534) 

15,800 35,900 20,100 
9,500 9,951 45 1 

183,700 189,805 6,105 
400,000 439,408 39,408 

(2,477,500) (2,29 1,752) 185,748 
9,408 9,408 

(1,868,500) (1,607,280) 261,220 

1,523,200 (130,114) (1,653,3 14) 

3,354,300 2,926,391 (427,909) 

4,877,500 2,796,277 (2,081,223) 

- 51,427,314 51,427,314 

$ 56,304,814 $ 54,223,591 $ (2,081,223) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Operating Income 
User Fees 
Advertising Revenue 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 

Net Operating Income 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 
Net Merchandise Sales 
Rental Revenues 
Interest Revenues 
Other Non-Operating Revenues 
Interest Expense 
Retirement Plan Net Income/(Loss) 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Change in Net Assets 

Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Statement of Revenues and Expenses 

Electric, Water, and Telecommunications Divisions 
For The Year Ended June 30,2008 

Electric Water Telecommunication 
Division Division Division 

$ 41,060,752 $ 7,632,125 $ 17,799,655 
772,079 

41,060,752 7,632,125 18,571,734 
_I__ 

42,232,269 6,913,611 16,641,565 

( 1,17 1,5 17) 7 18,5 14 1,930,169_ 

9,914 7,373 18,613 
2,744 2,044 5,163 

62,154 80,551 47,100 
143,311 153,997 142,100 
(71,821) (626,416) (1,593,515) 

4,704 -- 4,704 

15 1,006 (377,747) (1,380,539) 

$ (1.020.511\ $ 340.767 $ 549.630 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Electric Division 
Electricity Purchased 
Transmission and Distribution 
Engineering 

Total Electric Expense 

Meter Reading 
Customer Records and Collection 
Postage and Printing 
Over and Short 
Office Supplies 
Bad Debts 
GIS Expenses 
CIS Expenses 
Computer Expenses 
Information Technologies Payroll 

Total Ofice Expenses 

Advertising 
Administrative Expenses 
Clearing Account 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Safety 
Travel and Training 
Board Expenses 
Social Security Expense 
L,egal and Consulting Fees 
Insurance 

Total Administrative Expenses 

Vacation Benefits 
Sick Benefits 
Employees Welfare 
Clubhouse Expense 
Employee Activity 
Employee Assistance 
Pension Expense 

Total Employee Benefits Expenses 

General Expenses 
Maintenance 
Depreciation 
In-lieu of Tax City 
In-lieu of Tax County 
Cash Contributions to City 

Total General Expenses 

Support Services 
Inventory Adjustments 
Cost of Sales Clearing 
Auto and Truck Repair 
Gas and Oil 

Total Support Services 

Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Detail Schedule of Budgeted and Actual Operating Expenses 

Electric, Water, and Telecommunication Divisions 
For The Year Ended June 30,2008 

Variance 
Favorable 

Budgeted Actual (Unfavorable) 
$ 33,209,500 $ 34,746,820 

1:7891600 
'245:500 

35,244,600 

221,702 
245,086 

51,019 
28 

10,728 
76,913 
15,168 
74,136 
35,851 

145,778 
877,009 

6,895 
2 6 9,0 5 2 

19,045 
9,164 

65,523 
1,682 

208,729 
75,525 

286.075 
941,690 

138,175 
73,724 

485,378 
1,932 

10,765 
1,270 

462.552 
1,173,796 

3,447 
6,895 

1,484,573 
47,800 
23,326 

- 16.023 
1,582,064 

15 1,542 

170,872 
138.491 
460,905 

2,046,915 
221,261 

3 7 , 0 1 4 m  

224,83 1 
230,214 

45,538 
79 

11,905 
144,147 

12,692 
35,345 
42,907 

127.994 
875,652 

5,892 
266,159 

29 1 
40,077 

9,65 1 
46,899 

1,558 
205,087 

82,333 
284,960 
942,907 

158,052 
75,303 

482,393 
4,445 
8,299 

68 1 
454,917 

1,184,090 

6,622 
9,548 

1,639,346 
38,210 
17,590 
16,022 

1,727,338 

144,637 
24,011 

6,134 
150,375 

$ (1,537,320) 
(257,3 15) 

24,239 
(1,770,396) 

(3,129) 
14,872 
5,481 

(5 1) 
(1,177) 

(67,234) 
2,476 

39,391 
(7,056) 
17,784 

1,357 

1,003 
2,893 

(21,032) 

18,624 
124 

3,642 
(6,808) 
1,115 

(1,217) 

(291) 

(487) 

(19,877) 

2,985 

2,466 
589 

7,635 
(10,294) 

(1,579) 

(2,5 13) 

(3,175) 
(2,653) 

(1 54,773) 
9,590 
5,736 

1 
(145,274) 

6,905 
(24,011) 

20,497 
(6,134) 

162,129 (23,638) 
487,286 -_ (26.38 1) 

Total Operating Expenses - aectric Division $ 40,280,064 $ 42,232,269 $ (1,952,205) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Water Division 
Distributions and Treatment 
Engineering 
Total Water Department Expense 

Meter Reading 
Customer Records and Collection 
Postage and Printing 
Over and Short 
Office Supplies 
Bad Debts 
GIS Expenses 
CIS Expenses 
Computer Expenses 
Information Technologies Payroll 
Total Office Expenses 

Advertising 
Administrative Expenses 
Clearing Account 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Safety 
Travel and Training 
Board Expenses 
Social Security Expense 
Legal and Consulting Fees 
Insurance 
Total Administrative Expenses 

Vacation Benefits 
Sick Benefits 
Employees Welfare 
Clubhouse Expense 
Employee Activity 
Employee Assistance 
Pension Expense 
Total Employee Benefits Expenses 

General Expenses 
Maintenance 
Depreciation & Amortization 
In-lieu of Tax City 
In-lieu of Tax County 
Cash Contributions to City 
Total General Expenses 

Support Services 
Inventory Adjustments 
Cost of Sales Clearing 
Auto and Truck Repair 
Gas and Oil 
Total Support Services 

Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Detail Schedule of Budgeted and Actual Operating Expenses 

Electric, Water, and Telecommunication Divisions 
For The Year Ended June 30,2008 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) ___ 
R 2.404.500 $ 2,562.095 $ (157,595) 

Budgeted Actual 
- > ,  . .  

228.900 226.768 2,132 
2,633,400 2,788,863 (1 55,463) 

165,198 
182,622 
38,016 

21 
7,994 

14,367 
11,302 
55,689 
26.714 31.866 (5,152) 

166,967 
171,534 
34,800 

59 
8,613 

26,922 
9,457 

26,336 

(1,769) 
11,088 
3,216 

(3 8) 
(619) 

(12,555) 
1,845 

29,353 
-. 

108.624 951369 13,255 
610,547 571,923 38,624 

5,137 
200,479 

19,982 
9,614 

59,008 
1,254 

209,959 
61,687 

248.273 
815,393 

2,401 
197,600 

217 
11,259 
10,075 
41,911 

1,160 
207,798 

41,501 
247.306 
761,228 

2,736 
2,879 

8,723 

17,097 
94 

2,161 
20,186 

961 
54,165, 

(2 17) 

(461) 

144,970 168,434 (23,464) 
77,350 59,748 17,602 

509,249 502,926 6,323 

11,294 8,46 1 2,833 
1,332 714 618 

5.001 462.281 
1,213,504 1,207,228 6,276 

2,027 4,664 (2,637) 

467.282 

2,569 
5,137 

1,073,072 
39,188 
19,124 

4,875 
7,310 

1,156,517 
31,326 
14,420 

2.993 2.992 1 
1,142,083 I 1,217,440 (75,357) 

112,919 107,770 5,149 
11,876 (11,876) 

114,754 133,775 (19,021) 
93.008 108.938 (15.930) 

320.681 366,929 (46.248) 

4,570 (4,570) 

(178,003) Total Operating Expenses - Water Division $ 6,735,608 S 6,913,611 $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Telecommunication Division 
Operations & Maintenance 
Distribution 
JB30 Expense 
TMC Expense 
Showtime Expense 
Cinemax Expense 
Encore Expense 
StadEncore Expense 
Digital Music Expense 
Satellite Station Expense 
Pole Rental Expense 
Digital Station Expense 
High Definition TV Expense 
Pay per View Expense 
Royalty Copyright Expense 

Total Operations & Maintenance 

Cable 10 Payroll 
Cable 10 Expense 
Ad Insertion Expenses 
Marketing Expenses 

Total Cable 10 Expenses 

FSN Payroll 
FSN Expense 
Access Billing Expense 
Security Expense 

Total Cable FSN Expenses 

Engineering Expense 
Engineering Payroll 
Total Cable Engineering Expense 

Total Cable Expenses 

Customer Records and Collection Expense 
Postage and Printing 
Over and Short 
Office Supplies 
Bad Debts 
GIs Expenses 
CIS Expenses 
Computer Expenses 
Information Technologies Payroll 

Total Office Expenses 

Franlcfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Detail Schedule of Budgeted and Actual Operating Expenses 

Electric, Water, and Telecommunication Divisions 
For The Year Ended June 30,2008 

Variable 
Favorable 

Budgeted Actual (Unfavorable) 
S 642,300 S 811,615 S (169,315) 

3 10,000 314,320 (4,320) 
453,700 437,902 15,798 

30,700 31,137 (437) 
80,400 80,246 154 
54,000 52,484 1,516 
2,700 3,385 (685) 

96,000 78,187 17,813 
3,900 3,302 598 

3,120,200 3,373,577 (253,377) 
56,000 28,828 27,172 

447,500 400,923 46,577 
70,900 95,533 (24,633) 

8,400 35,571 (27,17 1) 

5,441,700 5,822,450 (380,750) 
65,000 75,440 (10,440) 

455,000 441,780 
55,000 42,268 
87,000 55,757 

13,220 
12,732 
3 1,243 

75,000 68,560 6,440 
672,000 608,365 63,635 

765,200 762,087 3,113 
1,250,000 1,292,403 (42,403) 

40,000 24,309 15,691 
63,000 67,771 (4,771) 

2,000 1,287 713 

2,118,200 2,146,570 (28,370) 

150,000 117,865 32,135 
152,000 119,152 32,848 

8,383,900 8,696,537 (312,637) 

460,993 
95,964 

52 
20,178 
28,721 
28,530 

140,575 
67,434 

433,061 
91,794 

149 
23,314 
53,844 
23,870 
66,475 
81,411 

27,932 
4,170 

(97) 
(3,136) 

(25,123) 
4,660 

74,100 
(13,977) 

274,199 240,721 33,478 
1,116,646 1,014,639 102,007 

22 



Telecommunication Division (continued) 
Advertising 
Administrative Expense 
Clearing Account 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Safety 
Travel and Training 
Board Expenses 
Social Security Expense 
L,egal and Consulting Fees 
Insurance 
Total Administrative Expenses 

Vacation Benefits 
Sick Benefits 
Employees Welfare 
Clubhouse Expense 
Employee Activity 
Employee Assistance 
Pension Expense 
Total Employee Benefits Expenses 

General Expenses 
Maintenance 
Amortization of Goodwill 
Depreciation 
In-lieu of Tax City 
In-lieu of Tax County 
Cash Contributions to city 

Total General Expenses 

Support Services Expense 
Support Services Payroll 
Inventory Adjustments 
Cost of Sales Clearing 
Auto and Truck Repair Expense 
Auto and Truck Repair Payroll 
Gas and Oil 

Total Support Services Expense 

Total Operating Expenses - Telecommunication Division 

Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Detail Schedule of Budgeted and Actual Operating Expenses 

Electric, Water, and Telecommunication Divisions 
For The Year Ended June 30,2008 

12,968 
506.070 

29,973 
14,422 

109,769 
3,164 

3 13,713 
138,188 
334,652 

1,462,919 

8,551 
499,282 

549 
6,868 

16,315 
68,866 
2,930 

305,585 
48,465 

333,348 
1,290,759 

4,417 
6,788 
(549) 

23,105 
(1,893) 
40,903 

234 
8,128 

89,723 
1,304 

172,160 

217,455 205,608 1 1,847 

763,874 752,776 11,098 

16,941 12,078 4,863 
1,998 1,072 926 

698,365 682,293 16,072 
1,8 17,699 1,763,113 54,586 

1 16,025 102,290 13,735 

3,041 6,996 (3,955) 

6,484 15,222 (8,738) 
12,968 19,687 (6,719) 

3,024,155 3,138,590 (1 14,435) 

18,550 13,988 4,562 

140,400 140,400 

38,013 39,470 (1,457) 

5,983 5,985 (2) 
3,246,553 3,3 73,342 (126,789) 

48,242 42,606 
236,799 229,416 

13,825 
11,536 

55,869 43,290 
56,405 56,660 

5,636 
7,383 

(13,825) 
(1 1,536) 
12,579 

(255) 
90,996 105,842 (14,846) 

488,311 503,175 (14,864) 

$! 16,516,028 $ 16,641,565 $ (125,537) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Electric Division 
Electricity Ptirchased 
Transmission and Distribution 
Engineering 

Total Electric Expense 

Meter Reading 
Customer Records and Collection 
Postage and Printing 
Over and Short 
Office Supplies 
Bad Debts 
GIS Expenses 
CIS Expenses 
Computer Expenses 
Information Technologies Payroll 

Total Office Expenses 

Advertising 
Administrative Expenses 
Clearing Account 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Safety 
Travel and Training 
Board Expenses 
Social Security Expense 
Legal and Consulting Fees 
Insurance 

Total Administrative Expenses 

Vacation Benefits 
Sick Benefits 
Employees Welfare 
Clubhouse Expense 
Employee Activity 
Employee Assistance 
Pension Expense 

Total Employee Benefits Expenses 

General Expenses 
Maintenance 
Depreciation 
In-lieu of Tax City 
In-lieu of Tax County 
Cash Contributions to City 

Total General Expenses 

Support Services 
Inventory Adjustments 
Cost of Sales Clearing 
Auto and Truck Repair 
Gas and Oil 

Total Support Services 

Total Operating Expenses - Electric Division 

Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Comparative Operating Expenses 

Electric, Water and Telecommunication Divisions 
For The Years Ended June 30,2008 and 2007 

2008 
$ 34,746,820 

2,046,915 
221,261 

37,014,996 

224,831 
230,214 
45,538 

79 
1 1,905 

144,147 
12,692 
35,345 
42,907 

127,994 
875,652 

5,892 
266,159 

291 
40,077 
9,651 

46,899 
1,558 

205,087 
82,333 

284,960 
942,907 

158,052 
75,303 

482,393 

8,299 
68 1 

4,445 

454,917 
1,184,090 

6,622 
9,548 

1,639,346 
38,210 
17,590 
16,022 

1.727.338 

144,637 
24,O 1 1 
6,134 

150,375 
162,129 
487,286 

$ 42,232,269 

2007 
$ 33,286,574 

1,985,928 
256,919 

35,529,421 

220,118 
285,302 
53,868 

14,693 
112,117 
10,347 
55,736 
27,095 

(129) 

170;05 5 
949,202 

4,172 
337,985 

954 
39,017 
8,430 

72,404 
2,018 

218,893 
75,876 

310,136 
1,069,885 

150,227 
92,559 

403,732 
2,380 

11,199 
648 

326,986 
987,73 1 

5,704 
13,948 

1,68 1,608 
42,283 
17,843 
15,749 

1,777,135 

189,93 1 
(11,812) 

1,391 
160,488 
146,821 
486,819 

$ 40,800,193 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Water Division 
Distributions and Treatment 
E n g i n e e ~ g  
Total Water Department Expense 

Meter Reading 
Customer Records and Collection 
Postage and Printing 
Over and Short 
Office Supplies 
Bad Debts 
GIS Expenses 
CIS Expenses 
Computer Expenses 
Information Technologies Payroll 
Total Office Expenses 

Advertising 
Administrative Expenses 
Clearing Account 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Safety 
Travel and Training 
Board Expenses 
Social Security Expense 
Legal and Consulting Fees 
Insurance 
Total Administrative Expenses 

Vacation Benefits 
Sick Benefits 
Employees Welfare 
Clubhouse Expense 
Employee Activity 
Employee Assistance 
Pension Expense 
Total Employee Benefits Expenses 

General Expenses 
Maintenance 
Depreciation & Amortization 
In-lieu of Tax City 
In-lieu of Tax County 
Cash Contributions to City 
Total General Expenses 

Support Services 
Inventory Adjustments 
Cost of Sales Clearing 
Auto and Truck Repair 
Gas and Oil 
Total Support Services 

Total Operating Expenses - Water Division 

Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Comparative Operating Expenses 

Electric, Water and Telecommunication Divisions 
For The Years Ended June 30,2008 and 2007 

2008 
$ 2,562,095 

226,768 
2,788,863 

166,967 
171,534 
34,800 

59 
8,613 

26,922 
9,457 

26,336 
31,866 
95,369 

571,923 

2,401 
197,600 

217 
1 1,259 
10,075 
41,911 

1,160 
207,798 
41,501 

247,306 
761,228 

168,434 
59,748 

502,926 
4,664 
8,461 

714 
462,281 

1,207,228 

4,875 
7,3 10 

1,156,517 
3 1,326 
14,420 
2,992 

1,217,440 

107,770 
1 1,876 
4,570 

133,775 
108,938 
366,929 

$ 6,913,611 

2007 
$ 2,545,270 

194,651 
2,739,921 

162,230 
209,906 
39,959 

(95) 
1 1,027 
22,423 

7,628 
41,086 
19,973 

125,358 
639,495 

6,883 
250,270 

64 8 
11,578 
9,3 16 

40,861 
1,488 

199,873 
43,293 

269,440 
833,650 

148,510 
95,731 

446,150 
2,630 

11,106 
716 

361,340 
1,066,183 

4,205 
10,282 

1,227,707 
34,457 
14,540 
3,150 

_I 1,294,34 1 

139,770 
(3,864) 
1,025 

109,005 
100,329 
346,265 

$ 6,919,855 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Telecommunication Division 
Operations & Maintenance 
Distribution 
HBO Expense 
TMC Expense 
Showtime Expense 
Cinemax Expense 
Encore Expense 
StarzBncore Expense 
Digital Music Expense 
Satellite Station Expense 
Pole Rental Expense 
Digital Station Expense 
High Definition TV Expense 
Pay per View Expense 
Royalty Copyright Expense 
Total Operations & Maintenance 

Cable 10 Payroll 
Cable 10 Expense 
Ad Insertion Expenses 
Marketing Expenses 
Total Cable 10 Expenses 

FSN Payroll 
FSN Expense 
Access Billing Expense 
Security Expense 
Total Cable FSN Expenses 

Engineering Expense 
Engineering Payroll 
Total Cable Engineering Expense 
Total Cable Expenses 

Customer Records and Collection Expense 
Postage and Printing 
Over and Short 
Office Supplies 
Bad Debts 
GIS Expenses 
CIS Expenses 
Computer Expenses 
Information Technologies Payroll 
Total Office Expenses 

Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Comparative Operating Expenses 

Electric, Water and Telecommunication Divisions 
For The Years Ended June 30,2008 and 2007 

2008 2007 
811,615 
314,320 
437,902 

31,137 
80,246 
52,484 
3,385 

78,187 
3,302 

3,373,577 
28,828 

400,923 

35,571 
75,440 

5,822,450 

441,780 
42,268 
55,757 
68,560 

608.365 

$ 

95,533 

762,087 
1,292,403 

24,309 
67,771 

2,146,570 

1,287 
117,865 
119,152 

8,696,537 

433,061 
9 1,794 

149 
23,314 
53,844 
23,870 
66,475 
81,411 

240,72 1 

$ 740,398 
372,937 
443,626 

3 1,349 
79,295 
51,931 
3,806 

47,669 
3,809 

2,865,377 
28,731 

288,5 17 
43,616 
33,252 
60,694 

5,095,007 

435,645 
49,532 
52,261 
57,477 

594,9 15 

752,848 
1,152,677 

38,820 
58,916 

2,003,26 1 

22 1 
123,850 
124,071 

7,817,254 

295,664 
57,792 

15,210 
43,423 
10,744 
57,871 
28,133 

176,569 
685.272 

(134) 

__ 1,014,639 
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Telecommunication Division (continued) 
Advertising 
Administrative Expense 
Clearing Account 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Safety 
Travel and Training 
Board Expenses 
Social Security Expense 
Legal and Consulting Fees 
Insurance 
Total Administrative Expenses 

Vacation Benefits 
Sick Benefits 
Employees Welfare 
Clubhouse Expense 
Employee Activity 
Employee Assistance 
Pension Expense 
Total Employee Benefits Expenses 

General Expenses 
Maintenance 
Amortization of Goodwill 
Depreciation 
In-lieu of Tax City 
In-lieu of Tax County 
Cash Contributions to City 
Total General Expenses 

Support Services Expense 
Support Services Payroll 
Inventory Adjustments 
Cost of Sales Clearing 
Auto and Truck Repair Expense 
Auto and Truck Repair Payroll 
Gas and Oil 
Total Support Services Expense 

Total Operating Expenses - Telecommunication Division 

Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Comparative Operating Expenses 

Electric, Water and Telecommunication Divisions 
For The Years Ended June 30,2008 and 2007 

2008 2007 
8,551 

499,282 
549 

6,868 
16,315 
68,866 
2,930 

305,585 
48,465 

333,348 
1,290,759 

205,608 
102,290 
752,776 

6,996 
12,078 
1,072 

- 682,293 
1,763,113 

15,222 
19,687 

140,400 
3,138,590 

39,470 
13,988 
5,985 

3,373,342 

42,606 
229,416 

13,825 
11,536 
43,290 
56,660 

5,300 
35 1,460 

913 
6,842 

14,345 
62,737 
2,096 

272,838 
5'1,490 

322,769 
1,096,790 

200,960 
97,648 

686,976 
4,050 

16,049 
1,103 

556,387 
1,563,173 

6,307 
14,634 

140,400 
2,733,685 

32,266 
13,616 
6,100 

2,947,008 

32,254 
151,110 

(8,220) 
1,445 

45,104 
50,772 

1 05,842 89,357 
503,175 36 1,822 

$ 16,641,565 $ 14,471,3 19 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Schedule of Bond Principal and Interest Maturities 

June 30,2008 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,201 1 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 

Total 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,201 1 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2013 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2014 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2015 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2016 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2017 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,201 8 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2019 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2020 

Total 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,201 1 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2013 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2014 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2015 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2016 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2017 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2019 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2020 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2021 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2022 

Total 

Consolidated Note 
Principal 
Maturities 

$ 236,778 
251,382 
266,887 
139,575 

$ 894,622 

1999 Bond Issue 
Principal 
Maturities 

$ 580,000 
610,000 
640,000 
675,000 
7 15,000 
755,000 
795,000 
840,000 
885,000 
935,000 
990,000 

1,045,000 

$ 9,465,000 

Full Service Network Notes 
Total I___ 

$ 2,320,985 
2,980,857 
2,947,720 
3,039,627 
3,02 1,374 
2,975,073 
3,044,786 
3,718,640 

506,134 
506,134 
506,134 
506,134 
506,134 
382,757 

$ 26,962,489 

Water Bond Anticipation Note 
Principal 

Fiscal Year ended June 30,2008 $ 1,850,000 

Interest 
$ 47,236 

32,632 
17,127 
2,454 

$ 99,449 

Interest 
$ 497,948 

466,710 
433,898 
399,379 
362,713 
323,380 
28 1 ,I 33 
236,170 
188,733 
138,683 
85,745 
29,255 

$ 3,443,747 

Total 
$ 284,014 

284,014 
284,014 
142,029 

$ 994,07 1 

Total 
$ 1,077,948 

1,076,7 10 
1,073,898 
1,074,379 
1,077,713 
1,078,380 
1,076,133 
1,076,170 
1,073,733 
1,073,683 
1,075,745 
1,074,255 

$ 12,908,747 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Cliairman 
Members of the Electric, and Water Plant Board 
lhdcl‘ort, Kentucky 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Electric and Water Plant Board ol’ the City OT 
Frankfort, Kentucky, as of June 30, 2007 and 2006 and the related statements of revenues, ex enses and changes in 
net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statemenb are the responskilitp of management. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes asscssing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statements 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of tlie ELectTic and Water Plant Board of the City of Frankfort, Kentucky, as of June 30, 2007 and 2006 and the 
changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the years then ende m conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the [Jnited States of America. 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis is not a required part of the financial statements but is supplemental 
information re uired by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have ap lied 

measurement and presentation of the supplemental information. However, we dif  not audit the information and 
express no opinion on it. 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
The supplemental infonnation on pages 16 through 27 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audits of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion. is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to tlie basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

certain limitel procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of mana ement regarding metho dp s of 

October 28. 2007 

_____I- ____I __I_--_-I- __I___-...”..~ .--- 
_I__- 

201 Wtsf Main Street, Fraiikfout, Keiittlcky 40602 I P.0. Box 698, Fmiikforf, Keiitucky 40602-0698 
(502) 227-7395 I Far (502) 227-8005 I mmi.cfnzcpn.cnrl~ 



Assets 
Cash & Cash Equivalents 
Investments 
Accrued Interest Receivable 
Recei vabi es 
Billed user fees 
Unbilled user fees 
Advertising 
Other 

Inventory 
Prepaid Expenses 
Property, Plant, and Equipment 

Cable Acquisition Cost 
llnamonizcd Bond Discount 
Insurance Escrow Account 
Rt9irement Plan Assets: 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments 

Total Assets 

L.iabilities & Net Assets 
Liabilities 
Accounts and Other Payables 
Accrued Expenses 
Ctistomer Deposits 
Unearned Revenues 
Bonds Payable Due in One Year 
Long Term Debt: 
Bonds & Bond Anticipation Note Payable 
Notes Payable-Retirement Plan 

Total Liabilities 

Net Asstes 
Investment in Capital Assets 
Restricted for Debt Retirement 
Iteaiicted for Retirement Plans 
\ I  nrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

Total Liabilities & Net Assets 

Frankfort Elecbic & Water Plant Board 
Comparative Statement of Net Assets 

June 30,2007 and 2006 

2007 ~ 2006 
$ 5,951,267 $ 7,038,106 

3,209,871 2,334,539 
32.909 23,898 

7,s 14,479 
1,253,900 

236,492 
363,776 

4,509,868 
6 1 1,048 

153,854,604 
(70,068.702) 

631,800 
199,248 
36,789 

6,774,845 
1,217,993 

156,318 
23 1,724 

3,806,652 
608.473 

146,580,966 
(64,44 1,19 1 ) 

772,200 
2 15,295 
4 1,000 

27,966 25,5 I 1 
370.503 - 366.803 

$ 12,283,898 $ 10,322,820 
970,381 939,3 17 

2,012,113 1,857,033 
596,977 583,338 

4,123,022 3,335,996 

37,322,113 39,443,696 
267,161 ~ - _ _ " - -  .-. ' 

-- 57,308,504 56,749.361 

42,340,767 39,360,083 
I ,  1 90,08 1 1,063,318 

398,493 392,333 
7,497,973 _- 8.1 88,037 

51,427,314 49.003.77 I 

$ 108,735,818 $ 105,753,132 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements,, 



Operating Revenues 
Fees 

Electric 
Water 
Telecommunication 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 
Electric 
Water 
Telecommunication 

Total Operating Expenses 

Net Income From Operations 

Non-Operating Revcnues(Expenses) 
Net Merchandise Sale 
Rental Revcnue 
Interat Revenue 
Other Non-Operating Revenue 
Interest Expense 
Retirement Plan Net (Loss) 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Income (Loss) Before Contributions 

Capital Contributions 

Change in Net Assets 

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 

Net Assets - End of Year 

Frankfort Electric & Water Plant Board 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 

Changes in Net Assets 
For The Years Ended June 30,2007 and 2006 

$ 40,795,896 $ 39,853,473 
7,479,360 7,444,375 

17,000,863 14,882,075 

65,276.1 19 -, 62,179,923 

40,800,193 39,506,027 
6,919,855 6,774,304 

14,471,319 _- 13,654,95 3 

62,191,367 59,935,284 

12,784 12,348 
9,000 9,966 

214,148 124,545 
430,827 574,808 

(2,388,734) (2,037~ 52) 
7,124 .-- -. 6,160 

(1,715,8 15) (1,308,361) 

1,368,937 936,278 

592,140 1,054,606 

2,423,543 1,528,418 

49,003,771 47,475,353 

$ 51,427,314 $ 49.003.771 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Cash Reccived from Users and Customers 
Cash Received tiom Other Non-Operating Revenues 
Cash Payments far Employee Services and Benefits 
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services 
Cash Payments for Other Non-Operating Expenses 

Cash Providcd/(Used) by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Purcltases of Property, Plant & Equipment 
Purchase of Securities 

Cash Provided/(Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities 
Long-Term Debt Procecds 
Payments on Bondmote Indebtedness 

Cash Provided/(Used) by Financing Activities 

Increase/(Dccreasc) in Cash and C'ash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Bcginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 

Reconciliation of Operating Incomd(Lass) to Net Cash Used by Operating Activities 

Operating Income/(Loss) 
Adjustrncrit to Reconcile Operating Incomel(loss) to 

Cash Provided/(Used) in Operating Activities 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
(fncredse)/Decrease in Receivables 
(Incrt.ase)/Decrease in Inventory 

(Incrcase)/Decrease in Prepaid Expenses 
Increasd(Decre3s.e) in Accounts and Other Payables 
Increasd(Decrease) in Accrued Expenses 
Increwd(Decrease) in Customer Deposits 
Increase/(Decrease) in Unearned Revenues 

Cash Provitled/(Ust?d) by Operating Activities 

Frankfort Electric & Water Plant Board 
Comparative Statement of Cash Flows 

For The Years Ended June 30,2007 and 2006 

2007 2006 
$ 65,444,839 $ 62,327,232 

1,721,365 1.3 13,807 
( I  2,148,012) ( I  1,661,8 13) 
(43,970.38 1) (41,087,053) 

~ (2,382,574) (2,030.028) 

8,665,237 8,862,145 

(7,273,08 I ) (5,900,779) 
(879,033) (852,522) --- 

(6,753,301) {8,152,114) 

15 1,454 3,267,554 
( 1 .I 07,062) (1,753:122) - 
2,160,492 (1,601.7 18) 

( I  ,088,595) 4,269,336 

7.104,617 2,835,281 

$ 6.016.022 $ 7,104,617 

2,423,543 1,528,418 

5,626,955 
156,446 

(996,778) 
(703,2 1 6) 

(2,575) 
1,961,078 

31,064 
155,080 
13,640 

5,378,257 
156,446 

(1,044,377) 

7,873 
2,954,012 

68,743 
134,337 
II 12 972 

(334,536) 

$ 8,665,237 $ 8,862.145 
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PRANmQRT ELECTRIC & WATER PLANT BOARD 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

MTRODUCTION 

The following discussion and analysis of the Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board’s financial performance provides an overview 
of the Board’s financial activities for the fiscal years ended June 30,2007 and 2006. 

This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the Board’s financial statements and accompanying notes, which 
follow this section 

The Board was established under Kentucky Revised Statues (EXS 96-176) as a combined Electric and Water System to operate, 
maintain, improve, and expand the respective facilities and began operations in 1943. In 1954 the Board created Community 
Television and appointed a separate Cable Board to provide Cable TV service to Frankfort and the surrounding area. In 1988, the 
Board took direct control of the Cable TV operation in order to provide additional services over a fiber optic network, as a public 
project (the Full Service Network). All three operations are combined together and presented on pages 7 to 9 of the Audit Report. 
Cable Telecommunications operations are separated from the Electric and Water operations on the audit report under “Supplemental 
Information” on pages 16 to 27. The Board has completed the upg~ade of the cable system to fiber optics and is now able to provide a 
Full Service Network (FSN) with few exceptions, throughout the Cable Service Area. The Full Service Network includes Digital TV, 
HDTV. DVR, Broadband Service, Point to Point Fiber service, Security Service, and Local and Long Distance Telephone Service. 

The Full Service Network upgrade is being financed by a Master Credit Agreement with a credit line of $29.5 million dollars. 
Security for this financing is the Cable Plant exclusively and repayment will be from Cable revenues only. The Board began repaying 
funds borrowed under the Master Credit Agreement in Fiscal Year 2005-06 in accordance with the agreement. The Electric and Water 
facilities and finances are specifically excluded as security in the Master Credit Agreement. In Fiscal Year 2007, the Board decided to 
refinance the five FSN notes to extend maturities in order to reduce principal payments and increase short-term cash flow. This was in 
response to increasing interest rates and pension expenses. These changes will enable the Cable Department to maintain the required 
minimum reserve as established by the Board while still funding the Capital Additions necessary to maintain and improve the Cable 
System. In addition to changing the maturities, the amendments on the FSN notes included an interest rate floor of 4.00% and a 
ceiling of 6.25%. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The assets of the Board exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $51,427,3 14 (equity). Of this amount, 
$42,340,767 is invested in Capital Assets, $1,190,081 is restricted for Debt Retirement, $398,493 is restricted for Retirement Plans, 
and $7,497973 is unrestricted. 

The Board’s equity (net assets) increased $2,423,543 during the current fiscal year. The major changes &om the prior year included: 
Sales to customers increased $3,096,196, Capital Contributions increased $462,466, Electric Fuel Adjustment Expense increased 
$426,774, FSN interest expense increased $358,182, and Pension Expense increased $233,299. 

Revenues 
Gross income from sales, and other sources, was $67,003,644 for FY07. This represents an increase of $3,502,790, or 5.52% from 
FY06. The major increases were attributable to EIectric Revenue $942,423, HSDS Revenue $61 1,362, Local Phone Revenue 
$499,219, Access Billing Revenue $370,940 and Capital Contributions $462,466. Access Billing Revenue is a new Cable Revenue 
source for FY07. Access Billing is revenue that we collect for terminating a long distance call to an FPB customer. 

Expenses 
Total expenses were $64,580,102 for FY07. This represents an increase of $2,607,666, or 4.21% from FY06. The major increases 
were attributable to Station Expenses $279,392, Power Costs $357,138, Other Electric Operating Costs $21 2,207, FSN Interest 
Expense $358,182, and Pension Expense $233,299. 

Operating Expenses generally refer to the ordinary and necessary business expenses incurred in the day-to-day operation of the Utility. 
Broad categories of these expenses are classified as “Operations and Maintenance”, “Engineering”, “Support Services”, “Ofice”, 
“Administrative,” “General,” and “Employee Benefits.” They include such things as system maintenance, fleet maintenance, office 
supplies, customer service, fringe benefits, billing and accounting. These are current period expenses, which are not otherwise 
capitalized as part of a construction project having a service life greater than one year. The term Operating Expense does not include 
Interest Expense, which relates to financing decisions. 
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINMCIAL STATEMCNTS 

FPB’s Financial Statements are comprised of two components: 

‘Tiotes” to the Financial Statements. 
CJ Financial Statements; and 
0 

Included as part of the Financial Statements are three different types (and names) of statements and their respective Notes. 

The Three Financial Statement Types: 

1. The “Statement of Net Assets” presents information on FPB’s assets and liabilities, with 
the difference between the two reported as Equity (which is also known in the Accounting profession as “Net Assets”). 
Over time, increases and decreases in Equity may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial condition of FPB is 
improving or deteriorating. 

2. The “statement of Revenues. Exuenses. and Changes inNet Assets” presents information showing how FPB’s Equity 
changed between FYOG and FY07. 
regardless of the timing of cash flows,” This means that FPB’s revenues and its expenses are reported in the Financial 
Statements for some items that will result in cash flows (positive or negative) in some future year, but not this one. For 
example, take Accounts Payable and Accounts Receivable. Customers owed FPB money as of June 30,2007. This was 
reported as income in FY07 but the cash won’t be realized until the next fiscal year. On a similar note, FPB owed 
money to KU as of June 30,2007. This was reported as expense in FY07 but the cash won’t be expended until the next 
fiscal year. This is called the “accrual” basis if accounting and is further explained in Note A. 

Results of FPB’s “operations are reported as the underlying events occur, 

In contrast, most of us personally use the “cash” basis of accounting for our tax and returns and own persona1 finances. We 
include and deduct the money as we actually receive or disburse it. 

3. The “Statement of Cash Flows” presents the cash flow changes occurring during the FY07 and FY06 in “highly liquid” 
cash and investments, including certain restricted cash accounts or cash-like assets. “Highly liquid” means it is, or can 
quickly be, turned into useable cash. 

Notes to the Financial Statements: 

The “Notes to the Financial Statements” provide additional information that is essential for a full and complete understanding 
of the information provided in the Financial Statements. The Notes to these Financial Statements can be found on pages 10 to 15 of 
this report. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Assets 
FPB’s Total Assets increased $2,982,686 over FY06. The major changes in Assets, as reported on the Audit, were in “Receivables”, 
“Inventory”, and “Property, Plant, and Equipment” net of Accumulated Depreciation Receivables continue to increase due to an 
increasing Fuel Adjustment charge on the Electric Bills and the continued success of new services available with the FSN. 
Maintaining the inventory needed for the ongoing demand for our various Cable Services and preparing for the State 421 project for 
all three departments resulted in a higher Inventory balance at the end of FY07. Property, Plant, and Equipment increased due to the 
overwhelming subdivision growth and continued investment in our systems. 

Liabilities 
FPB’s Total Liabilities increased $559,143 over FY06. The Audit Report indicates that the major changes were in “Accounts 
Payable” and “Bands Payable”. The increase in Accounts Payable is due to rising power costs resulting from an increasing Fuel 
A4justment charge. The decrease in Bonds Payable is due to only $15 1,454 in additional borrowing on the FSN notes, increased 
principal payments on the FSN notes, and the continued repayment of the existing Water Bonds. The $1.85 million water BAN was 
renewed in FY07 for a term of I8 months, with the Board’s intention being to roll this BAN into a new water bond issue in FYO8 for 
the pIanned Water Treatment Facility upgrade. 

Net Assets 
As noted earlier, FPB’s assets exceeded its liabilities by $51,427,314 at the end of FY07. This represents an increase from FYOG of 
$2,423,543, and as noted earlier, increases or decreases in equity may, over time, serve as a useful indicator of FPB’s financial 
position. The disclaimer comes from the fact that being “land rich and cash poor” is not beneficial if the company needs liquidity for 
cash flow. On the other hand, if you have sufficient cash flow, “investing” in your electric, water, and cable systems (maintaining, 
expanding, replacing, upgrading, etc.) or land, is a good and prudent business practice. 
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A portion of FPB’s net Assets, $42,340,767, or 82%, reflect it’s investment in “Capital Assets”, such as transmission and distribution 
facilities, less any related debt used to acquire such assets that remained outstanding as of the end of FY07. FPB uses these Capital 
Assets to provided services to its owners/customers; consequently, these assets are not available for spending. Resources needed to 
repay the outstanding debt shown on the Balance Sheet must come from other sources, such as sales of water and cable services, since, 
obviously, the Capital Assets themselves cannot be used to pay such “long-term” liabilities. 

The “unrestricted” portion of FPB’s net assets is $7,497,973, or 15% of total Net Assets. This portion may be used to meet FPB’s 
ongoing obligations to creditors and owners/customers. 

An additional portion of FPB’s Equity, $1,588,574, or 3%, represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they 
are used. $1,190,081 is reserved for debt repayment and $398,493 is reserved for retirement benefits for those few employees whom 
opted out of the CERS retirement plan. 

I CAPITAL ASSETS 

FPB’s investments in capital assets as of June 30,2007 amounted to $83,785,902 (net of accumulated depreciation). This includes 
investment in transmission and distribution related infrastructure, as well as general items such as office equipment, vehicles, etc. 
Major capital assets events during the current fiscal year included 

Electric 
‘Old Soldiers Lane Substation’s second bay 
*Overall general distribution system improvements 

y g j g  
*Fort Hill water line 
*US 421 
*New Subdivision development 

Cabie 
“DCTs for Digital Cable/HD/DVR 
*MTAs & channel banks for local phone service 

General 
*Savin 8065 Digital CopierDrinter 
*Outsource programmers to develop new Customer Service and Billing System 
*Fleet replacement ( 1  pickup & 1 dump truck in the Water Dept, 2 pickups & 1 van in the Cable Dept, Crown Victoria for 
General Manager) 

LONG-TERM DEBT 

As of 6130/07, FPB had long term bonded water debt outstanding of $10,015,000. This is debt backed by the electric and water 
revenues of FPB (revenue bonds). No changes occurred in this bonded debt other than the regularly scheduled principal paynient of 
$520,000. 

As of 6130107, FPB had a long term bond outstanding for the Consolidated acquisition of $1,117,629. This is debt backed by the cable 
system. No changes occurred in th is bonded debt other than the regularly scheduled principal payments totaling $2 16,000. 

As of 6/30/07, FPB had long term notes outstanding with Farmers Bank of $28,462,506. This is debt backed by the cable system. 
FPB borrowed the remaining $1 5 1,454 on FSN Note #5 and made regularly scheduled principal payments totaling $750,000. The 
Board refinanced one of the five FSN notes in FY07 ia order to extend the maturity Erorn 2016 to 2022 and to establish a new floor of 
4.00% and a new ceiling of 6.25%. The remaining four notes are scheduled to be refinanced over the next three years. 

As of 6/30/07, FPB had a long term bond anticipation note (BAN) outstanding for the Water Department of $1,850,000. This is debt 
backed by the electric and water revenues of FPB. The Board currently makes interest payments only on this BAN. The original 
BAN matured in February 2007 but, the Board decided to refinance this BAN for another 18 months with the intention of rolling this 
debt into a future bond issue for the Water Department. 
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BUDGET 

Every year, the Board approves a 5-year budget for all operations of FPB. Revenues and Expenses are based on a five-year historical 
calculation (with some exceptions primarily in Cable) and current inflationary trends. There are major impacts to the Electric and 
Water operations due mainly to weather conditions, which cannot be accurately anticipated. The use of a 5-year historical period 
tends to result in an “average” year in growth, inflation, and prevailing weather conditions. It is a rare occurrence when “average” and 
actual coincide. Additionally, expenditures are divided between capital and expense items. When workflow calls for more 
expenditure on capital items than what was budgeted, expenses will typically be lower and net income will be higher but with no 
impact on reserves. The opposite is also true. 

Increased sales and higher Fuel Adjustments resulted in higher than budgeted Electric Operating Revenues of $2,739,796. Capital 
Contributions came in at $363,726,82.64% higher than the previous year and 39.89% higher than the FY07 budget. Power Costs 
were $2,504,574 higher than budgeted due to increased purchases and higher Fuel Adjustments (4.93% actual vs. 3.50% budget). 
Overall, the Electric Department had net income $8,190 favorable to what was budgeted. 

Decreased sales resulted in lower than budgeted Water Operating Revenues of $536,640. Capital Contributions came in at $644,035, 
68.46% higher than the previous year and 329.36% higher than the FU07 budget. This is largely due to the beginning work on the US 
42 1 project, which was not budgeted for in FY07. Several budgeted maintenance projects for the Water Treatment Department were 
not carried out in FY 07 and chemical costs were lower than anticipated resulting in favorable water operating costs of $220,730. 
Overall, the Water Department had net income $197,253 favorable to what was budgeted. 

For the most part, weather conditions have little impact on the Cable operations. Cable Operating Revenues were $463,263 higher 
than budgeted. This was largely due to the new revenue stream, Access Billing Revenue, which generated $330,940 more revenue 
than what was budgeted. Total Cable expenses were $204,454 more than budgeted, primarily due to a shifi in labor expenditures from 
capital to expense. Total expenses that were allocated to the Cable department were favorable $3 17,177 as a result af lower spending 
in computer expenses, employee health insurance, and administrative expenses. Overall, the Cable Department had net income 
$541,600 favorable to what was budgeted. 

THE FUTURE 

Electric 
Due to the rising costs of materials and pension expenses, reduced SEPA credit, general inflation, and maintaining minimum reserves 
as established by the Board, the Board anticipates the need for rate adjustments in the near future. The first increase is scheduled for 
the 09-10 fiscal year, one year later than what was anticipated in the last five- year plan. 

The primary goals of the Electric Department for FY08 are to continue strengthening the transmissioddistribution system for load- 
growth capacity, improved power quality and reliability. During FYO8, the Electric Department will continue to perform upgrades of 
transmission lines and facilities, specifically breaker replacement at the receiving station and various KWB meter change outs. The 
Department will continue to add to and expand the distribution substations including SCADA functionality. This will give our system 
greater flexibility and redundancy. In FY08, voltage conversions from 8.3kV to 13.2 kV will cantinue to improve voltage quality and 
load capacity. A combined 25% increase in spending on tree trimming and spray programs over the next three fiscal years is projected 
to reduce tree related outages by as much as 20%. Higher costs are expected to continue in material due to the large increases in steel, 
copper, aluminum and oil prices. The Electric Department does not forecast the addition of any employees over the next five years. 

Water 
Due to the rising costs of materials and pension expenses, general inflation, increased interest, principal, and debt service payments for 
a new bond issue, and maintaining minimum reserves as established by the Board, the Board anticipates the need for rate adjustments 
in the very near future. The fEst rate increase is scheduled for January 08 for Wholesale customers. This is a rate increase that was 
anticipated to generate revenues in FY07 but did not materialize. A rate increase for City customers is also planned at this time in an 
effort to balance city and county water rates. The final rate increase anticipated in the current five-year budget is July 09 for all water 
customers. The Water department will undergo a cost of service study in FY08 and the plan is to conduct these studies every two 
years in order to maintain rates necessary for the operations of the department while trying to minimize the need for large increases at 
any one time. The January 08 increase to City customers is 6 months sooner than what was budgeted in the prior five-year plan while 
the Jldy 09 increase was not included in the FY07 budget. The construction of a new Chemical Feed Facility may require additional 
borrowing, as mentioned above, beginning in the next fiscal year. The Board does not anticipate any problems with implementing rate 
increases or borrowing. 

The Water department will be focusing on US 421, the new Chemical Feed Facility, and secondary water connection options in the 
upcoming year. The US 42 1 project is well underway and has been included in the FY08 budget. This project will generate over 
$1,000,000 in revenue, while contributing only about $345,000 to Water reserves. The construction of the new Chemical Feed 
Facility is slated to start in FY08 with the majority of construction taking place in FY09. The Board will continue to evaluate options 
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for a secondary potable water connection in order to address emergency andor drought conditions. The Water Department does not 
anticipate any personnel changes over the next five years. 

Cable Telecommunications 
The Cable Telecommunications Department expects to complete several projects over the next fiscal year including: relocating 
utilities for the US 421 road widening project, the completion of the Owenton Road extension, the purchase of a soft-switch in the 
telephone department, the continuation of the Node Division project and the upgrade of our Cable Modem Termination System to 
comply with Federal regulations and also to expand OUT cable modemltelephone senrice capabilities. 

The Board will add full-time staff in the Cable Division in FY08 by adding an order representative, two construction workers and one 
installer. The funds for these positions will come from retirement and replacement of those positions and the reduction of overtime 
throughout the division. The goal is to not increase payroll expense but to fill needed positions due to customer growth and demand 
for services. 

New service offerings this fiscal year will be the addition of expanded basic channels, the introduction of a Broadcast Basic cable 
channel lineup, new digital and HDTV channels and the introduction of multipiex premium channels as a requirement for all 
customers. The final item is the first step in a gradual transition to an all-digital lineup over the next few fiscal years. 

Rate increases are planned for expanded cable to fund the additions of new channels but to also keep pace with rising programming 
expenses. The FCC Network Access Fee for residential and business local telephone will also be increased this fiscal year. This fee is 
collected for the Universal Service Fund commitment. The cable modem business rates were reduced this fiscal year as an incentive 
to increase market share. 

Administrative and General 
Expenses for the Board’s Self-Insurance plan have remained relatively stable over the last three fiscal years. In EYO8, the Board has 
maintained the same budget for Self-Insurance as the previous fiscal year, with a 3% increase each year thereafter, understanding that 
one illness andor accident could result in significant increases. In order to provide somewhat ofa  “cushion” for fluctuating claims, 
the Board has decided to fund the Self-Insurance fund at the full budgeted amount each fiscal year, even if actual claims come in 
lower than anticipated. This is an attempt to keep unexpected high claims fiom taking a devastating toll on the Board’s reserves. 

The Board has experienced large increases in the employer contribution rate to KERS for employee pension. The rate went from 
13.19% in FY07 to 16.17% in FY08 and is expected to climb to 27.49% in five years. This increase has been incorporated in the 
Board’s current five-year plan. 

Overall 
The Board has decided to move in the direction of becoming a ‘‘greener” campany. FPB will incorporate this directive into our 
constant mission of providing superior, reliable services to the comunity at the most reasonable prices possible. 
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Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Notes To The Financial Statements 

June 30,2007 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
The Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board was formed in April, 1943 through the acquisition by the City of 'Frankfort, of the entire 
capital stock of the Tri-City Utilities Company, The company was dissolved immediately after the acquisition of the ca ita1 stock. 

and Water Plant Board, which consists of five members appointed by the Mayor and approved b the City Commissioners. Since 1946 
the Electric and Water Plant Board o erates as an independent entity under the provisions of $e Kentucky Revised Statutes 96.172 
through 96.188. The Electric and qater  Plant Board produces its own water supply and purchases electricity from the Kentucky 
Utilities Company. On January 1, 1988, the Electric and Water Plant Board acquired the assets and.interests of Community Cable 
Services, Tnc. Previous1 the cable system was operated as an independent subsidiary of the Electnc and Water Plant Board, and 
controlled by a se arate goard of Directors. On January 1, 1989, the Electric and Water Plant Board assumed the ownership of the 

Service Commission approved the ac uisition on October 6, 1988. d e  Electric and Water Plant Board bills and collects sewer 
charges for the City of Frankfort and s&ool tax for the local city and county school boards. 

The financial statements of the Electric & Water Plant Board of the City of Frankfort have been prepared in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAM) as a plied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) i s  
the accepted standard-settin body for estaglishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant 
accounting principles and po8cies utilized by the Board are described below 

The properties and the operation of the combined electric and water system purchased were placed under the control o f t  R e Electnc 

North Woodford Ft- ater District facilities in consideration for the assum tion of its obligations and liabilities. The Kentucky Public 

The Remrting Entity 

The Electric and Water Plant Board is not considered a component unit of the City of Frankfort. The Electric and Water Plant Board 
operates under the provisions of the Kentucky Revised Statutes mentioned above. Additionally, the City of Frankfort does not 
exercise financial, budgetary, accounting OT administrative controls over the Electric and Water Plant Board. Therefore, the financial 
statements of the Electric and Water Plant Board are not included in the financial statements of the City of Frankfort. 

On July 1, 2002, the Board adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 "Basic Financial 
Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis -for State and Local Governments. " Statement 34 established standards for 
external financial reporting for all state and local governmental entities which includes a statement of net assets, a statement of 
activities and changes in net assets, and a statement of cash flows. It requires the classification of net assets into three components - 
invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows: 

Invested in ca ita1 assets, net of related debt - This component of net assets consists of capital assets, including restricted capital 

borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent 
related debt proceeds at year-end, the porbon of the debt attributable to the unspent roceeds are not included in the calculation of 
invested in capital assets, net of related debt. Rather, that portion of the debt is inckded in the same net assets component as the 
unspent proceeds. 

ReAhfcted - rhis component of net assets consists of constraints placed on net asset use throu h external constraints imposed by 
creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations o f  other govemments or constraints 
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

5 Wnresrricted net assets - The component of net assets consist of net assets that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or 
"invested in capital assets, net of related debt". 

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting rinciples requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and discksure of contlngent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

On July 1, 2002, the Board also ado ted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 33, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting,for Nonexc 2: ange Transactions. This statement requires that capital contributions to the Board be presented 
as a change in net assets. 

The adoption of Statement No. 34 and Statement No. 33 affected the classification of net assets in accordance with the statements and 
the presentation of capital contributions as a change in net assets. The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2002 were 
restated to reflect the adoption of Statement No. 34 and Statement No. 33. 

Fund Accounting 

The Electric and Water Plant Board is accounted for as an enterprise fund. Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (A) that 
are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs 
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges, or (€3) where the governing body has decided that eriodic determination of revenues earned, expenses 
incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public poicy, management control, accountability, or other 
purposes. 

assets, net o P accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other 

0 
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Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Notes To The Financial Statements 

June 30,2007 
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
ProDerty, Plant, EquiDment. and Long-Term Liabilities 

The accountin treatment applied to roperty, plant, e uipment and long-term liabilities associated with a fund are determined by its 
measurement focus. Enterprise fun& are accounted !or on a cost of services or “Ca ita1 Maintenance” measurement focus. This 
means that all assets and liabilities associated with their activity are included on &eir balance sheets. All property, plant and 
equipment are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Depreciation is provjded in 
the enterprise fund in amounts sufficient to relate the cost of the depreciable assets to operations over their estimated semce lives on 
the straight-line basis. The service lives by type of assets are as follows: 

Structure and Improvements 30 years 
Electric Distribution Systems 30 years 
Water Distribution Systems 50 years 
Cable Distribution System 10 years 
Furniture and Equipment 4- 10 years 

Basis of Accountinz 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. 
Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made. 

Enterprise funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues and the related assets are recognized when earned 
rather than when received. Expenses and the related liabilities are recognized when the obligation is incurred rather than when paid. 

Electric and water fees are recorded as revenues when the customers are billed. Telecommunications fees are billed one month in 
advance, and therefore are recorded as unearned revenues when billed. 

Budgets and Budgetarv Accounting 

The Electric and Water Plant Board follows these procedures in establishing budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 

1, Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for all funds 
2. A statement of revenues, ex enses and changes in retained earnings -- budget and actual - is presented for analytical 

purposes in the supplemendinformation section of this report, and is not intended to be a financial statement presented 
11f conformity with general1 accepted accounting princi les. 

3. The Board of Directors of d e  Electric and Water Plant ioard approves the budget of the Electric and Water Plant Board. 
4. Unused appropriations of the annual budget lapse at the end of the years. 
5.  The budgeted amounts shown in the financial statements are the final authorized amounts as revised during the year. 

Revenue Requirements 

The Electric and Water Plant Board is regulated by Kentucky Revised Statute 96.182 concerning the application of revenues earned by 
the Board. The provisions of Kentucky Revised Statute 96.182 are as follows: 

Subject to the provisions of outstanding bonds and contracts, the Board shall apply all funds derived from operations (1 
payment of operating expenses, (2) to the payment of bond interest and retirement, (3) to sinking fund requirements, (4 
maintenance of a fund to meet depreciation and the improvements and extension of the plant in an amount equal to six percent 
the undepreciated book value of its property, (5) to the maintenance of a cash working fund equal to one (1) month’s 
the payment of other obligations incurred in the operatiom and maintenance of the plant and the furnishings of service. 

Purpose of Various Internal Funds 

Operating Funds 

Chapter 96 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes provides that all revenues of the system shall be placed in this fund as collected. 
Distributions to other funds are made upon approval of the Electric and Water Plant Board in accordance with the 
requirements of each fund. 

This fun was created for tbe purpose of paying expenses of operating and maintaining the combined water works, electric 
power, cable, and full service network systems. The amount necessary to meet these expenses is transferred to this fund as 
needed from the Revenue Fund accounts. Approval of expenditures from this fund is made by the Board upon presentation 
of request for reimbursement to this hnd.  

- Restricted Funds 

This fund was established in accordance with K.entucky Revisefi Statute 96.182. It provides that a reserve is to be 
accumulated over a ten year period to equal the average annual interest and principal requirements for such then outstanding. 

(1) Water and Electric Revenue Fund 

6 2 )  Operations and Maintenance Fund 

(1) Electric and Water Revenue Bonds and Interest Sinkin Fund 
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Frankfort Electric and. Water Plant Board 
Notes To The Fmancial Statements 

June 30,2007 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
Cash, Cash Ecluivalents and Investments 
The Electric and Water Plant Board maintains a cash account for each of the internal funds described in Note A above. Additionally, 
some of these internal funds hold investments which are stated at cost. For the purpose of these financial statements, the Board 
considers all highly liquid investment vehicles with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Statutes 
require that financial institutions pledge approved securities to secure those funds on deposit in an amount equal to the amount of 
those funds. At the end of the fiscal year, the carrying amount of the Board’s deposits and investments were $9,161,138. All deposits 
and investments were covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held in the pledging institution’s trust department I.II the 
Board’s name. 

“he following is a chart categorizing the investments in order to give an indication of the level of risk assumed b the Board at June 

custodial agent in the Board’s name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by 
the counterparty’s trust de artment or agent in the Board’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for 
which the securities are he& by the counterparty or by its department or agent, but not in the Board’s name. 

30, 2007 and 2006. Category 1 includes investments that are h u e d  or registered or for which the securities are i: eld by the Board’s 

2007 Category 
2 3 Carrying Amount Market Value 

US. Government Securities $ 3,134,871 $ $ $ 3,134,871 $ 3,134,871 
Certificates of Deposit 75,000 75,000 75,000 

1 I _ ~ - -  

- - _ ~  __I_ 

$ 3,209,871 _I_ $ $. $ 3,209,871 $ 3,209,871 

2006 Category 
1 -  2 -. 3 Canying Amount Market Value 

US. Government Securities $ 2,259,539 $ $ $ 2,259,539 $ 2,259,539 
Certificates of Deposit 75,000 75,000 75,000 ____.- 

$ $ 2,334,539 
4 

The Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board Revised Retirement Plan records as cash and cash equivalents a11 highly liquid 
investment vehicles with an original nlaturity of three months or less. 

Marketable securities are carried at cost including remiurns and discounts on co orate bonds. The premiums and discounts are not 

are held in trust by F a F e r s  B e  & Capital Trust Company, Fra+fort, Kentucky. Under the terns of the retirement plan, the trustee 
has the power to hold, invest, reinvest, purchase insurance on the lives of members, control, and disbmse funds as at that time shall be 
set forth in the Trust Agreement. 

The following is a chart categorizing the Retirement Plan’s investment in order to give an indication of level of risk assumed b the 

the Plan’s custodial agent in the Plan’s name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for wh+h the securities are 
held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent in the Plan‘s name. Shown in this cate ory are investments wth Farmers Bank & 
Capital Trust Co. which were acquired by the merger of Community Service’s plan into h e  Plant Board plan. Category 3 includes 
uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty or by its trust department or agent, but 
not m the Plan’s Name. 

material in relation to the investment taken as a d o l e .  Therefore, premiums an T discounts have not been amortized. All securities 

Plan at June 30,2007 and 2006. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are he r d by 

2007 Category 
1 2 -  3 Carrying Amount Market V* 

US. Government Securities $ 148,225 $ $ $ 148,225 $ 145,451 
Corporate Bonds 150,020 150,020 143,4 15 
Mutual Funds 72,258 - 72,258 69,587 - . _ ~  

$ 370.503 $ % $ 370.503 $ 358.453 

2006 Category 
1 2 3 Carrying Amount Market Value 

US. Government Securities $ 148,225 -‘$ $ $ 148,225 $ 148,225 
150,020 Corporate Bonds 150,020 150,020 

Mutual Funds 68,558 68,558 68,558 ~- I- 

$ 366,803 $ $ $ 366,803 $ 366,803 
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Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Notes To The Financial Statements 

June 30,2007 

NOTE A -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
- Inventory 

Materials and supplies inventory are stated at lower of cost or market using average cost to determine unit cost on all items with the 
exception of chemicals. 

- Accumulated Compensated Absences 

It is the Board's policy to permit em loyees to accumulate limited amounts of earned but unused vacation pay which will be paid to 
employees upon separation from the f 3  oard's service. 1x1 enterprise funds, the cost of vacation pay is accrued in the period in which it 
IS earned. 

Pension Plans 

The Board became a member of the County Employees' Retirement System (CERS) on July 1, 1988. Eligible em loyees were 

system as of July 1, 1988 was $2,989,328. $he original plan for enterin the system required annual payments for 24 years from 
hnds available in the Electric and Water Plant Board Retirement Plan as foflows: 

$264,3 18 X 24 annual payments .- $6,343,632 

enrolled in CERS on that date. Both em lo er and the employee contnbute to this plan. The total estimated cost o F entering the 

The Board has made the required annual payments far the first nineteen years, and paid the remaining balance owed in 2007. 

The retirees currently bein paid benefits by the previously funded Electric and Water Plant Board Retirement Plan will continue to 
receive their monthly bene& from this retirement plan. The Board will make no payments from the operating accounts. 

Restrictions of Net Assets 

2007 2006 

1) Revenue Bond Sinking Reserve $ 1,190,081 $ 1,063,3 18 
2) Retirement Plan Assets 398,493 ___ 3 92,3 33 

Total Restricted Net Assets $ 1,588,574 $ 1,455,65 1 

Projects and Funding 

Schedules of the bond principal and interest maturities of these bond issues are presented as supplemental information to this report. 

General Obligation Bonded Debt Service 

The Board maintains a bond interest redem tion reserve fund for the retirement of bonded indebtedness. The transfer and reserve 

Comuarative 

Comparative data for the prior year has been presented in the accompanying financial statements in order to provide an understanding 
of changes in the Board's financial position and operations. 

Allowance for Uncollectible Amounts 

The Board records an allowance for doubfil accounts in the financial statements. The allowance for doubtfd accounts at June 30, 
2007 and 2006 was $25,300 and $16,000, respectively. 

requirenients of these funds have been descri t ed previously. 
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Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Notes To The Financial Statements 

June 30,2007 

NOTE B - PROPERTY, PLANT ANI) EQUIPMENT 
The following is a summary of the property, plant and equipment as of June 30,2007 and 2006: 

2007 

Water Distribution System 
Water Treatment Plant 
Electric Distribution System 
Structures and Improvements 
Transportation Equipment 
Office Furniture and Equipment 
Tools, Shop Garage and Store Equipment 
Laboratory Equipment 
Power Operated Equipment 
Communication Equipment 
Other Equipment 
Cable Division Assets 
Land and Land Rights 
Computer Equipment 

Total Property, Plant and Equipment 

Water Distribution System 
Water Treatment Plant 
Electric Distribution System 
Structures and Improvements 
Transportation Equipment 
Office Furniture and Equipment 
Tools, Shop Garage and Store Equipment 
Laboratory Equipment 
Power Operated Equipment 
Communication Equipment 
Other Equipment 
Cable Division Assets 
Land and L,and Rights 

Total Property, Plant and Equipment 

Accumulated Book 
cost --. Depreciation Value I_ 

$ 34,7 17,954 
11,144,426 
5 1,176,530 

2,492,411 
3,985,276 
6,734,812 

41 6,803 
52,192 

1,992,407 
347,292 
670,229 

39,150,864 
458,881 
512,527_ 

153,8S4,604 

$ 10,661,411 $ 24,056,543 
5,142,660 6,001,766 

26,123,3 18 25,053,212 
1,345,046 1,147,365 
2,732,564 1,252,712 

1,928,212 4,808,600 
380,383 36,420 

51,113 1,079 
1,649,027 343,380 

132,141 215,151 
508,443 161,786 

16,4OS,7 15 22,745,149 
458,881 

45,27 1 467,254 

$ 70,068,702 $ 83,785,900 
_I 

2006 
Accumulated Book 

cost ~ . - .  Depreciation ._. Value 

$ 33,360,975 $ 9,970,768 $ 23,390,207 
11,058,858 4,920,382 6,138,476 
49,29 1,947 24,846,964 24,444,983 

2,341,403 1,227,568 1,113,835 
3,829,098 2,458,735 1,3 70,3 63 
6,687,245 4,348,8 17 2,3 3 8,42 8 

414,921 368,954 45,967 
52,192 49,669 2,523 

1,869,634 1,556,097 313,537 
345,499 19 1 3  13 153,986 
640,420 408,920 23 1,500 

36,229,893 14,092,804 22,137,089 
458 881 458,881 -.z 

146,580,966 $ 64,441,191 $ 82,139,775 
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Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Notes To The Financial Statements 

June 30,2007 

NOTE C - BONDS PAYABLE 
The annual requirements to retire bonded debt as of June 30,2007 and 2006 are as follows: 

2007 
Principal I.__- - June 30, 

2008 $ 4,123,022 
2009 3,3 16,778 
2010 4,086,382 
201 1 4,256,887 
2012 4,339,575 

ThereaAer 21,322,491 

Total 

2006 
June 30, Principal 

2007 $ 3,335,996 
2008 2,273,022 
2009 3,316,778 
2010 4,086,382 
201 1 4,256,887 

Thereafter 25,510,627 

Total $ 42,779,692 

From July 1, 1998 to June 30, 2007 the Plant Board entered into bond anticipation notes with Farmers Bank and Capital Trust 
Company. The purpose of these notes was to enable the Plant Board to work on capital additions for the Full Service Network. The 
balance of the bond anticipation notes at June 30, 2006 totaled $29,061,064 and at June 30,2005, the notes totaled $27,407,502. This 
amount is included in long-term debt. 

In 2006, the Plant Board entered into a bond antici ation note with the Republic Bank for a water project in the amount of $1,8SO,OOO. 
All funds were drawn and used in the project and $e Plant Board is currently making interest-only payments on the debt. 

The insurance escrow account is a liability set up to account for the possibility of future insurance claims. 

In October of 1999, the Board of Directors ofthe Electric and Water Plant Board formed the Frankfort Plant Board Municipal Projects 
Corporation with the purpose of authorizing and a roving the initial financing of the costs of the new improvements to and 
expansions of the Municipal Cable Television of the ffant Board. The initial financing amounted to $4,130,000 by means of a lease 
between the Corporation, as lessor, and the Plant Board, as lessee. The Corporation will provide the lease for the cable system, as 
improved and expended, to the Plant Board, and authorize the assignment of the Corporation’s rights and interests under the lease to 
the Fanners Bank & Capital Trust Company. 

This authorization is accomplished by means of an instrument of assignment from the Corporation to the bank as assignee in 
consideration of the bank’s advance of assi nment roceeds sufficient to pay the costs of improving and financing the system. All 
accounting for capital costs, lease costs, and%ank iniebtedness are shown as a part of these financial statements. 

All employees are covered under the County Employee’s Retirement System (CERS), a cost sharing, multiple-em loyer, public 

provided through payroll withholdings of 5.00% a n l a  Board contribution of 13.19% of the employee’s total compensation subject to 
contribution. 

The Board’s total payroll for the ear was $9,672,613. The contribution requirement for CERS for the ear ended June 30,2007 was 
$1,717,019 which consisted of ${245,051 %om the Board and $471,968 from the employees. Beneds under bath plans will vary 
based on final compensation, years of service, and other factors as fully described in the plan documents. 

The “pension benefit obligation” is a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension benefits which is ad-usted for the 
effects of projected sala increases and steprate benefits that are estimated to be payable in the future as a result of emAoyee service 
to-date. The measure, 3 i c h  is the actuarial present value of credited projected benefits, is intended to help users assess the pensions’ 
funding status on a going-concern basis, assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and make 
comparisons among the plans and employers. 

Ten-year historical trend information showing CERS’s progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due is 
presented in their June 30,2007 comprehensive annual financial reports. 

NOTE D - INSURANCE ESCROW ACCOUNT 

NOTE E - F M F O R T  PLANT BOARD MUNICIPAL PROJECTS CORPORATION 

NOTE F - RETIREMENT PLANS 

employers retirement system established under the rovisions of Kentucky Revised Statute Section 61.645. Funding F or the plan is 
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Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Statement of Net Assets 

June 30,2007 

Assets 
Cash & Cash Equivalents 
Accrued Interest Receivable 
Receivables 
Billed uSer fees 
Unbilled user fees 
Advertising 
Other 

Inventory 
Prepaid Expenses 
Property, Plant, and Equipment 

Cable Acquisition Cost 
Unamortized Bond Discount 
Insurance Escrow Account 
Retirement Plan Assets: 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments 

Total Assets 

Liabilities & Net Asset.. 
Liabilities 
Accounts and Other Payables 
Accrued Expenses 
Customer Deposits 
Unearned Revenues 
Bonds Payable Due in One Year 
Long Tern1 Debt: 
Bands & Bond Anticipation Note Payable 
Notes Payable-Retirement Plan 
Total Liabilities 

Ne Assets 
Net Assets 
Total Net Assets 

Total Liabilities & Net Assets 

Electric &Water Telecommunication . Total --. 
$ 7,412,639 $ 1,748,499 $ 9,161,138 

25,847 7,062 32,909 

5,904,305 
1,253,900 

343,228 
3,433,662 

430,190 
109,307,6 10 
(50,104,034) 

199,248 
26,828 

1,610,174 

236,492 
20,548 

1,076,206 
180,858 

44,546,994 
(1 9,964,668) 

63 1,800 

9,961 

7,514,479 
1,253,900 

236,492 
363,776 

4,509,868 
611,048 

153,854,604 
(70,068,702) 

63 1,800 
199,248 
36,789 

27,966 27,966 
370,503 370,503 

$ 78 631 892 $ 30 103,926 $ 108,735,8 18 
--- 

$ 11,011,093 $ 1,272,805 $ 12,283,898 
7 32,987 237,394 970,381 

1,982,549 29,564 2,012,113 
596,977 596,977 

2,400,000 1,723,022 4,123,022 

9,46s,oao 27,857,113 37,322,113 
- --.___ 

25,591,629 31,716,875 57,308,504- 

(1,612,9491 51,427,314 
(1.6 12.9491 51,427,3 14 

s, 78,631 892 $ 30,103,926 $ 108,735,818 

53,040,263 
53,040.263 

:he accompanying notes are an integral part of these fmancial statements. 
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Operating Revenues 

Fees 
Electric 
Water 
Telecommunication 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 
Electric 
Water 
Telecommunication 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income 

Non-Operating Revenues(Expenses) 
Net Merchandise Sale 
Rental Revenue 
Interest Revenue 
Other Non-Operating Revenue 
Interest Expense 
Retirement Plan Net Income/(Loss) 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Income (L,oss) Before Contributions 

Capital Contributions 

Change in Net Assets 

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 

Net Assets - End of Year 

Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes In 

Net Assets - Budget and Actual 
For The Year Ended June 30,2007 

Variable 
Favorable 

Actual - (Unfavorable) Budgeted 

$ 38,056,100 $ 40,795,896 $ 2.739,796 
8,016,000 7,479,360 (5 3 6,640) 

16 537 600 17,000,863 463,263 -A. - 

62,609,7* 65,276,119 2,666,419 

3 7,9 1 7,455 40,800,193 (2,882,738) 
7,139,703 6,9 1 935 5 214,848 

14,584,042 I4,471,3 19 1 12.723 

59,641,200 - 62,191,367 (2,550,167) 

2,968,500 3,084,752 116,252 

18,700 12,784 (5,916) 
10,000 9,000 t 1,000) 

125,400 214,148 88,748 
360,000 430,827 70,827 

(2,266,100) (2,388,734) (1 22,634) 
6,160 6,160 

(1,752,000) (1,715,815) 36,185 

1,2 16,500 1,368,937 152,437 

460,000 1,054,606 544,606 

1,676,500 2,423,543 747,043 

49,003,771 49,003,72 

$ 50,680,271 $ 51,427,314 16 747,043 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Operating Income 
User Fees 
Advertising Revenue 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 

Net Operating Income 

Nan-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 
Net Merchandise Sales 
Rental Revenues 
Interest Revenues 
Other Non-Operating Revenues 
Interest Expense 
Retirement Plan Net Loss 

Total Nan-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Change in Net Assets 

Frankfofl Electric and Water Plant Board 
Statement of Revenues and Expenses 

Electric, Water, and Telecommunications Divisions 
For The Year Ended June 30,2007 

Electric Water Telecommunication 
Division Division Division -_ 

$ 40,795,896 $ 7,479,360 $ 16,202,440 
798,423 

40,795,896 7,479,360 - 17,000,863 

- 

- 
40,800,193 6,919,855 14,471,3 19 

559,505 2,529,544 (4,297) - - - - ~  

4,606 3,395 4,783 
3,242 2,390 3,368 

76,208 86,499 5 1,44 1 
137,187 166,278 127,362 
(77,426) (647,497) (1,663,811) 

3,080 .., 3,080 

146,897 - (385,855) (1,476,857) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Electric Division 
Electricity Purchased 
Transmission and Distribution 
Engineering 

Total Electric Expense 

Meter Reading 
Customer Records and Collection 
Postnge and Printing 
Qvcr and Short 
Office Supplies 
Bad Debts 
GlS Expenses 
CIS Expcnses 
Cornputcr Expenses 
Information Technologies Payroll 

Total Oftice Expenses 

Advertising 
Administrative Expenses 
Clearing Account 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Safety 
Travel and Training 
Board Expenses 
Social Security Expense 
Lcgal and Consulting Fees 
Insurance 

Total Adminstrative Expenses 

Vacation Benefits 
Sick Benefits 
Employees Welfare 
Clubhouse Expense 
Employee Activity 
Employee Assistance 
Pension Expense 

Total Employee Benefits Expenses 

Geiicral Expenses 
Maintenance 
Depreciation 
In-lieu ofTax City 
In-lieu oFTax County 
Cash Contributions to City 

'Total General Expenses 

Support Services 
Inventory Adjustments 
Cost of Sales Clearing 
Auto and Truck Repair 
Gas and Oil 

Total Support Services 

Total Operating Expenses - Electric Division 

FTankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Detail Schedule of Budgeted and Actual Operating Expenses 

Electric, Water, and Telecommunication Divisions 
For Tbe Year Ended June 30,2007 

Variance 
Favorable 

Budgeted Actual Unfavorable) 
$ 30,782,000 $ 33,286,574 $ (2,504,574) 

1,636,000 
259 000 

32,677,000 

223,196 
292,38 1 
63,052 

36 
13,619 
62,99 1 
19,816 
93,3 17 
46,839 

- 188.688 
1,003,935 

10,809 
340,481 

15,760 
9,115 

60,7 16 
2,198 

212,733 
73,391 

-. 300.325 
1,025,528 

132,072 
60,178 

462,120 
1,313 

10,034 
1,208 

338.507 
1,005,432 

3,603 
6,125 

1,639,603 
42,281 
17,843 - 15,748 

1,725,203 

192,903 

-~~ 

-, 

166,715 
120.739 
480.357 

$ 373 17,455 

1,985,928 (349,928) 

35,529.42 1 (2,852,421) 
256,919 2,081 

220.118 
285,302 
53,868 

129) 
14,693 

I I2,l 1 7  
10,347 
55,736 
27,095 

3,078 
7,079 
9,184 

165 
(1,074) 

(49,126) 
9,469 

37,581 
19,744 

170,055 I8 , 633 
949,202 - 54,733 

4, I72 
337,955 

954 
39,017 
8,430 

72,404 
2,018 

2 18,893 
75,876 

3 10,136 
1,069,885 

150,227 
92,559 

403,732 
2,380 

11,199 
648 

-- 326,986 
987,731 

6,637 
2,496 
(954) 

(23,257) 
685 

( 1 1,688) 
I80 

(6.160) 
(2,485) 
(9,8111 

(44,357) 

(18,155) 
(32,381) 
58,388 
(1,067) 

560 

17,701 

(1 I 1  65) 

11,5;21 

5,704 (2,101) 
13,948 (7,823) 

1,681,608 (42,005) 
42,283 (2) 

15,749 (1) 
17,843 

1,777,135 . (51,932) 

189,931 2,972 
(11,812) 11,812 

1,391 (1,391) 
160,488 6,227 
146,821 (26,082) 

- 486.8 19 (6.462) 

$ 40,800,193 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these financial statements., 
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Water Division 
Distributions and Treatment 
Engineering 
Total Water Department Expense 

Meter Reading 
Customer Records and Collection 
Postage and hinting 
Over and Short 
Office Supplies 
Bad Debts 
CIS Expenses 
CIS Expenses 
Computcr Expenses 
Information Technologies Payroll 
Total Office Expenscs 

Advertising 
Administrative Expenses 
Clearing Account 
Dues 62 Subscriptions 
Safety 
Travel and Training 
Board Expenses 
Social Security Expense 
Legal and Consulting Fees 
Insurance 
Total Administrative Expcnses 

Vacation Bencfits 
Sick Benefits 
Eniployecs Welfare 
Clubhouse Expense 
Employee Activity 
Employce Assistance 
Pension Expense 
Total Eniployee Bencfits Expenses 

General Expenses 
Maintenance 
Depreciation & Amortization 
In-lieu of Tax City 
In-lieu of Tax County 
Cash Contributions to City 
Total General Expenses 

Support Services 
Inventory Adjustments 
Cost of Sales Clcaring 
Auto and Truck Rrpair 
Gas and Oil 
Total Support Services 

Total Operating Expenses - Water Division 

Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Detail Schedule of Budgeted and Actual Operating Expenses 

Electric, Water, and Telecommunication Rivisions 
For The Year Ended June 30,2007 

Variance 
Favorable 

- Budgeted Actual (Unfavorable) 
$ 2,766,000 $ 2,545,270 $ 220,730 

217.800 194.65 1 _I._.-__. ~ 23.149 
2.983% 2,739,921 243,8 79 

164,504 
21 5,496 
46,472 

27 
10,038 
12,605 
14,605 
68,778 
34,521 

139,070 
706,116 

_. . ~ - -  

162,230 
209,906 

39,959 
(95) 

i i ,027 
22,423 

7,628 
41,086 
19,973 

2,274 
5,590 
6,513 

122 
(989) 

( 9 8  1 8) 
6,977 

27,692 
14,548 

125,358 - 13.712 -.- 
639,495 66,621 

-_. 

7,967 6,883 1,084 
677 

648 (648) 
17,420 1 1,578 5,842 
10,074 9,3 16 758 
57,164 40,861 16,303 

1,620 1,488 132 
199,641 199,873 (232) 
38,984 43,293 (4,309) 

260.917 _I 269,440 (8.523) 
---. 844,734 8 3 3,650 11,084 

250,270 250,947 

145,974 148,510 (2,536) 
66,513 95,731 (2921 8) 

5 10,764 446,150 64,614 
1,452 2,630 (1  ,I 78) 

1 1,090 11,106 (16) 
1,335 716 619 

374.139 361.340 __ 12.799 
1,111,267 1,066,183 45,084 

2,656 
4,514 

1,095,750 
34,455 
14.54 I 

4,205 
10,282 

1,227,707 
34,457 
14,540 

3.151 ,~~ 3,150 1 
I.- 

1 ,I 55.067 1,294,341 -- (1 39,274) 

142,177 139,770 2,407 
(3,864) 3,864 
1,025 ( 1,025) 

113,988 109,005 4,983 
-- 82.554 100.329 I 17.775) 
-- 338.719 346,265 (7.546) 

$ 7,139,703 $ 6,919,855 $ 21 9,848 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 20 



Tclecommnunication Division 
Operations &Maintenance 
Distribution 
HBO Expense 
TMC Expense 
Showtirne Expense 
Cinemax Expense 
Encore Expense 
Stsrzl’Encore Expense 
Digital Music Expense 
Satellite Station Expense 
Pole R.enta1 Expense 
DigitJ Stauon Expense 
High Definition TV Expense 
Pay per View Expense 
Royalty Copyright Expense 

Tom1 Operarions & Maintenance 

Cable IO Payroll 
Cable 10 Expense 
Ad Insertion Expenses 
Marketing Expenses 

Total Cable I O  Expmses 

FSN Payroll 
FSN Expense 
Access Bilting Expense 
Security Expense 

Total Cable FSN Expenses 

Engineering Expense 
Engineering Payroll 
Totd Cable Engineering Expense 

Total Cable Expenses 

Customer Records and Collection Expense 
Postage and Printing 
Over and Shori 
Officc Supplies 
Bad Debts 
GIS Expenses 
CIS Expenscs 
Computer Expenses 
Information Teehnoiogies Payroll 

Total Office Expenses 

Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Retail Schedule of Budgeted and Actual Operating Expenses 

Electric, Water, and Telecommunication Divisions 
For The Year Ended June 30,2007 

Variable 
Favorable 

Budgeted Actual ,- (Unfavorable) 
s 520,000 $ 740.398 .% (220,398) 

300,000 
470,700 

3 L ,700 
80,600 
50,400 
2,700 

96,500 
4,300 

2,946,200 
55,000 

3 19,000 
37,500 
5,000 

65,000 
- 4,984.600 

435,000 
48,000 
58.000 
75,000 

6 16,000 

672,200 
1,129,000 

10,000 
55.000 

1,866,200 
_.. 

2,500 
143,500 
146,000 

7,612,800 

_-I____ 

303,623 
65,476 

37 
14,143 
24,404 
20,579 
96.905 
48,640 

372,937 
443,626 

3 1,349 
79,295 
51.931 
3,806 

47,669 
3,809 

2,865,377 
28,731 

288,517 
43,616 
33,252 
60.694 

-- 5,095,007 

435,645 
49,532 
52.26 1 

-- 

(72,937) 
27,071 

351 
1,305 

(1,531) 
(1,106) 
48,831 

49 I 
80,823 
26,269 
30,483 
(6J 16) 

(28,252) 
4,306 

( 1  10,407) 

(645) 
(1,532) 
5,739 

57.477 __ 17.523 
594.9 15 2 1,085 

752,848 (80,648) 
1,152,677 (23,677) 

38,820 (28320) 
58,916 (3.916) 

2,003,261 ( 137,061 ) 

22 1 2,279 
123,850 19.650 --.- - 
124,071 ___ 21,929 

7,8 17,254 (204,454) 

295,664 
57,792 

( 134) 
15,210 
43,423 
10,744 
57,871 
28.133 

7,959 
7,684 

171 
(1,067) 

(19,019) 
9,835 

39,034 
20.507 

195,942 176.569 19[3 73 
769,749 685,272 84.47 7 
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Telecornmunication Division (continucd) 
Advertising 
Adininistradve Expmst 
Clearing Account 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Safety 
1 ravel and Training 
Board Expmscs 
Social Security Expense 
Legal and Consulting Fees 
Insurance 
Total Administrative Expenses 

Vacation Benefils 
Sick Benefits 
Employees Welfare 
Clubhouse Expense 
Employee Activity 
Employee Assistance 
Pension Expense 
Total Employee Bencfi ts Expenses 

General Expenses 
Maintenance 
Amortization of Goodwill 
Depreciation 
In-lieu ofTax Cily 
in-lieu of Tax County 
Cash Contributions to City 

Tor01 General Expenses 

Support Services Expense 
Support Services Payroll 
Inventory Adiustinents 
Cost of  sal^ Clearing 
Auto and Truck Repair Expense 
Auto and Truck Rcpair Payroll 
Gas and Oil 

Total Support Services Expense 

Total Operating Expenses - Telecommunication Division 

Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Detail Scbedule of Budgeted and Actual Operating Expenses 

Electric, Water, and Telecommunication Divisions 
For The Year Ended June 30,2007 

I 1,224 5,300 
353,572 35 1,460 

913 
26,820 6,842 
15,511 14,345 
76,820 62,737 
2.282 2.096 

272.838 
93,125 57.490 

322,769 
1,096,790 

2 9 7.8 2 6 

3 12,558 
1,189.738 . 

5,924 
2,112 
(913) 

19,978 
1.166 

14,083 
I86 

24,988 
35,635 

(10,21 I )  
92,948 ~- 

224.754 200,960 23,794 
102,409 97,648 4,76 1 
786,416 686,976 99,440 

2,235 4,050 ( 1.81 5) 
17,076 16.049 1.027 
2,057 1,103 954 

19.667 
1.71 1,001 1,563,173 147,828 

--- 576,054 556,387 

3,741 6,307 (2,566) 
6,361 14,634 (8,273) 

2,722,947 2,733.685 ( I  0.738) 
140,400 140,400 

32,264 32,266 (2) 
13,616 13,616 

6.1 00 1 .~ 6,101 
2,925.430 2,947,008 (21.578) --. 

33,673 32,254 1,419 
166,647 151,110 15,537 

(8,220) 8,220 
1,445 (1,445) 

51,067 45,104 5,963 
50.430 50,772 (342) 
73,507 89.357 ( 15,850) 

3 7 5 3  24. 361.822 13,502 

$ 14,584,042 % 14,471,314 $ 112,723 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Electric Division 
Electricity Purchased 
Transmission and Distribution 
Engineering 

Total Electric Expense 

Meter Reading 
Customer Records and Collection 
Postage and Printing 
24/7 Customer Care Payroll 
Over and Short 
Office Supplies 
Bad Debts 
GIS Expenses 
CIS Expenses 
Computer Expenses 
lnformation Technologies Payroll 

Total Office Expenses 

Advertising 
Administrative Expenses 
Clearing Account 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Safety 
Travel and Training 
Board Expenses 
Social Security E.xpense 
Legal and Consulting Fees 
Insurance 

Total Administrative Expenses 

Vacation Benefits 
Sick Benefits 
Employees Welfare 
Clubhouse Expense 
Employee Activity 
Employee Assistance 
Pension Expense 

Total Employee Benefits Expenses 

General Expenses 
Maintenance 
Depreciation 
In-lieu of Tax City 
In-lieu of Tax County 
Cash Contributions to City 

Total General Expenses 

Support Services 
Inventory Adjustments 
Cost of Sales Clearing 
Auto and Truck Repair 
Gas and Oil 

Total Support Services 

Total Operating Expenses - Electric Division 

Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Comparative Operating Expenses 

Electric, Water and Telecommunication Divisions 
For The Years Ended June 30,2007 and 2006 

2007 
$ 33,286,574 

1,985,928 
256,919 

35,529,421 

220,118 
285,302 
53,868 

( 129) 
14,693 

112,117 
10,347 
55,736 
27.095 

170;055 
949,202 

4,172 
337,985 

954 
39,017 

8,430 
72,404 
2,018 

21 8,893 
75.876 

310,136 
1,069,885 

150,227 
92,559 

403,732 
2,380 

11,199 
648 

326,986 
987,73 1 

~. 

5,704 
13,948 

1,681,608 
42,283 
17.843 
151749 

1,777,135 

189,93 1 
(1 1,812) 

1,391 
160,488 
146,821 
486,8 19 

$ 40,800,193 - 

2006 
32,410,802 $ 

1,773,721 
240,779 

34,425,302 

2 13.4 12 
276,466 
54,969 

1 
55 

14,866 
69,910 
2 1,972 
41,001 
35.027 

177,278 
904,957 

7,993 
371,891 

(370) 
34,598 
10,501 
44,294 
2,160 

2 12,404 
60,227 

- 3331902 
1,077,600 

154,629 
88,877 

424,404 
1,714 

11,836 
690 

282,993 
965,143 

4,443 
8,021 

1,564,772 
29,911 
18,933 
17,187 

1,643,267 

190,303 
10,036 
3,358 

169,784 
116,277 

__ 489,758 

$ 39,506,027 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Water Division 
Distributions and Treatment 
Engineering 
Total Water Department Expense 

Meter Reading 
Customer Records and Collection 
Postage and Printing 
Over and Short 
Ofice Supplies 
Bad Debts 
CIS Expenses 
C1S Expenses 
Computer Expenses 
[nformation Technologies Payroll 
Total Office Expenses 

Advertising 
Administrative Expenses 
Clearing Account 
Dues L Subscriptions 
Safet.y 
Travel and Training 
Board Expenses 
Social Security Expense 
Legal and Consulling Fees 
Insurance 
Total Administrative Expenses 

Vacation Benefits 
Sick Benefits 
Employees Welfare 
Clubhouse Expense 
Employee Activity 
Employee Assistance 
Pension Expense 
Total Employee Benefits Expenses 

General Expenses 
Maintenance 
Depreciation & Amortization 
In-lieu of Tax City 
In-lieu of Tax County 
Cash Contributions to City 
Total General Expenses 

Support Services 
Inventory Adjustments 
Cost of Sales Clearing 
Auto and Truck Repair 
Gas and Oil 
Total Support Services 

Total Operating Expenses - Water Division 

Frankfort Elechic and Water Plant Board 
Comparative Operating Expenses 

Electric, Water and Telecommunication Divisions 
For The Years Ended June 30.2007 and 2006 

2007 
fl 2,545,270 

194,651 
2,739,921 

- 

162,230 
209,906 
39,959 

(95) 
1 1,027 
22,423 
7,628 

41,086 
19,973 

125,358 
639.495 

6,883 
250,270 

648 
11,578 
9,3 I6 

40,861 
1,488 

199,873 
43,293 

269,440 
833.650 

-- 

148,510 
95,73 I 

446,150 
2,630 

11,106 
716 

36 i,34_4 
1,066,183 

4,205 
10,282 

1,227,707 
34,457 
14,540 
3,150 

1,294.341 
I_.--____ 

139,770 
(3,864) 
1,025 

109,005 
100,329 
346,265 

$ 6.91 9,855 

2006 
$ 2,568,592 

166,507 
2,735.099 

157,03 I 
203,429 
40,447 

40 
11,215 
13,626 
3,225 

30,169 
25,773 

130,444 
615,399 

4,448 
273,546 

8,326 
10,438 
41,327 

1,589 
193,949 
48,272 

3 10.700 
- 892,322 

(273) 

164,285 
112,490 
352,3 13 

1,827 
12,615 

736 
301,603 

1,045,869 -I-.--- 

3,269 
5,896 

1,102,084 
28,240 
17,875 
3,350 

1,160,714 -.. 

140,034 
3,832 
2,471 

105,977 
72,587 

324,901 
..-- 

$ 6,774,304 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Telecommunication Division 
Operations & Maintenance 
Distribution 
HBO Expense 
TMC Expense 
Showtime Expense 
Cinemax Expense 
Encore Expense 
SmdEncore Expense 
Digital Music Expense 
Satellite Station Expense 
Pole Rental Expense 
Digital Station Expense 
High Definition TV Expense 
Pay per View Expense 
Royalty Copyright Expense 
Total Operations & Maintenance 

Cable 10 Payroll 
Cable 10 Expense 
Ad Insertion Expenses 
Marketing Expenses 
Total Cable 10 Expenses 

FSN Payroll 
FSN Expense 
Access Billing Expense 
Security Expense 
Total Cable FSN Expenses 

Engineering Expense 
Engineering Payroll 
Total Cable Engineering Expense 
Total Cable Expenses 

Customer Records and Collection Expense 
Postage and Printing 
Over and Short 
Office Supplies 
Bad Debts 
GlS Expenses 
CIS Expenses 
Computer Expenses 
Information Technologies Payroll 
Total Office Expenses 

Frankfort EIectnc and Water Plant Board 
Comparative Opemting Expenses 

Electric, Water and Telecommunication Divisions 
For The Years Ended June 30,2007 and 2006 

2007 2006 
$ 740,398 

372,937 
443,626 
3 1,349 
79,295 
51,931 

3,806 
47,669 

3,809 
2,865,377 

28,73 1 
288,517 
43,616 
33,252 
60,694 

5,095,007 

435,645 
49,532 
52,261 
57,477 

594,915 
-~ 

752,848 
1,152,677 

38,820 
58,916 

2,003,261 

221 
123,852 
1 2 4 m  

7,817,254 

295,664 
57,792 

$ 871,723 
351,035 
446,340 

31,390 
81,908 
5 1,024 
4,022 

93,525 
4,006 

2,638,930 
40,168 

228,456 

30,664 
57,433 

4,930,624 

433,444 
165,496 

598,940 

540,062 
1,121,733 

-- 50,73 1 
3,712,526 

565 
107,877 
108,442 

7,350,532 

2 6 6,9 0 7 
53,068 

(134) 53 
15,210 14,369 
43,423 18,151 
10,744 4,232 
57,871 39,584 
28,133 33,836 

176,569. __ 171,149 
685,272 60 1,349 
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Teleconimunication Division (continued) 
Advertising 
Administrative Expense 
Clearing Account 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Safety 
Travel and Training 
Board Expenses 
Social Security Expense 
Legal and Consulting Fees 
Insurdnce 
Total Administrative Expenses 

Vacation Benefits 
Sick Benefits 
Employees Welfare 
Clubhouse Expense 
Employee Activity 
Employee Assistance 
Pension Expense 
Total Employee Benefits Expenses 

General Expenses 
Maintenance 
Amortization of Goodwill 
Depreciation 
In-lieu of Tax City 
In-lieu of Tax County 
Cash Contributions to City 
Total General Expenses 

Support Services Expense 
Support Services Payroll 
Inventory Adjustments 
Cost of Sales Clearing 
Auto and Truck Repair Expense 
Auto and Truck Repair Payroll 
Gas and Oil 
Total Support Services Expense 

Total Operating Expenses - Telecommunication Division 

Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Comparative Operating Expenses 

Electric, Water and Telecommunication Divisions 
For The Years Ended June 30,2007 and 2006 

2007 2006 -__ 
5,300 6,016 

351,460 358,966 

6,842 1 1,056 
14,345 15,158 
62,737 64,426 
2,096 2,085 

272,838 264,750 
57,490 27,854 

322,769 272,459 

913 (3 5 8) 

1,096,7_9!2 1,022,412 

200,960 
97,648 

686,976 
4,050 

16,049 
1,103 

-. 556,387 
1,563,173 

197,987 
84,115 

640,095 
2,585 

17,863 
1,041 

__I 426,816 
1,370,502 

I--- 

6,307 4,290 
14,634 7,736 

140,400 140,400 
2,733,685 2,727,447 

32,266 50,855 
13,616 9,190 
6,100 4,462 

2,947,008 2,944,380 
-- ~ 

32,254 3 I ,602 
151,110 152,155 

(8,220) 2,702 
1,445 3,242 

45,104 55,211 
50,772 49,283 
89,357 -- 71,583 

361,822 - 365,778 

14,471,319 $ 13,654,953 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Schedule of Bond Principal and Interest Maturities 

June 30,2007 

Fiscal Year Ended Junc 30,2008 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 
Fiscal Year Endcd June 30,2010 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,201 1 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,201 2 

Total 

Fiscal Year Ended Junc 30,2008 
Fiscal Year Ended Junc 30,2009 
Fiscal Year Ended Junc 30,201 0 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,201 1 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 
Fiscal Ycar Ended June 30,2013 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2014 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2015 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,201 6 
Fiscal Y w  Ended Junc 30, 2017 
Fisul Year Ended June 30,2018 
Fiscal Year Ended Junc 30, 2019 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2020 

Total 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2008 
Fiscal Ycar Ended June 30,2009 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,201 0 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201 1 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2013 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2014 

Fiscal Pear Ended June 30,2015 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2016 
Fiscal Yair Ended June 30,2017 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,201 8 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2019 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2020 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2021 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2022 

Total 

CONSOLIDATED NOTE 
Principal 
Maturities 

s 223,022 
236,778 
25 1,382 
266,887 
139,575 -.. 

$ 1 , I  17,644 

I_-- 1999 BOND ISSUE 
Principal 
Maturities - 

$ 550,000 
580,000 
61 0,000 
640,000 
675,000 
7 15,000 
755,000 
795,000 
840,000 
885,000 
935,000 
990,000 

1,045,000 

$ 10,015,000 

FULL SERVENETWORK NOTES 
Total 

$ 1,500,000 
2,320,985 
2,980,857 
2,947,720 

3,039,627 
3,021,374 

2,975,073 
3,044,786 
3,718,640 

506,134 
506,134 
506,134 
506,134 
506,134 
382.759 --- 

Interest 
s 60,992 

47,236 
32,632 
17,127 
2,454 

$ 160,441 

- 

--- 

Interest 
$ 527,473 

497,948 
466,710 
433,898 
399,379 
362,7 13 
323,380 
281,133 
236,170 
188,733 
138,683 
85,745 
29,255 

$ 3,971,220 

Total -- 
$ 284.0 14 

284,014 
284.014 
284,014 
142,029 

$ 1,278,085 

Total 
$ 1,077,473 

1,077,948 
1,076,7 I O  
1,073,898 
1,074,319 
1,077,7 13 
1,078,380 
1,076,133 
1,076,170 
1,073,733 
1,073,683 
1,075,745 
1,074,255 

$ 13,986,220 

_I_ 

WATER BOND ANTICIPATION NOTE 
Principal 

Fiscal Year ended Junc 30,2007 $ I,850,000 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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Wzllinm G. Jolinsoi~, /r., C.P.A. 
Intries Cloiise, C. P. A ,  

H m z n d e t k  Smith, C.P.A. 
Kirrz Fitdd, C.P.A. 

Greg Miklmcic, C . M .  
Dori C. Giles, C.P.R , Coiisirlfnizf 

Chairman 
Members of the Electric & Water Plant Board 
Frankfort, Kentucky 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED TN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOC‘ERNMENTIA UDITING STANDARDS 

We have audited the financial statements of Electric & Water Plant Board, as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2007, and have issued our report thereon dated October 28, 2007. We conducted our audit i n  accordance with 
aiiditing standards gencrally accepted in the United States of America, and the Standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the IJnited States. 

~- Tnteriial Control Over Financial Reportinp 

In planning and perfomling our audit, we considered the Electric & Water Plant Board’s internal control over 
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing oiir opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on h e  effectiveness of the Electric & Water 
Plant Board’s internal control over financial reporting, Accordingly. we do not express an opinion on the 
clfectiveness of the Electric & Water Plant Board’s internal control over financial reporting. 

A control deficiency exists when the design or o eration of a control does not allow management or employees, in 
the normal course ot performing their assigned Enctions, to prevent or detect niisstatements on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the 
Electric & Water Plant Board’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in 
accordance with enerally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likclihood that a 
misstatement of tke Electric & Water Plant Board’s financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not 
be prevented or detected by the Electric & Water Plant Board’s internal control. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than 
a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected by the 
Electric & Water Plant Board ‘s internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reportin was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identi!$ all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above 

Coiiinliance and Othcr Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Electric & Water Plant Board’s financial stateiiients are 
free of material misstatement, we perfornied tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, noncompliance wilh which could have a direct and material effect on the detemiination of financial 
statement amounts. I-€owever, providing an opinion on compliance with thosc provisions was not an objective of our 
audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
iionconipliance or othcr matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of Electric & Water Plant Board, in a separate letter dated 
October 28,3007. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and the board of directors and is not 
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

October 28 2007 
__--....I___- --I_ -- 

201 West Main Streef, Frankfort, Keiztucky 40601 I EO. B a s  698, Frankfort, K(wt14ck~j 40602-0698 
(502) 227-7395 I Fax (502) 227-8005 I .ruwu~.ctrncya.co~7t 



NSE TO PSC 

PSC CAS NO. 20 10-00485 



ITEM 3: 

Response: 

Frankfort Electric and Water Plant Board 
Response to PSC Order Dated: 12/17/2010 

Case No. 2010-00485 

State the 12-month test period upon which the Plant Board 
bases its proposed rate adjustment. 

3(a): Fiscal Year 2009 (7/1/08 - 6/30/09) 

3(b): The test period chosen was based on the most recent 

audited fiscal year data available when the study was 

petformed. 
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